
  
 UPPER FRONT RANGE 
 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION 
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

P.O. BOX 758  
GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

 

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTEN STEPHENS COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  
MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
(970) 498-7002 (970) 400-3748 (970) 542-3500 

UPPER FRONT RANGE TRANSPORTATION 
PLANNING REGION COMMISSION MEETING 

AGENDA 
Thursday, December 5, 2024, 1:00pm – 4:00p 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Meeting Location: CDOT Region 4 – Big Thompson Room 
10601 West 10th Street, Greeley, CO  80634 

_____           _________________________________________________________________ 
1) Introductions and Determination of Quorum (Chair) 

 
2) Approval of UFRTPR September 6, 2024, Meeting Minutes (Chair) 

 
3) Approve Meeting Dates and Locations for the Upcoming Year (Chair) 

 
4) Election of Chair and Vice-Chair for 2025 (Chair) 

 
5) Transportation Commissioner Appointment Update (CDOT)  

 
6) NAAPME Community Clean Transportation Assistance Grant Funding Program (Darius Pakbaz, CDOT) 

 
7) Approve and Sign Resolution for Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) FY24 Project Award SH 

52/WCR 59 Roundabout (Evan Pinkham, Weld County) 
 

8) FY24-28 Multimodal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) Projects Presentation (Project 
Sponsors)  
 

9) Resolution of support for MMOF Match Reduction requests (Evan Pinkham, Weld County) 
 

10) CDOT 2050 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) (Marissa Gaughan, CDOT) 
 

11) FHWA Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) Central Federal Lands (Andrew Valdez, FHWA) 
 

12) CDOT Presentation SH 14 Safety Plan (Bryce Reeves, CDOT)  
 

13) CDOT INFRA Grant Award – US 287 Safety Improvement Project (CDOT) 
 

14) Community Roundtable  
 

15) Public or Additional Comments  
 

16) Inactive Projects Report (Handout) 
 

17) Adjourn 



  
 UPPER FRONT RANGE 
 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION  
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
P.O. BOX 758  
GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

 

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS  COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  
MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING  ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
(970) 498-7002 (970) 356-4000, EXT 3748 (970) 542-3500 

UFRTPR RPC September 5, 2024, 1:00pm – 4:00pm Meeting Minutes 
Location of Meeting: Morgan County Assembly Room, 231 Ensign Street, Fort Morgan, CO 80701 
 
Attendance: 
WELD COUNTY Kevin Ross 
WELD COUNTY Elizabeth Relford 
WELD COUNTY Evan Pinkham 
WELD COUNTY Michelle Wall 
LARIMER COUNTY Eric Tracy 
LARIMER COUNTY Kristin Stephens 
MORGAN COUNTY Jon Becker 
CDOT Bin Zhang 
CDOT Chad Hall 
CDOT Christa Curtiss 
CDOT Dan Mattson 
CDOT Darius Pakbaz 
CDOT Gary Aucott 
CDOT Heather Paddock 

CDOT Jan Rowe 
CDOT Jim Eussen 
CDOT James Usher 
CDOT Josie Thomas 
CDOT Lou Keen 
CDOT Marissa Gaughan 
CDOT Medora Bornhoft 
CDOT Michael Snow 
CDOT Nell Conti 
CDOT Phil Von Hake  
CDOT Rich Christy 
CDOT Tess Richey 
NECALG Charles Bunnell 
NFRMPO Paul Sizemore 

CITY OF BRUSH/TOWN OF 
HILLROSE Dale Colerick 
ESTES PARK Dana Klein 
ESTES PARK Travis Machalek 
ESTES PARK Trevor Wittwer 
FORT LUPTON Chris Cross 
FORT MORGAN Brent Nation 
FORT MORGAN Tom Acre 
PLATTEVILLE Troy Renken 
WELLINGTON Alex Evonitz 
WELLINGTON Bob Gowing 
WELLINGTON Cody Bird 
WELLINGTON Patti Garcia 

 
Introductions and Determination of Quorum - Chair Becker   
Chair Becker called the meeting to order at 12:59 p.m. Introductions were made around the room and 
a quorum was determined to be present. 
 
Entities present:  
Weld County, Larimer County, Morgan County, CDOT, City of Brush/Town of Hillrose, Estes Park, Fort 
Lupton, Fort Morgan, Platteville, and Wiggins.  
 
Approval of UFRTPR June 6, 2024, Meeting Minutes - Chair Becker 
Motion: Approve the June 6, 2024, Meeting Minutes, Moved by Commissioner Ross, Seconded by 
Troy Renken.  Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Transportation Commissioner Announcements - Jim Kelly, CDOT 
No update. 
 
MMOF Program/Call for Projects Schedule – Michael Snow, CDOT/Evan Pinkham, Weld County 
Michael Snow provided a couple handouts containing possible MMOF scoring criteria so the TPR 
could come up with the criteria they want in their application process.     
 
Evan Pinkham said draft applications will be due the first week of October.  CDOT will review the draft 
applications and provide comments, October 3, 2024, thru October 24, 2024.  Final applications are 



 UPPER FRONT RANGE 
 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION  
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
P.O. BOX 758  
GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

 

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS  COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  
MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING  ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
(970) 498-7002 (970) 356-4000, EXT 3748 (970) 542-3500 

due on November 7, 2024.  CDOT will review November 7, 2024, thru November 21, 2024.  The 
Executive Committee will convene and score applications after that time.  Send applications to Evan 
Pinkham at epinkham@weld.gov and the MMOF Manager at mmof@state.co.us.  Evan suggested 
adding Partnerships as a category and asked for the group’s feedback on the template provided in 
the handout.   
 
Josie Thomas explained CDOT will provide comments on the draft applications, but they will not 
make recommendations.  CDOT will let the group know of any red flags they see. 
 
Elizabeth Relford reminded the group that at the June TPR meeting, the group agreed to consolidate 
FY 2024 thru FY 2028 funding.  After the Executive Committee provides their recommendation, the 
recommendation will be brought to the TPR for the December meeting. 
 
Josie mentioned if you have a project that does not have adequate funding and meets MMOF criteria, it 
could be a good opportunity to get the remainder of the project funded. 
 
The TPR decided to make a couple revisions to the application evaluation template and definitions: 

1. Add “Community Connectivity” to the Network/Modal Connectivity criteria and add schools. 
2. Under the criteria “Application Quality”, add project timeline (shovel-ready metric). 
3. Top two criteria worth 15 points each with remaining criteria worth 10 points each.  

 
Evan will make the changes and send the revised version out to the TPR.  Elizabeth said an email 
reminder will be sent out a week before draft applications are due.  
 
UFR Letter to CWCB on BLE Technical Position – Evan Pinkham, Weld County 
Evan drafted a letter to the CWCB from the TPR discussing the impacts of BLE flood risk maps not 
being regulatory unless adopted.  He asked the TPR to review the letter and send any comments to him 
at epinkham@weld.gov by September 19, 2024.   
  
I-76 EB Off-Ramp and WCR 49 – Richard Christy, CDOT 
Richard Christy gave an update on the I-76 EB Off-Ramp and WCR 49 Signing and Striping Plan.  The 
off-ramp is in close proximity to the frontage road with no traffic control.  There is a work order to add 
additional stop signs on WCR 49 and make it an all-way stop.  Project should be completed by early fall. 
 
Bin Zhang suggested they add flashing lights for night travel.  It is very dark under the off-ramp. 
 
CDOT Presentation – 2050 Regional Transportation Plan – Marissa Gaughan, DTD 
Heather Paddock explained that every 4 years they look at all the data and find the best ways to utilize 
planning dollars for transportation projects. 
 

mailto:epinkham@weld.gov
mailto:mmof@state.co.us
mailto:epinkham@weld.gov


 UPPER FRONT RANGE 
 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION  
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
P.O. BOX 758  
GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

 

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS  COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  
MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING  ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
(970) 498-7002 (970) 356-4000, EXT 3748 (970) 542-3500 

Marissa Gaughan explained the UFR will need to develop a final 2050 Regional Transportation Plan.  
CDOT plans to have at least 4 meetings with the group and can have a separate meeting to discuss 
transit and active transportation.  Since there will not be a STAC meeting in December, it was decided 
that CDOT could discuss transit at the December meeting.  CDOT would also like to discuss the 
UFRTPR project list and scoring criteria at the December meeting. 
 
Marissa said they will be sending out a follow-up survey to collect input for updating the UFRTPR’s 
visions and goals for the 2050 Plan.  CDOT will bring results to the December meeting.   
 
CDOT plans to have their long-range plan complete by the end of the year (2024).   
 
Heather covered 2020 – 2024 Region 4 projects.  The Road Weather Information Stations (RWIS) along 
US 34 in Morgan and Weld Counties are a combination of technologies that collect, transmit, model, 
and disseminate weather and road condition information in real-time.  RWIS is used when snowplows 
are deployed.  They can determine how much chemicals are needed.  
 
Chad Hall spoke about the Peckham Interchange at US 85 and WCR 44.  It is a grade separated 
intersection.  CDOT closed several at-grade railroad crossings to increase the safety and mobility of the 
US 85 corridor. 
 
Bin Zhang discussed the I-76 Phase IV Reconstruction near Brush.  CDOT will replace 4 major bridge 
structures, reconstruct 1.4 miles of interstate highway, and install a new park-n-ride facility.  A $29 million 
INFRA Grant was awarded from FHWA.  Bin thanked everyone for their help.   
 
Darius Pakbaz gave a presentation on demographic data.  He also spoke about transportation data 
trends in the UPR including vehicle crashes, vulnerable road users, wildlife vehicle crashes, and 
highway drivability life.  Elizabeth asked Darius if he could figure out how much it would cost Region 4 
to fix the roadways based on the “Drivability Life - Highways” map. Elizabeth said this data could help 
with project selection.  Darius went over maps displaying bridges and roadways in poor condition. 
 
Christa Curtiss gave a presentation on the current state of Transit and gaps in the transit network 
throughout the State.  If you have any feedback on the transit data that was on the map, please contact 
her.    
 
Darius said they will make this data public on their website so users can apply all the layers they want. 
 
Marissa discussed the follow-up survey in more detail.  She said the survey will have vision, goals, focus 
areas.   
 
There is a Region 4 State Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) Stakeholder Workshop on September 11, 2024, 
at 3:00 p.m. 



 UPPER FRONT RANGE 
 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION  
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
P.O. BOX 758  
GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

 

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS  COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  
MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING  ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
(970) 498-7002 (970) 356-4000, EXT 3748 (970) 542-3500 

 
An Active Transportation Plan survey is open through September 13, 2024.  For more information of 
updates visit bit.ly/CDOTActiveTransportationPlan.   
 
Marissa said they will pass out a spreadsheet at the December meeting with the TPR’s list of projects.  
The group can discuss if there are projects that they wish to add.  Commissioner Stephens said that she 
thinks safety needs to be more of a priority in the criteria.  
 
Community Roundtable  
 
Platteville 
Troy Renken said Platteville has acquired a couple of properties where they will need to work with CDOT 
on intersection improvements.   One of the properties is on Front Street which is located on the east 
side of US 85, just south of WCR 34.  CDOT will be doing an impact analysis of the intersection. The 
analysis may or may not result in signalization.  A sand company wants to build a warehouse and he 
foresees that causing some traffic issues. 
 
The second land purchase is located south of SH 66 between Main Street and the river. Because of 
traffic congestion, they are working to improve this intersection as well. 
 
Brush/Hillrose 
Dale Colerick said it is budget season for the City of Brush.  They are looking at their 5-year CIP and for 
funds available for road improvements next year. 
 
Fort Morgan 
Brent Nation introduced Tom Acre.  Tom came from the Town of Wiggins, and will be the Public Works Director 
for Fort Morgan. 
 
Brent said they are working on getting the 1200 feet of SH 52 reopened today.  They replaced a waterline. 
 
Fort Morgan is working on a review of a large storm water project.   
 
Estes Park 
Dana Klein said they have completed the downtown Estes Loop project.  He would love to hear feedback 
on it.   
 
Wellington 
Cody Bird said their Main Street is at 30% design.  They are working on intersection improvements near the high 
school. 
 
Also working on applying for grant funding for design of intersection improvements at I-25 and SH 1. 
 



 UPPER FRONT RANGE 
 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION  
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
P.O. BOX 758  
GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

 

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS  COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  
MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING  ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
(970) 498-7002 (970) 356-4000, EXT 3748 (970) 542-3500 

Weld County 
Commissioner Ross reported the WCR 77 project should be completed this week.   
 
Last week, the High Plains Blvd Community Outreach began with Mead and CDOT; he said he realizes 
this project is outside of the UFR, but it will be a big project for Weld County.  
 
Roundabouts at WCR 6 and WCR 13 are still in design.   
 
Larimer County   
Commissioner Stephens said Phase I for the Owl Canyon project is scheduled to be complete at the 
end of September.  Phase II should be advertised for construction in early 2025.  They are still seeking 
funding for Phase III. 
 
Larimer County had two Highway Safety Improvement guardrail projects that are now complete. 
 
They received a planning grant for the Pingree Park Bridge.  Larimer is trying to get an implementation 
grant. 
 
She said they are updating the Larimer County Transportation Master Plan “Larimer on the Go” and also 
working on their “Safe Streets for All” safety action plan.   
 
This week a resolution was passed on putting a question on the November ballot for a 1.5% sales tax 
to apply to transportation funding. 
 
Yesterday, they submitted a 17-million-dollar grant on behalf of CDOT for the Wildlife Crossing Safety 
Improvements that have been identified on US 287. 
 
INACTIVE PROJECTS REPORT (Informational Only) 
 
Public or Additional Comments  
There were no public or additional comments. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting adjourned at 2:54 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Michelle Wall 
Secretary 



  
 UPPER FRONT RANGE 
 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION  
 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
P.O. BOX 758  
GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

  

LARIMER COUNTY                                WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  
MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING EVAN PINKHAM, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
(970)498-7002 (970)400-3727 (970)542-3500 

   
2025 UFR TPR QUARTERLY MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
TO:  Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region Members  
 
FROM:  Upper Front Range TPR Administration   
 
SUBJECT:  2025 UFR TPR Quarterly Scheduled Meetings (1st Thursday of the Month - Quarterly) 
 
TIME:  1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. (all meetings) 
 
WHEN & WHERE:  
 
Scheduled Meeting Dates: Locations & Addresses: 
 
March 6, 2025 Larimer County – Larimer County Administration Building 
 Boyd Lake Conference Room 
 200 West Oak Steet, Fort Collins, CO 80522 
  
June 5, 2025 Weld County – Weld County Administration Building 
 Administration Events Room  
 1150 O Street, Greeley, CO 80631 
 
September 4, 2025 Morgan County – Morgan County Administration Building 
 Assembly Room  
 231 Ensign Street, Fort Morgan, CO 80701 
   
December 4, 2025 CDOT Region 4 – West Greeley 

Big Thompson Room 
 10601 W 10th Street, Greeley, CO 80634 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



11/22/2024

1

“Community Clean Transportation 
Assistance” Grant Funding Program

(CCTAP) - Fall 2024

• Colorado Senate Bill 21-260 created the 
Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation 
Enterprise (NAAPME): naapme.codot.gov

• NAAPME funds projects that help address traffic 
congestion and reduce environmental and health 
impacts of transportation in Colorado’s 
Nonattainment areas (currently Metro Denver, 
North Front Range, and Upper Front Range).

• CCTAP is the first NAAPME grant funding program, 
with $17 million available.

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” 
Grant Funding Program (CCTAP) - Overview

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Grant 
Funding Program (CCTAP)Fall 2024 2

Notice of Funding Opportunity

• The NAAPME 10-Year Plan identifies these funding focus areas:
• Projects that sustainably reduce traffic congestion

(transit services, mobility hubs, sidewalks & bike paths, car-/van-pools, etc.);

• Projects that reduce the environmental and health impacts of transportation
(lowering construction impacts, roadside vegetation, etc.); and/or

• Projects that improve neighborhood connectivity for communities adjacent to highways
(sidewalks, bike/ped connectivity, reduce urban traffic speeds, etc.).

• Federal “Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ)” Project types
are also eligible for this funding.

• Project awards of $500,000 to $17,000,000

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Grant 
Funding Program (CCTAP)

Fall 2024 3

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” 
Grant Funding Program (CCTAP) - NOFO

1

2

3



11/22/2024

2

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” 
Grant Funding Program (CCTAP) - Eligibility

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Grant 
Funding Program (CCTAP)

Fall 2024 4

CCTAP Eligibility Criteria

• Eligible project sponsors meet criteria under 43-4-1302 C.R.S.

• Eligible project sponsors are in good standing with the Colorado Secretary of State, 
have no projects on the federal inactive list, and have not had a non-compliance 
determination on a sub-allocated recipient audit/visit.

• Projects must demonstrate and report emissions reduction benefits in ozone precursors 
(CDOT can provide technical assistance).

• Proposed transportation infrastructure must complete a review of the project proposal 
for feasibility of their scope.

• 20% local match (hardship waivers possible)

• Infrastructure projects are open to the general public, ADA-compliant, and comply with 
with any other applicable rules and regulations.

CCTAP Evaluation Criteria (Points)

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Grant 
Funding Program (CCTAP)Fall 2024 5

•

•

•

• Emissions reduction benefits in ozone precursors (25)

• Project is located within or supports a disproportionately impacted community, demonstrated 
outreach to engage with those communities, and how the project would help address community 
needs and/or issues (25)

• Project meets NAAPME business purpose and funding focus areas (15)

• Project is prioritized in an approved transportation improvement plan (15)

• Demonstrates likelihood of successful project delivery, including commitment for long-term 
maintenance of infrastructure projects (5)

Demonstrates that the project improves traveling safety, especially for vulnerable road users (5)

Demonstrates improvement/expansion of transportation choice or neighborhood connectivity (5) 

Quality of the Application (5)

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” 
Grant Funding Program (CCTAP) - Evaluation

CCTAP Application Timeline

● November 2024 through February 2025: Open period for questions, technical 
assistance, and identification of engineering review of proposed project.

● 5:00 p.m., Feb. 25, 2025: Deadline to Submit Draft Applications for Review

● March through April 2025: Technical review of applications review for project feasibility.

● 5:00 p.m., April 30, 2025: Deadline to Submit Final Applications.

● May 2025: Applications evaluated by Enterprise staff

● 4:30 p.m., June 26, 2025: Board of Directors review and award projects.

● No later than July 31, 2025: Award Notices Sent to Applicable Parties

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Grant 
Funding Program (CCTAP)

Fall 2024 6

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” 
Grant Funding Program (CCTAP) - Timeline

4

5

6



11/22/2024

3

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” 
Grant Funding Program (CCTAP) - Engagement

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Grant 
Funding Program (CCTAP)

Fall 2024 7

CCTAP Plans for Public Engagement

• Website launch (November 4, 2024):
codot.gov/programs/naapme/naapme-community-clean-transportation-assistance-grant-funding-program

•

•

•

•

•

•

Press Releases for Start and Close of Grant

Presentations to DRCOG, NFRMPO and Upper Front Range TPR

Email messages to potential communities in the nonattainment area. 

NOFO in Spanish

At least one CCTAP webinar

FAQs on website (updated monthly)

naapme.codot.gov

cdot_nonattainmententerprise@state.co.us

CCTAP - Thank You, and Questions?

“Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Grant 
Funding Program (CCTAP)Fall 2024 8

7

8



  

 UPPER FRONT RANGE 

 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION 

 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
P.O. BOX 758  

GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 
  

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTEN STEPHENS COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  

MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

(970) 498-7002 (970) 400-3748 (970) 542-3500 

  

 

RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION 

 

Upper Front Range Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality (CMAQ)  

Improvement Program Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 

 

UPPER FRONT RANGE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the CMAQ improvement program was developed under the Intermodal 

Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA), and was continued with the Transportation 

Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA-21), and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient 

Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU), and is currently being 

conducted under a continuing resolution of MAP-21; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the CMAQ program is to provide a flexible funding source 

for transportation projects and programs that assist non-attainment and attainment/maintenance 

areas in meeting National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS); and 

 
WHEREAS, federal regulations provide guidance on how to administer the CMAQ 

program, while allowing the state to determine how funds will be allocated; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2007, the EPA designated the nine-county Ozone 

Control Area consisting of the Denver metro area, North Front Range Planning area and 

portions of the Upper Front Range Planning area as an Ozone Non-attainment Area; and 

 
WHEREAS, in January 2009, the Transportation Commission adopted Resolution 

Number TC-807 to reflect FHWA's request that CDOT allocate CMAQ funds to Ozone Non 

attainment Areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2019, the Regional Planning Commission (RPC) agreed to allow 

Larimer and Weld Counties to swap CMAQ funding every other year among their 

communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the FY 24 CMAQ funds are eligible for Weld County to expend; and  

 

WHEREAS, Weld County met with their municipal representatives and have put  

forth a recommended project for the RPC to consider; and  

 

 

 



  

 UPPER FRONT RANGE 

 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION 

 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
P.O. BOX 758  

GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 
  

LARIMER COUNTY WELD COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTEN STEPHENS COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  

MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

(970) 498-7002 (970) 400-3748 (970) 542-3500 

Page 2 

 

RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION 

Upper Front Range FY 24 Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Program 

 

WHEREAS, the Upper Front Range TPR and CDOT reviewed the applications and 

determined the Weld County Road 59 and State Highway 52 roundabout application is eligible 

for FY 2024 CMAQ funding; and 

WHEREAS, a total of approximately $1,381,240.00 in CMAQ funding is available for FY 

2024;  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the CMAQ funds for FY 2024 will be allocated 

to Weld County for roundabout intersection improvements at Weld County Road 59 and State 

Highway 52. 

 

FURTHER, CMAQ recipients will report annually in writing to CDOT on the effectiveness 

of their projects and CDOT staff will compile the results into a report for the Transportation Commission 

and FHWA. 
 

FURTHER, if additional CMAQ funding becomes available for FY 2024, the Upper Front Range 

Executive Committee will decide how the funding will be allocated/re-allocated. 

 

 

 

 

               

Jon Becker, Morgan County Commissioner    Date 

Chair of the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region 

 

 

 



Sponsor Contact
Evan Pinkham

State Zip Code
CO 80632

n/a
n/a

X

Project Description

FY24 UFR CMAQ Project Application

Applicant Information

Project Description

Weld County
Project Sponsor Phone

970-400-3727

Municipality
n/a

Mailing Address

Email
epinkham@weld.gov

City

Eligibility - Project Examples  (check all that apply)

At the intersection of Weld County Road 59 and State Highway 52

P.O. Box 758

The proposed intersection improvements include the design and construction of a roundabout at the intersection of WCR 
59 and SH 52. 

Project Location / Limits (mileposts, intersection roadways, etc.)

County

No other projects need to be completed in order to implement this project.

Greeley

Weld

Is there another project or phase that needs to be completed before this project can be implemented?  Please explain.

Emissions will be reduced by reducing the number of idling vehicles at the intersection. Traffic flow improvements will help 
to reduce emissions and improve safety at the intersection.

Additional Project Sponsors (if applicable)

Project Title
WCR 59 and SH 52 Roundabout

How will the project reduce emissions?

Public education / outreach

Idle reduction program

Diesel engine retrofit
Alternative fuels - replacement vehicle
Alternative fuels - refueling station

Freight / intermodal
Transit improvement / expansion

Bicycle / pedestrian facility
Traffic signal (new)
Traffic signal coordination / progression
Congestion reduction / bottleneck removal
HOV lane

= Total Cost

Carpool / vanpool / carshare

$8,899,634.26

$10,568,000.00

Travel demand management

Funding
$1,381,240.00

$287,125.74

Date local funds are available

Multi-modal traveler information Other / innovative project

2026

= Requested CMAQ funding

= Local Match (17.21% required)

= Local Overmatch ( > 17.21%)

Match - Weld County Overmatch - CDOT

Transportation management association
Park and Ride lot

Source of local funds

mailto:epinkham@weld.gov
mailto:epinkham@weld.gov


+

+

+

++

+

+

+

+

+

+ +

+

 © 2024 Microsoft Corporation  © 2024 Maxar  ©CNES (2024) Distribution Airbus DS 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Colorado Department of Transportation

 

 

4 Region  

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

 

1"=XX'                         

                        

                        

                        

      

          

          

   

   

   

    

Numbers

Structure

No Revisions:

Revised:

Void: Sheet Subset:

Detailer:

Designer:

Sheet Number
Subset Sheets:

Init.CommentsDate:

Sheet Revisions As Constructed
9/10/2024Print Date:

Horiz. Scale: Vert. Scale: As Noted

File Name:

Unit Information

Layout

FIR Roundabout

h
e
n
d
e
r
s
o
n
w

 3
:2

8
:4

2
 P

M
 p

w
:\

\c
d
o
t-

p
w

.b
e
n
tl

e
y
.c

o
m

:c
d
o
t-

p
w

-
0
1
p
\D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

\0
2
 M

in
o
r
 P

r
o
je

c
ts

\C
D

O
T

 C
o
ll

a
b
o
r
a
ti

o
n
 P

r
o
je

c
ts

\2
5
1
4
7
 -

 c
o
 5

2
 &

 c
r
 5

9
 i

n
te

r
s
e
c
ti

o
n
 i

m
p
r
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

\0
1
 P

r
e
-
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
\M

o
d
e
ls

\2
5
1
4
7
 W

H
_
C

o
n
ta

in
e
r
.d

g
n

25147 WH_Container.dgn

Project No./Code

the cover page(s)

drawings are applied to

All seals for this set of 25147

FIR
8/22/2024



Navigator
EXISTING CONDITIONS

Evaluation Year 2022
Area Type Rural

Business District No Level of Service Reference Table
Total peak hours per day(AM+PM) 4 hours

Existing intersection is Un-signalized

Approach 1 Approach 2 Approach 3 Approach 4 A 0 - 10 0 - 10
Average Annual Daily Traffic volume (AADT) 1,561 2,400 584 3,000 B >10 - 15 >10 - 20

Peak-hour Volume 260 400 97 500 veh/hr C >15 - 25 >20 - 35
Truck Percentage 20% 19% 12% 14% D >25 - 35 >35 - 55

Existing Delay per Vehicle 18 7 15 10 sec/veh E >35 - 50 >55-80
Number of Lanes 1 1 1 1 F* >50 >80

Existing Intersection % Left Turns 20% 14% 45% 20%
Existing Intersection % Right Turns 45% 18% 12% 12%

Number of Circulating Roundabout Lanes 1

PERFORMANCE

Approach 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
Proposed Capacity 543                   714                   642                   843                   891                   923                   964                   975                   veh/hr

Volume 260                   400                   97                     500                   26                     40                     10                     50                     veh/hr
Delay Reduction per vehicle 3 -7 8 -3 5 5 5 5 sec/veh

Approach 1 2 3 4
Approach Delay Reduction per day 1.6 -2.1 1.1 -0.5 hours

Total Roundabout Delay Reduction per day hours

EMISSION REDUCTIONS

-12.538
-0.164

Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (CO2e)
Total Energy Consumption (MMBTU)

0.185
0.002

12.723
0.166

Roundabouts
This calculator will estimate the emission reductions resulting from building a roundabout at an intersection 

INPUT

Please input approaches in COUNTERCLOCKWISE direction for existing intersection. If the intersection only has three 
approaches, put '0' for 'Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT)' for Approach 4

Intersection Improvements

Traffic Signal Synchronization

Roundabouts

Use the table below to estimate delay (HCM 2010, 
Exhibits 18-4, 19-1)

*LOS F typically indicates that traffic demand has 
exceeded capacity

Delay (s/veh)

Unsignalized 
Intersection

Signalized 
Intersection

LOS

PEAK-HOUR

0.1

OFF-PEAK

0.023

0.018
0.000

-0.001

0.000

0.000
-0.002

Peak-hour
Kilograms/day

-0.018Carbon Monoxide (CO)
Particulate Matter <2.5 μm (PM2.5)

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)

OUTPUT

0.000-0.004
Nitrogen Oxide (NOx)

0.004
-0.023

Pollutant Total
Kilograms/day

Particulate Matter <10 μm (PM10) -0.002 0.002

Off-Peak
Kilograms/day

0.002

Calculate Output







UPPER FRONT RANGE 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
P.O. BOX 758, GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

LARIMER COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS  COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  

MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

(970) 498-7002 

WELD COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS 

ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS 

(970) 400-3748 (970) 542-3500

RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION 

Upper Front Range Multi Modal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) Support of 

Match Reduction Request 

UPPER FRONT RANGE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, the Multimodal Transportation & Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF), created within the 

State Treasury under Colorado Senate Bill 2018-001, was amended under Colorado Senate Bill 2021-260; and 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Transportation Commission (TC) is required in the legislation to establish a 

distribution formula for the MMOF Local Fund based on population and transit ridership criteria; and 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Commission is responsible for ensuring the use of MMOF Local Funds 

complies with the goals, purposes and requirements of the MMOF Program Guide for project selections made 

by municipalities and counties within the MPO’s & TPR’s; and 

WHEREAS, the Upper Front Range Regional Planning Commission is reviewing a Weld County 

MMOF application for contracted on-demand transit services as an eligible project in partnership with many 

Weld County communities contributing local match funding; and 

WHEREAS, Weld County has a match rate requirement of fifty percent (50%); and

WHEREAS, Weld County provided documents supporting the match reduction request in accordance 

with the program guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, both Larimer and Morgan Counties border Weld County, who are members of the 

Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region, were granted twenty-five percent (25%) rate reductions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Upper Front Range Regional Planning Commission 

recommends support of a match rate reduction from fifty percent (50%) to twenty-five percent (25%) for 

Weld County. 

Date Jon Becker, Morgan County Commissioner  

Chair of the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region



 
 
 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

1111 H Street 
Greeley, Colorado 80631 

Website: www.weldgov.com 
Email: epinkham@weld.gov 

Phone: (970) 400-3750 
Fax: (970) 304-6497 

 

 
 
November 7, 2024 
 
RE: FY 2024-2028 MMOF Call for Projects – On-demand Transit Program Local Match Reduction 
 
Dear Colorado Transportation Commission,  
 
Weld County is formally requesting a reduction to the local match requirement for MMOF funding as 
determined by the Colorado Transportation Commission and stated in the MMOF Program Overview. Weld 
County is looking to contract transportation service on behalf of eight Weld County communities to continue 
a much-needed transit mobility program to the region. The program serves our 60+ community as well as 
individuals living with a disability with transportation to a variety of regional destinations at no cost to the 
rider. This much needed program promotes a complete and integrated multimodal system in Upper Front 
Range region. The program meets several of the funding goals of MMOF including:  
 

• Benefits seniors by making aging in place more feasible.  
• Benefits residents of rural and disproportionately impacted communities by providing them with 

more access and flexible public transportation services.  
• Provides enhanced mobility for persons with disabilities.  
• Reduces emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases. 

 
Weld County requests a lowered local match amount due to budget constraints with several of our partner 
communities. The communities of Ault, Fort Lupton, Gilcrest, Keenesburg, Kersey, Nunn, and Platteville 
are looking to continue to provide a portion of the local match for the program, however struggle to come 
up with the proportional amount needed. According to the MMOF Program Overview, Weld County is 
required to match MMOF funding at 50%. We are requesting this amount be reduced to 25%. Weld County 
and our partner communities look forward to continuing to provide this service to our residents and 
municipal partners. Thank you for your consideration of reducing Weld County’s MMOF local match from 
50% to 25%, to be able to contract this very important transportation service to our unincorporated residents 
and small rural communities.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Evan Pinkham, MPA 
Transportation Planner 
Weld County Public Works 

http://www.weldgov.com/
mailto:epinkham@weld.gov


UPPER FRONT RANGE 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
P.O. BOX 758, GREELEY, COLORADO  80632 

LARIMER COUNTY MORGAN COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KRISTIN STEPHENS  COMMISSIONER JON BECKER  

MARK PETERSON, P.E., ENGINEERING BRUCE BASS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

(970) 498-7002 

WELD COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER KEVIN ROSS
ELIZABETH RELFORD, PUBLIC WORKS

(970) 400-3748 (970) 542-3500

RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION 

Upper Front Range Multi Modal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) Support of 

Match Reduction Request 

UPPER FRONT RANGE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, the Multimodal Transportation & Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF), created within the 

State Treasury under Colorado Senate Bill 2018-001, was amended under Colorado Senate Bill 2021-260; and 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Transportation Commission (TC) is required in the legislation to establish a 

distribution formula for the MMOF Local Fund based on population and transit ridership criteria; and 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Commission is responsible for ensuring the use of MMOF Local Funds 

complies with the goals, purposes and requirements of the MMOF Program Guide for project selections made 

by municipalities and counties within the MPO’s & TPR’s; and 

WHEREAS, the Upper Front Range Regional Planning Commission is reviewing a Town of 
Platteville MMOF application for sidewalk improvements; and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Platteville has a match rate requirement of fifty percent (50%); and

WHEREAS, The Town of Platteville provided documents supporting the match reduction request in 

accordance with the program guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Platteville is requesting a match rate of twenty-five percent (25%). 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Upper Front Range Regional Planning Commission 

recommends support of a match rate reduction from fifty percent (50%) to twenty-five percent (25%) for 

the Town of Platteville. 

Date Jon Becker, Morgan County Commissioner

Chair of the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region





Local MMOF Project Application - 2024 
Complete and submit this form-fillable application electronically! Any printed, scanned or converted files will 
not be accepted. Answer all questions fully. 

Transportation Planning Region: Upper Front Range -------------------
Applicant Information 
Sponsor Agency Name: Town of Estes Park 

Applicant Contact (name & title): Laura Blevins, Grants Specialist 
-------------------------

Em a ii: lblevins@estes.org 

Phone: 970-577-357 4 

Project Manager (name & title): Jeff Bailey, Town Engineer 
-------------------------

Em a ii: jbailey@estes.org 

Phone: 970-577-3586 

Project Description 

Project Name: M • A M 1t· M d I T ·1 D • p • t orame venue u 1- o a ra1 es1gn roJec 

Project Type (select all that apply): 

Fixed-route or On-demand Transit: 
D Capital, Rolling Stock 
D Equipment 
D Operations 
D Facility 
D Planning 

D Transportation Demand Management program 
D Multimodal Mobility project enabled by new technology 
D Multimodal Transportation Study 
~ Bicycle or Pedestrian Project 
D Transportation Modeling 
D GHG Mitigation Project 

Project Physical Location & Limits (Briefly describe the routes, mileposts, endpoints, address, boundaries, or 
description of the service area of the project, including intersecting roadways.) 

South side of Moraine Avenue (US 36) between Davis St and Mary's Lake Road in Estes Park, CO. 

County(ies): Municipality(ies ): 

Larimer County Town of Estes Park 



Project Scope of Work: 
List and describe the actual Work and Tasks/Deliverables that will be done. (Do not include why it' s being 
done or its benefits - see Project Benefits section below) 

The scope of work for the Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project includes- 1. Procurement for 
design work: engage a consultant team to initiate project design 2. Right of Way Assessment: conduct 
an evaluation of the land needed for the trail. 3. Utility location: identify and map exisiting uilities in the 
project area. 4. Environmental Review: perform an analysis to assess enviornmental impacts and 
requirements. 5. Clearances: obtain all necessary permits and approvals based on assessments. 
Match Funding Required 
Total Project Cost: $ 350,000 

Required Match Rate (50% default): 0% (Review the Match policy and approved match rate tables) 

Minimum Match Funding Required: $ 0.00 
(auto calculated) -----------

Match Rate Explanation (not required of Counties or Municipali t ies) : 
Provide a brief description of your agency's service area to justify the match rate claimed above. 

Match rate is O in accordance with MMOF application guidel ines. 

Project Funding 
Identify below all the sources and amounts of funds proposed for use on the proposed project, including the 
amounts and years of MMOF funding requested, and whether other project funds are already secured (through 
an award or a formal agency's budget) or are unsecured funds required and being sought through other award 
programs or contributors. 

MMOF Funding Request - Indicate the amount of funds requested by State Fiscal Year (FY), based on the year 
anticipated to be spent on the project. (NOTE: The FY is July 1 - June 30, with FY2025 beginning July 1, 2024) 

FY2025 : $ 300,000 

FY2026: 

FY2027: 

FY2028: 

Total MMOF Requested: $ 300,000 
(auto-calculated) ------------

Other Secured Funding - Provide the Sources, Types, Year(s) and Amounts of project funding that has 
already been secured by an award or a formal budget or commitment (attached all formal documentation). 

Source (a~encv and or012ram name): Tvoe Year(s) Amount($) 

*Provide evidence of all Secured Funding in Attachment C (resolutions, adopted budgets, award notifications, 
letters, etc. ) 



Other Funding Required, but not yet secured - Provide the Sources, Types and Amounts of other required 
project funding that is being sought but is not yet secured by a formal award or commitment, and the date 
anticipated to be secured. NOTE: In-kind funding must be pre-aooroved by COOT. 

Date 
Source (agency and prOQram name): Type anticipated 

Town of Estes Park - 1A Trails Fund or Local 01/25 Community Reinvestment Fund 

Total Project Funding: $ 350 000 00 
(Must equal Total Project Cost above) _____ , __ • ___ _ 

Project Timeline 
Provide the expected month and year for each of the following stages of the project. 

Projected Date to Advertise: 

Projected Start Dates 

Planning: 

Design: 

03/25 Design 
-----

Completed in 2016 

11/25 

Amount($) 

$50,000.00 

Construction: 

Projected Completion Date: 11/26 

TBD, subject to additional grant funding 

Design 

Project Readiness: 
Right of Way (ROW) - Is the ROW for this project secured? Describe and explain the status/issues below and 
attach referenced documents in Attachment G: 

This has not been completed at this time. The design will clarify the Right of Way needs for the project. 

Environmental: Briefly describe what environmental review or clearances have been completed and attach 
referenced documents in Attachment E: 

This has not been completed at this time. The design will clarify the enviornmental reviews or clearances 
that need to be completed. 



Project Benefits 
Briefly describe how the project provides the following specific benefits (n/a if not applicable): 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity - how the project contributes to a complete bicycle, pedestrian, transit 
and/or other multimodal system. 

COOT R4 Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Study completed in 2022 names this area of Moraine 
Ave as a Metro Quest Hot Spot. 
The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will significantly enhance the connectivity of 
the transooctation network in the followina wavs· a 

2. Safety - Project improves roadway safety for non-motorized users. 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will significantly enhance safety for all users 
through the following measures: 
• Dedicated off Roadway Facility for Pedestrians and Cyclists: By establishing a dedicated trail 
for oedestrians and cyclists the oroiect will minimize conflicts between different modes of a 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation - Project reduces GHG by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) or 
increasing multimodal travel. 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will play a crucial role in reducing greenhouse 
gas (GHG) emissions through the following mechanisms: 
• Facilitation of Walking and Biking : By creating a dedicated trail for pedestrians and cyclists 
alone Moraine Avem ,e the oroiect encrn ,races residents and visitors to cboose active a 

4. Equity - Project benefits Disproportionately Impacted (DI ) communities or other underserved and 
disadvantaged community members. 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will significantly benefit disproportionately 
impacted (DI) communities and other underserved and disadvantaged groups through the 
following measures:lmproved Access to Transportation : By creating safer and more reliable 
transooctation ootions a Iona Moraine Avem ,e the oroiect ens1,ces that all residents oactic1 ,la riv a 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health - Project provides access to medical facilities and services or to 
recreation areas, increases active transportation or provides other quality-of -life benefits. 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will enhance quality of life and public health in 
several significant ways: 
• Improved Access to Recreation Areas: The development of a consistent network of sidewalks 
and sboulders will facilitate easier access to local oarks trails RMNP Ibis imnroved a 

6. Economic Impact - Project increases access to/from/wit hin employment or economic centers, bolsters 
tourism or commerce, or decreases the burden on local resources. 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project is poised to generate increased economic 
benefits through various avenues: 
• Increased Accessibility to Local Businesses: The enhancement of transportation infrastructure 
a Iona Moraine Avem ,e will imorove access to local hotels resta, ,rants and attractions Ibis a 

7. Cost-Benefit - Project provides substantial benefits relative to the total cost of the project. 

Cost-Benefit: The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project presents a compelling 
cost-benefit scenario: 
• Substantial Benefits Relative to Costs: The design phase will focus on maximizing the benefits 
associated with imnroved safety enhanced connectivity and red, ,ced oreenbrn ,se aas a 



Planning & Support 
Describe relevant planning, studies and history related to the project: 

1. Estes Valley Master Trails Plan (2016): 
o This plan outlines the vision for a comprehensive trails network in the Estes Valley, 
emphasizing connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists. It identifies key corridors, 
including Moraine Avenue, and sets forth strategies to enhance multimodal Q 
Describe the local, regional, statewide, public and private support for the project and provide evidence in 
Attachment C. 

Local Support 
1. Town of Estes Park: 
o The Town has committed funding and resources to the project, recognizing its 
importance in enhancing local transportation infrastructure and promoting p 

List all Local, Regional and/or Statewide Plans supporting and/or identifying the project: 

List of Local, Regional, and Statewide Plans Supporting the Project 
1. Estes Valley Master Trails Plan: Identifies key trails and multimodal connections throughout 
the Estes Valley, emphasizing the need for improved accessibility and connectivity along 
Moraine Avenue. 

Supplemental Attachments Required - please label attachments accordingly. 

Required of All Projects: 
~ Attachment A - Cost estimate and project implementation schedule (for Transit: outline the capital, 

operating and equipment costs and timelines separately) 
~ Attachment B - Evidence of Secured Funding, including sponsor and contributing agency resolutions, 

Award Notifications, commitment letters, etc. 
~ Attachment C - Evidence of supporting planning, studies and local/regional/statewide support 

Required of Infrastructure Projects: 
~ Attachment D - Maps, plans and photographs 
~ Attachment E - Environmental Review 
~ Attachment F - Proposed maintenance plans, agreements, covenants 
~ Attachment G - Right-of-way, easements, legal property description 

Q 



CDOT Review & Recommendations 
CDOT Review Lead: 

Comments/Concerns/Questions 

Eligibility 

Budget/ 
Funding 

Readiness/ 
Timeline 

Scope & 
Feasibility 

Other 

Date: 
Recommendations 



GramAward - lGA Initiation 
IGA Execuiion 

Design Phase 

Ermronmental Clearance 

Ria:ht of Wav Clearance 

UnlrtvClearance 

floodplain & 404 Permit 

COOT Funds Encumbered - yr 1 
Final Oeshzn Comoledon 
Close Out- estfmate90 days 

D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Moraine Avenue Trail Design 

ATTACHMENT A 

*The estimated design costs are based on previous Town projects of similar size and scope. 

Moraine Avenue Multimodal Trail Design- Timeline 
Mar2025 ADr2025 Mav2025 Jun2025 Jul2025 Nov2025 Dec2025 Jan2026 Mar2026 Jul2026 

X 

X X ' ' 
X X ' ' ' 

X 

Mora ine Avenue Multimodal Trail Design- Budget 
TASK NAME DESCRIPTION Total Cost 

Topographic Survey of trail 

Surveying alignment corridor s 30,000.00 
Environmental surveying and 

Environmental research s 25,000.00 
Subsurface uti lity 
engineering; utility locates 

SUE and potholing s 60 000.00 
Final design construction 

Design Plans plans s 210 000.00 
Cost estimate, special 
provisions, project specials, 

Contract Documents etc. s 25,000.00 

Aug2026 Seo2026 Nov2026 

X 

X ' ' 
X X X 

' ' ' 
X X 

X 

' X 



Q_ 
-------1~ . 

ATTACHMENT B 

TOWNoFESTESPARI<._ 

October 22, 2024 

Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region 

Dear Members of the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region , 

I am writing to express the Town of Estes Park's strong support for the funding 
applications related to the Moraine Avenue Trail Design , the Trolley Facility, and 
Transit Operations. These projects represent a sign ificant opportunity for our 
community to enhance transportation options and improve overall quality of life. 

Moraine Avenue Trail Design: This project will provide safe and accessible 
pathways for pedestrians and cyclists, promoting active transportation and outdoor 
recreation. The trai l will connect key areas within our town, encouraging residents 
and visitors alike to explore our beautiful surroundings. Additionally, it aligns with our 
goals of enhancing public health and reducing vehicle congestion . 

Trolley Facility: The development of a dedicated Trolley Facility will not only 
improve the efficiency of our transit services but will also ensure that we can 
accommodate future growth in ridership. A well-des igned facility will support 
sustainable transportation solutions, reduce our carbon footprint, and provide 
residents with reliable options for getting around town . 

Transit Operations: Continued investment in our transit operations is crucial for 
maintaining accessibility and mobility for all community members. By supporting this 
initiative, we can ensure that our transit system remains robust and responsive to the 
needs of our residents, especially those who rely on public transportation . 

These projects will positively impact our community by fostering connectivity , 
enhancing mobility, and promoting environmenta l sustainability. They wil l contribute 
to a vibrant, accessible town that encourages healthy lifestyles and supports local 
tou rism. 

We believe that the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region 's 
investment in these projects will yield long-lasting benefits for Estes Park and its 
res idents. Thank you for considering our support for these important initiatives. 

Gary Hall 
Mayor, Town of Estes Park 
cc: Jeff Bailey, Town Engineer, Town of Estes Park 

170 MAGREGOR A VE. P.O. BOX 1200, ESTES PARK CO. 80517 WWW.ESTES.ORG 

Board of Trustees 
Mayor & Trustees 

970-577-4777 
gha ll@estes.org 



D. 
TOWN OF ESTES PAllK..__ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Moraine Avenue Trail Design 

ATTACHMENT C 
Relevant Planning, Studies, and History Related to the Project 

1. Estes Valley Master Trails Plan (2016): 

o This plan outlines the vision for a comprehensive trails network in the Estes 
Valley, emphasizing connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists. It identifies key 
corridors, including Moraine Avenue, and sets forth strategies to enhance 
multimodal transportation options, thereby supporting the proposed project. 

2. Town of Estes Park Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) (2024-2028): 

o The Capital Improvement Plan prioritizes infrastructure projects that promote 
community development and sustainability. The Moraine Ave Multimodal Trail 
Design Project is included in the 2025 CIP to improve transportation 
accessibility, ensuring alignment with the Town's long-term growth strategies. 

3. 2024 Town of Estes Park Strategic Plan: 

o The Strategic Plan provides a framework for addressing transportation needs 
and enhancing quality of life for residents and visitors. The inclusion of the 
Moraine Avenue project reflects the Town's commitment to improving public 
safety and fostering multimodal transportation options as part of broader 
community goals. 

4. Appendix B, Upper Front Range TPR Project List: 

o This project list serves as a reference for regional transportation priorities, 
ensuring that local projects align with broader planning efforts. The Moraine Ave 
Multimodal Improvements Project is identified as essential for enhancing 
regional connectivity and supporting sustainable transportation solutions. 

5. Upper Front Range 2045 Regional Transportation Plan (September 2020, pg 27): 

o This plan outlines transportation goals and projects aimed at improving mobility 
across the Upper Front Range region . The Moraine Ave Multimodal Trail 
Design Project is included as a key initiative to address transportation needs 
and promote active travel, emphasizing its significance in the regional context. 

In summary, these planning documents collectively underscore the importance of the Moraine 
Ave Multimodal Trail Design Project in enhancing connectivity, safety, and sustainability within 
the Estes Park community and the broader Upper Front Range region . 



D. 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'--

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Moraine Avenue Trail Design 

ATTACHMENT C 
LOCAL, REGIONAL, AND STATEWIDE PLANS SUPPORTING THE PROJECT 

Local Support 

1. Town of Estes Park: 

o The Town has committed funding and resources to the project, recognizing 
its importance in enhancing local transportation infrastructure and 
promoting community health. 

2. Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) : 

o TAB has endorsed the project, highlighting its role in increasing safety and 
accessibility for non-motorized users in Estes Park. 

List of Local, Regional, and Statewide Plans Supporting the Project 

1. Estes Valley Master Trails Plan: Identifies key trai ls and multimodal connections 
throughout the Estes Valley, emphasizing the need for improved accessibility and 
connectivity along Moraine Avenue. 

2. Larimer County Open Space Plan: Supports the integration of trails and multimodal 
transportation options within the county's open spaces, promoting environmental 
stewardship and recreation access. 

3. Town of Estes Park Capital Improvement Plan : Outlines funding priorities for 
infrastructure projects, including the Moraine Ave trail design , highlighting its 
importance for community development and safety. 

4. 2024 Estes Park Strategic Plan: Emphasizes enhancing transportation options and 
connectivity as a key goal, aligning with the objectives of the Moraine Ave project. 

5. Upper Front Range 2045 Regional Transportation Plan: Identifies the need for 
improved multimodal transportation options to meet future regional mobility demands, 
supporting the goals of the Moraine Ave project. 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'--

MuLti-ModaL Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Moraine Avenue Trail Design 

ATTACHMENT C 

6. Colorado Statewide Transportation Plan: Highlights the importance of multimodal 
transportation solutions across the state, endorsing projects that enhance connectivity 
and reduce vehicular traffic. 

7. Estes Park Environmental Sustainability Plan (2022): Focuses on reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions through sustainable transportation initiatives, aligning with the goals of 
the Moraine Ave trail design. 

8. Larimer County Transportation Master Plan: Promotes multimodal transportation 
options and highlights the importance of connectivity for economic development and 
community well-being. 

9. Colorado Department of Transportation, R4 Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Study, 2022. 
This Safety Study done in 2022 names this area of Moraine Ave as a Metro Quest Hot 
Spot. 

These plans collectively reinforce the significance of the Moraine Ave Multi modal Trail Design 
Project in promoting sustainable transportation and improving access in the Estes Park 
community. 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'--

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
ATTACHMENT E 

Environmental Review 

Environmental review will be included in the scope of work for the design phase of this project. 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
ATTACHMENT F 

Proposed maintenance plans, agreements, covenants 

Maintenance of the future trail will fall to the Town of Estes Park as the local agency per 
state statute of maintenance responsibilities within COOT right-of-way. 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARl'-.__ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
ATTACHMENT G 

Right-of-way, easements, legal property 
description 

Right-of-way needs such as easements or other acquisitions will also be determined during 
the design phase of this project. 



Reference List 

El 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant 
Submission Estes Park Moraine Avenue 

Trail Design 

1. Estes Valley Master Trails Plan. (2016). Town of Estes Park. 

2. Larimer County Open Space Plan. (2021). Larimer County. 

3. Town of Estes Park Capital Improvement Plan (2024-2028). (2024). Town of Estes Park. 

4. 2024 Estes Park Strategic Plan. (2024). Town of Estes Park. 

5. Upper Front Range 2045 Regional Transportation Plan . (2020). North Front Range 
Metropolitan Planning Organization 

6. Colorado Statewide Transportation Plan . (2022). Colorado Department of Transportation. 

7. Environmental Sustainability Plan. (2022). Town of Estes Park. Retrieved from [Estes 
Park Website] 

8. COOT Regional Plans. (2021). Colorado Department of Transportation. 

9. Larimer County Transportation Master Plan. (2021). Larimer County. 

10. Upper Front Range TPR Project List. (2020). Upper Front Range Transportation 
Planning Region . 

11 . Colorado Department of Transportation, R4 Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Study, 2022. 



ESTES PARK 
COLORADO 

Town of Estes Park 
Public Works 

Moraine Avenue 
Multimodal Trail 

Attachment D 

N 

A 
1 in= 654 ft 

0 360 720 

Feet 

This draft: document was prepared for internal use by the 
Town of Estes Park, CO. The Town makes no claim as to 
the accuracy or completeness of the data contained hereon. 

Due to security concerns, The Town requests th at you 
do not post this document on the internet or otherwise 
make it avai lable to persons unknown to you. 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
ATTACHMENT 1 

'This document has been provided to address the 'Project Benefits · section of the grant. While the full response can be found in the designated 
section of the PDF, we are offering this printed version for the reviewer's convenience, should they prefer ii in this format 

PROJECT BENEFITS 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity 
The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will significantly enhance the connectivity 
of the transportation network in the following ways: 

• Improved Bicycle and Pedestrian Access: The project will create a detached multi modal 
trail network along Moraine Avenue (Highway 36) , providing dedicated off highway space for 
cyclists and pedestrians. This improvement will promote safer travel for non-motorized 
users, encouraging more peop le to walk or bike to their destinations. 

• Enhanced Connectivity to Key Destinations: The trail will facilitate easier access for both 
residents and visitors to Rocky Mountain National Park. This trail will make it more 
conven ient for residents and visitors to explore the area without relying solely on vehicles, 
contributing to a reduction in traffic congestion . 

• Integration with Existing Transit Systems: The design will consider existing transit options, 
ensuring that the trail connects seamlessly with bus stops and other public transportation 
hubs. This multi modal approach will allow users to transition easily between biking, 

walking, and public transit, enhancing overall accessibility. 

• Support for Sustainable Transportation: By encouraging active transportation options, the 

project aligns with sustainability goals by reducing reliance on motor vehicles. This 
supports environmental objectives and promotes healthier lifestyles within the community. 

• Conformance with Planning Objectives: The project is in line with the 2016 Estes Valley 
Master Trails Plan, which emphasizes the need for a comprehensive trail network. By 

addressing these planning goals, the project will contribute to a well-integrated multi modal 
transportation system in the region. 

2. Safety 
The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will significantly enhance safety for all 
users through the following measures: 

• Dedicated off Roadway Facility for Pedestrians and Cyclists: By establishing a dedicated 
trail for pedestrians and cyclists, the project will minimize conflicts between different 
modes of transportation . This separation is crucial for enhancing safety on Moraine Avenue, 
particularly in areas where paths are currently inadequate or non-existent. 

• Wider and More Accessible Paths: The design will include wider concrete paths that 

accommodate both pedestrians and cyclists, addressing current safety concerns. This 

Attachment 1- pg 1 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES P~ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Moraine Avenue Trail Design 

improvement will create a more comfortable and secure travel experience, encouraging 
increased use of active transportation options. 

• Reduction of Conflicts: Segments of Moraine Avenue that currently lack sufficient 
shoulders will be upgraded to provide separate corri dors between vehicle traffic and non
motorized users. This will significantly reduce the risk of crashes and enhance overall safety 
for everyone utilizing the road. 

• Alignment with Safety Standards: The project will adhere to established safety standards 
and guidelines, ensuring that all improvements meet with best practices for pedestrian and 
cyclist safety. This commitment to safety will foster a more secure environment for all users. 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will play a crucial role in reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions through the following mechanisms: 

• Facilitation of Walking and Biking: By creating a dedicated trail for pedestrians and 
cyclists along Moraine Avenue, the project encourages residents and visitors to choose 
active transportation options over motorized veh icles. This shift promotes a healthier, more 
sustainable mode of travel. 

• Reduction in Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT): The design will lead to a decrease in vehicle 
miles traveled (VMT) by providing a convenient and safe alternative for commuting and 
recreational activities. As more people opt for wa lking and biking, the reliance on personal 
vehicles will dimin ish, directly contributing to red uced traffic congestion and associated 
emissions. 

• Lower Emissions of Air Pollutants: By decreasing VMT, the project will not only lower 
greenhouse gas emissions but also reduce other harmful air pollutants. This improvement 
in air quality is vital for public health and the envi ronment, making Estes Park a more 
pleasant place to live and visit. 

• Contribution to Climate Change Mitigation: The in itiative aligns with broader climate 
action goals by fostering sustainable transportat ion solutions. By prioritizing active transit 
options, the project supports local and regional effo rts to combat climate change and 
promote environmental stewardship. 

4. Equity: 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project wi ll significantly benefit disproportionately 
impacted (DI) communities and other underserved and disadvantaged groups through the 
following measures: 

Attachment 1- pg 2 



D. 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-.__ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Moraine Avenue Trail Design 

• Improved Access to Transportation: By creating safer and more reliable transportation 
options along Moraine Avenue, the project ensures that all residents, particularly those 
from DI communities, have equitable access to vital destinations such as RMNP, 
businesses and local amenities. 

• Enhanced Connectivity: The project will strengthen connectivity by facilitating easier 
movement for individuals who may not have access to personal vehicles. This improved 
access will help bridge mobility gaps, enabling residents to reach employment, education, 
and healthcare services. 

• Safer Routes for All Users: By providing dedicated pathways for pedestrians and cyclists, 
the project reduces safety concerns that disproportionately affect vulnerable populations. 
Wider and more accessible paths will ensure safer travel for all users, including children, 
seniors, and individuals with disabilities. 

• Fostering Inclusion: The project promotes social equity by considering the needs of 
historically underserved populations in its design and implementation. Engaging with these 
communities throughout the planning process will ensure their voices are heard and their 
needs addressed . 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health: 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project will enhance quality of life and public 
health in several significant ways: 

• Improved Access to Recreation Areas: The development of a consistent network of 
sidewalks and shoulders will facilitate easier access to local parks, trails, RMNP. This 
improved connectivity encourages residents and visitors to engage in outdoor activities, 
promoting physical fitness and mental well-being. 

• Increased Active Transportation: By providing safe and dedicated spaces for walking and 
biking, the project will encourage more individuals to choose active transportation options. 
This shift not only fosters healthier lifestyles but also reduces reliance on motor vehicles, 

leading to lower emissions and improved air quality. 

• Access to Essential Services: The trail will enhance access to essential services, including 
medical facilities and local businesses. Improved transportation options ensure that 
residents can reach healthcare providers and other necessary amenities more easily, 
contributing to better overall health outcomes. 

• Promotion of Community Engagement: A well-designed multi modal trail encourages 
community interaction and engagement, fostering a sense of belonging and improving 
social cohesion among residents. Increased foot and bike traffic can also support local 
businesses, contributing to a vibrant community atmosphere. 

Attachment 1- pg 3 



D 
TOWN or ESTES PARI'--

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Moraine Avenue Trail Design 

6. Economic Impact: 

The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Tra il Design Project is poised to generate increased economic 
benef its through various avenues: 

• Increased Accessibility to Local Businesses: The enhancement of transportation 
infrastructure along Moraine Avenue will improve access to local hotels, restaurants, and 
attractions. This increased accessibility will likely stimulate higher foot traffic, encouraging 

visitors to explore more businesses and services in t he area. 

• Boosting Tourism: By facilitating safer and more convenient travel to local attractions, the 

project will bolster tourism. Tourists are more likely to utilize local amenities when they can 

easily access them, thus supporting the economy. 

• Support for Local Economy: The project will not only benefit tourism but will also support 
local employment. Improved mobility for residents and visitors can lead to a more robust 

local economy, as businesses thrive with increased patronage. 

• Reduced Burden on Local Resources: By promot ing alternative transportation modes, 

such as walking and biking, the project will decrease reliance on personal vehicles. This 

reduction in vehicle use can alleviate congestion and wear on local infrastructure, 

ultimately decreasing maintenance costs and preserving local resources. 

7. Cost-Benefit: The Moraine Ave Multi Modal Trail Design Project presents a compelling cost

benefit scenario : 

• Substantial Benefits Relative to Costs: The design phase will focus on maximizing the 
benef its associated with improved safety, enhanced connectivity, and reduced greenhouse 

gas emissions. By carefully evaluating these factors, the project aims to ensure that the 

advantages significantly outweigh the total costs involved . 

• Investment in Community Infrastructure: This project represents a st rategic investment in 

the community's future. By facilitating safer travel for pedestrians and cyclists, it promotes 
a healthier, more active lifestyle while addressing existing infrastructure deficiencies. 

• Long-Term Economic Gains: Enhanced multi modal connectivity will likely lead to 

increased tourism and economic activity, contributing to a stronger local economy. The 
anticipated rise in foot traffic to local businesses will generate additional revenue, further 

justifying the upfront costs of the project. 

• Environmental and Health Benefits: The project's focus on reducing vehicle miles traveled 

(VMT) will contribute to lower emissions, improving air quality and public health. These 
long-term benefits, including potential reductions in healthcare costs associated with 

pollution-related illnesses, add further value to the investment. 

Attachment 1- pg 4 



Local MMOF Project Application - 2024 
Complete and submit this form-fillable application electronically! Any printed, scanned or converted files will 
not be accepted. Answer all questions fully. 

Transportation Planning Region: Upper Front Range -------------------
Applicant Information 
Sponsor Agency Name: Town of Estes Park 

Applicant Contact (name & title): Laura Blevins, Grants Specialist 
-------------------------

Em a ii: lblevins@estes.org 

Phone: 970-577-357 4 

Project Manager (name & title): Dana Klein, Parking and Transit Manager 

Email: Dklein@estes.org 

Phone: 970-577-3577 

Project Description 
Project Name: E t p k T ·t O t· s es ar rans1 pera ions 

Project Type (select all that apply): 

Fixed-route or On-demand Transit: 
D Capital, Rolling Stock 
D Equipment 
~ Operations 
D Facility 
D Planning 

D Transportation Demand Management program 
D Multimodal Mobility project enabled by new technology 
D Multimodal Transportation Study 
D Bicycle or Pedestrian Project 
D Transportation Modeling 
D GHG Mitigation Project 

Project Physical Location & Limits (Briefly describe the routes, mileposts, endpoints, address, boundaries, or 
description of the service area of the project, including intersecting roadways.) 

The Town of Estes Park and Larimer County (State Hwy 66). Six routes serving 55 stops. 

County(ies): Municipality(ies ): 

Larimer County Town of Estes Park 



Project Scope of Work: 
List and describe the actual Work and Tasks/Deliverables that will be done. (Do not include why it's being 
done or its benefi ts - see Project Benefits section below) 

This scope of work outlines the necessary tasks and deliverables for implementing extended 
service hours for The Peak Transit in Estes Park. The request for the MMOF funds is to supplement 4 
hours of daily transit operations in 2026, 27 & 28 funding years based on what we find best serves the 
public from the CMAQ pilot programs we plan to enact in the 2025 season . The CMAQ pilot programs 
will be based on recommendations from the Transit Development Plan and Multi modal Transportation a 
Match Funding Required 
Total Project Cost: $ 1,754,288 

Required Match Rate (50% default): 0% (Review the Match policy and approved match rate tables) 

Minimum Match Funding Required: $ 0.00 
(auto calculated) -----------

Match Rate Explanation (not required of Counties or Municipalit ies): 
Provide a brief description of your agency's service area to justify the match rate claimed above. 

Per tables in grant documents, Estes Park is at 0% match . 

Project Funding 
Identify below all the sources and amounts of funds proposed for use on the proposed project, including the 
amounts and years of MMOF funding requested, and whether other project funds are already secured (through 
an award or a formal agency's budget) or are unsecured funds required and being sought through other award 
programs or contributors. 

MMOF Funding Request - Indicate the amount of funds requested by State Fiscal Year (FY), based on the year 
anticipated to be spent on the project. (NOTE: The FY is July 1 - June 30, with FY2025 beginning July 1, 2024) 

FY2025: $0 

FY2026: $68,704 

FY2027: $71 ,440 

FY2028: $74,306 

Total MMOF Requested: $ 214,448 
(auto-calculated) ------------

Other Secured Funding - Provide the Sources, Types, Year(s) and Amounts of project funding that has 
already been secured by an award or a formal budget or commitment (attached all formal documentation). 

Source (a'!encv and or02ram name): Tvoe Year(s) Amount($) 
Estimated Town of Estes Park Adopted Budget Local 2025 $ 400,000.00 *Transportation Fees 2260* 

Estimated Town of Estes Park Adopted Budget Local 2026 $ 408,000.00 
Estimated Town of Estes Park Adopted Budget Local 2027 $416,160.00 

*Provide evidence of all Secured Funding in Attachment C (resolutions, adopted budgets, award notifications, 
letters, etc.) 



Other Funding Required, but not yet secured - Provide the Sources, Types and Amounts of other required 
project funding that is being sought but is not yet secured by a formal award or commitment, and the date 
anticipated to be secured. NOTE: In-kind fundin'? must be pre-approved by CDOT. 

Date 
Source (agency and pr012ram name): Type anticipated Amount($) 

FTA 5311- 2025 State 06/25 $102,132.00 

FTA 5311- 2026 State 06/26 $ 105,196.00 

FTA 5311- 2027 State 06/27 $ 108,352.00 

Total Project Funding: $ 1 754 288 00 
(Must equal Total Project Cost above) ____ , __ , __ • __ _ 

Project Timeline 
Provide the expected month and year for each of the following stages of the project. 

Projected Date to Advertise: 

Projected Start Dates 

Planning: 

Design: 

Construction: 

Projected Completion Date: 

Project Readiness: 

07/25 

01/25 

12/27 

Right of Way (ROW) - Is the ROW for this project secured? Describe and explain the status/issues below and 
attach referenced documents in Attachment G: 

N/A 

Environmental: Briefly describe what environmental review or clearances have been completed and attach 
referenced documents in Attachment E: 

N/A 



Project Benefits 
Briefly describe how the project provides the following specific benefits (n/a if not applicable): 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity - how the project contributes to a complete bicycle, pedestrian, transit 
and/or other multimodal system. 

The project enhances connectivity by integrating The Peak (Estes Park Transit) with existing 
transportation options in Estes Park. It links key destinations, such as parks and shops, 
facilitating seamless transfers among biking , walking , and public transit. This integration 
ncamates s11stainable travel imncaves accessibility far residents and visitars and red11ces tcafficP 

2. Safety - Project improves roadway safety for non-motorized users. 

The project improves roadway safety for non-motorized users by enhancing connectivity 
through The Peak (Estes Park Transit). By connecting key destinations, it encourages seamless 
transfers among various modes of transport, promoting safer travel options for pedestrians 
and cvclists a 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation - Project reduces GHG by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) or 
increasing multimodal travel. 

Supporting the The Peak (Estes Park Transit) service through this grant contributes to GHG 
mitigation by reducing vehicle miles traveled (VMT). The electric trolley provides a reliable 
alternative to personal vehicles, encouraging public transit use and decreasing car traffic. 
Ibis shift lowers emissions and ncamates m1 lltimadal travel enbancina the s1 ,stainabilitv at a 

4. Equity - Project benefits Disproportionately Impacted (DI ) communities or other underserved and 
disadvantaged community members. 

The Peak (Estes Park Transit) service project benefits disproportionately impacted (DI) 
communities by improving access to essential services and recreational areas for 
underserved residents. By offering an affordable and reliable transportation option, the 
tcallev belns bridae mabilitv cans far ,1-1 emnlnvees law-income families seniars and a 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health - Project provides access to medical facilities and services or to 
recreation areas, increases active transportation or provides other quality-of -life benefits. 

The project enhances quality of life and public health by ensuring reliable access to medical 
facilities , recreational areas, and essential services. The trolley facilitates transportation to 
healthcare providers, removing barriers to care. Additionally, it promotes active 
transnartatian s1 mnartina walkina and bikina and connects residents ta narks fasterina a 

6. Economic Impact - Project increases access to/from/within employment or economic centers, bolsters 
tourism or commerce, or decreases the burden on local resources. 

The Estes Park Trolley service increases economic impact by improving access to 
employment centers, local businesses, and tourism hotspots. It encourages residents and 
visitors to explore attractions, stimulating local commerce and attracting new customers. 
Rv red11cina reliance an nersanal vehicles the tcallev also eases the b11rden an local 

7. Cost-Benefit - Project provides substantial benefits relative to the total cost of the project. 

The Estes Park Trolley service project offers substantial benefits relative to its total cost. It 
promotes sustainable transportation and enhances community connectivity, generating 
long-term savings through reduced VMT. Additionally, it boosts local commerce by 
imncavina access ta essential services and recreational areas 11ltimatelv enbancina the 



Planning & Support 
Describe relevant planning, studies and history related to the project: 

The Peak (Estes Park Transit) has undergone significant development and planning in recent years, 
underscoring the Town's commitment to enhancing public transportation. 
This project, for which the Town is requesting $214,447.68, is rooted in various strategic initiatives 
and studies that highlight the urgent need for an effective transit system in Estes Park. p 
Describe the local, regional, statewide, public and private support for the project and provide evidence in 
Attachment C. 

The project to expand The Peak (Estes Park Transit) has garnered broad support at local, 
regional, and statewide levels, reflecting a collective commitment to enhancing public transportation 
and promoting sustainability. 
1.LocalSupport: p 
List all Local, Regional and/or Statewide Plans supporting and/or identifying the project: 

1. Colorado Statewide Transit Plan (CSTP): 
This plan outlines strategies for improving public transit across the state, emphasizing the 
importance of accessibility, sustainability, and regional connectivity, which aligns with the 
goals of expanding the Estes Park Transit system. 

Supplemental Attachments Required - please label attachments accordingly. 

Required of All Projects: 
[gJ Attachment A - Cost estimate and project implementation schedule (for Transit: outline the capital, 

operating and equipment costs and timelines separately) 
[gJ Attachment B - Evidence of Secured Funding, including sponsor and contributing agency resolutions, 

Award Notifications, commitment letters, etc. 
[gJ Attachment C - Evidence of supporting planning, studies and local/regional/statewide support 

Required of Infrastructure Projects: 
[gJ Attachment D - Maps, plans and photographs 
D Attachment E - Environmental Review 
D Attachment F - Proposed maintenance plans, agreements, covenants 
D Attachment G - Right-of-way, easements, legal property description 

Q 



COOT Review & Recommendations 
COOT Review Lead: 

Comments/Concerns/Questions 

Eligibility 

Budget/ 
Funding 

Readiness/ 
Timeline 

Scope & 
Feasibility 

Other 

Date: 
Recommendations 



C 
0 

J :~ -~ 
~ 

Eu, a, 
.0 C E 
:I 0 ·Cl) .:; 1-

1"'1 ' ... ca "0 
~ C ._ C 

~ 
. ~ 

1=~====>-I ~ 

0 

~ 
~ 

ca Cl> ca 
,";:. C. ... 
- 0 Cl) 
"0 ... 1:111 
C •- "0 
:I Ill :I 

LL ~ CO 
Ill ... I 
C I- <( 
0 ~ I.:; :a z 
C. ll. w 
0 111 I: 
..... Cl) J: 
~ ti u 
0 W <( 

3: ~ :: 
:I 
I: 

FY2026 

FY20Z1 

FY2028 

hours 

Rate / gals 
Contract Orivers at est imated 

ra te of $85.00 hr 85 4 
Vehicle Rental at 18.00 hr 18 4 

Fuel Estimate at $4 gal 4 10 

Contract Drivers at estimated 

rate of $89.25 hr 89.25 4 

Vehicle Rental at 18.25 hr 18..25 4 

Fuel Est imate at $4 eat 4 10 

Contract Drivers al est imated 

rate of $93. 71 hr 93.71 4 

Vehicle Rental at 18.50 hr 18.5 4 

Fuel Estimate at $4 gal 4 10 

"<t 

D 
TOWN OF ESTES P~ 

Estes Park Transit Operations Budget and Timeline 
days/ 
mo 31 31 30 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 30 Total 

mont~ Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Oec Jan Feb Mar Ap1 May Jun 

10540 10540 10200 6800 0 0 0 0 0 0 3400 10200 $ 51.680.00 

2232 2232 2160 1440 0 0 0 0 0 0 720 2160 $ 10,944.00 

1240 1240 1200 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 1200 $ 6.080.00 

$ 68,704.00 FY2026 

11067 11067 10710 7140 0 0 0 0 0 0 3570 10710 $ 54,264.00 

2263 2263 2190 1460 0 0 0 0 0 0 730 2190 $ 11,096.00 

1240 1240 1200 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 1200 $ 6,080.00 

s 71,440.00 FY 2027 

11620.04 11620.04 11245.2 7497 0 0 0 0 0 0 3748A 11245.2 $ 56,975.68 

2294 2294 2220 1480 0 0 0 0 0 0 740 2220 $ 11,248.00 

1240 1240 1200 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 1200 $ 6,080.00 

$ 74.303.68 FY 2028 

$ 214,447.68 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES P~ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

ATTACHMENT B 

EVIDENCE OF SECURED FUNDING 

1. Town of Estes Park 2025 Adopted Budget-(currently in approval process)= $400,000 

5 



LINE ITEMS 

TE 
OF 

PARK 

ORGUNIT SUMMARY II LINE ITEMS II HISTORY II REVIEW II~ 
ACCTNU M: 101-5600-456.22--60 ACCTTITLE.: TRANSPORTATION FEES 0 6JCODf: 2260 ACCTCATEGO RY: PROFES5l0NALSVC AND FEES 

SSRS NAVI GATION 

I ORGU NIT.Ll,NE ITEM DETAIL{PDF) v J ~ TRANSPORTATION FEES 

FY 2024 

BUDGET EmMAn BASE 

$389,281 S389(1{1fl S400,000 
" ADJTOIIASE 

2.75% $10,719 

FY 2025 PACKAGES { FY 2025 TOTAL PROPOSED ' FY 2026 PLANNING FY2027 PU 

so \.. s.mo,ooo .I 
~ 

- __,,_ 

DESCRIPTION 

or increaeed operati 

5 :09:38 PM) 

reased operational costs. Wo 

- :33PM I 

le.,,.ls - check with Dana jd udson@estes.org @ 8/12/ 02 s:aa :s l'M) 

so so 

LINE ITEM 

udget an win ask for a 2024 contribution 

FY , 
IIU 



I FY 2025 PROPOSED I 

I D£PT AOHN NET CHANGE 1UTA1 BASE PROPOSED ,. 
$0 $0 $10,719 $400,000 2.75% 

"NNING FY 2028 PlANNING FY 2029 PlANNING FY 2030 PlANNING 

so so so 

MATRIX 

!OZA 

IGET 
FY 2024 ESTIMATE FY 2025 PROPOSED fYZOZfi Pt.ANNING FYZ027 Pt.ANNING FY' zms PlAHNJNG FY' 2029 Pt.ANNING ATTAOIMfNTS 

;89,281 $389,000 so so so so so .. JQ) 

so so 5593,000 so so so so .. JQ) 

so so [5193,000) so so so so .. JQ) 



PLANNING AND SUPPORT 

e 
TOWN OF ESTES PAR!'-._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

ATTACHMENT C 

Describe relevant planning, studies and history related to the project: The Estes Park Transit 
system, known as The Peak, has undergone significant development and planning in recent years, 
underscoring the Town's commitment to enhancing public transportation . This project, for which the 
Town is requesting $214,447.68, is rooted in various strategic initiatives and studies that highlight the 
urgent need for an effective transit system in Estes Park. 

1. 2024 Estes Park Strategic Plan: This plan outlines the Town's vision for improving 
transportation options to enhance accessibility for residents and visitors. It emphasizes the 
importance of a robust transit system to support economic growth and environmental 
sustainability, aligning with the proposed project to expand the trolley service. 

2. 2022 Estes Park Environmental Sustainability Task Force Report: This report emphasizes 
the need for sustainable transportation solutions to reduce carbon emissions and improve air 
quality. The findings support the transition to zero-emission vehicles and the integration of 
public transit, further justifying the project's goals of expanding trolley service and promoting 
environmentally friendly transportation options. 

3. Future Estes Park Transit Development Plan: The forthcoming Transit Demand Plan aims to 
assess and forecast transportation needs in Estes Park. It will provide valuable data on 
ridership trends and preferences, informing how best to allocate resources for transit services. 
This project will benefit from insights gained through this plan, ensuring that the trolley service 
effectively meets community needs. 

4. Estes Park Zero Emission Vehicles Plan: Currently in the bidding process, this plan focuses 
on transitioning to zero-emission vehicles as part of the Town's commitment to sustainability. 
The integration of zero-emission trolleys into the transit system aligns with the project's 
objectives, ensuring a cleaner and more efficient transportation option for residents and visitors. 

5. Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) Grant: Estes Park has been awarded a CMAQ 
grant, which will be applied in 2025. This funding will facilitate expanded service, the 
development of a mobile app for real-time transit information, and a pilot program to determine 
optimal transit resource allocation. The proposed project will build on the improvements made 
possible by the CMAQ grant, further enhancing the transit system's capacity and effectiveness. 

6. 2013 Estes Park Transit and Parking Study: This study evaluated the transit and parking 
enhancements to improve visitor and resident travel experiences. Recommendations have been 
incorporated into The Peak transit services. 

7. 2011 Evaluation of an Intelligent Transportation System for Rocky Mountain National 
Park and Estes Park. The intelligent transportation system recommended is composed of 
dynamic message signs and highway advisory radio. 

Attachment C pg 1 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-

Mutti-Modat Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

Conclusion: The combined insights from these planning documents and initiatives highlight 
the critical need for a comprehensive transit system in Estes Park. The requested funding will 
support ongoing efforts to improve public transportation , promote sustainability, and enhance 
the overall quality of life for residents and visitors. 

SUPPORT FOR THE PROJECT 
Describe the local, regional, statewide, public and private support for the project 

The project to expand the Estes Park Transit system (The Peak) has garnered broad support at 
local, regional, and statewide levels, reflecting a collective commitment to enhancing public 
transportation and promoting sustainability. 
1. Local Support: The Town of Estes Park has demonstrated strong local support for the 

project through various planning initiatives and community engagement efforts. The 
Transportation Advisory Board has formally endorsed the project, highlighting its alignment 
with community goals for improved transit access and environmental sustainability (support 
letter attached). Additionally, local stakeholders, including businesses and residents, 
recognize the need for efficient transportation options to enhance accessibility and tourism. 

2. Regional Support: Regional organizations, including the North Front Range Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (NFRMPO), support the project as part of a broader initiative to 
improve transit connectivity across the region . The GoNOCO 34 plan, currently underway, 
aims to enhance transportation infrastructure and services along the U.S. 34 corridor, which 
includes Estes Park. This regional effort underscores the importance of integrated transit 
solutions that benefit both local and neighboring communities. 

3. Statewide Support: At the state level, the Colorado Association of Transit Agencies 
(CAST A) supports the project by advocating for funding and resources to enhance public 
transit systems across Colorado. Their endorsement emphasizes the project's contribution 
to statewide goals for sustainable transportation and environmental stewardship. 
Additionally, the Drive Clean Colorado initiative aligns with the project's objectives by 
promoting the adoption of zero- emission vehicles and supporting the transition to cleaner 
transportation options statewide. 

4. Private Support: Private sector stakeholders, including local businesses and tourism 
operators, have expressed their support for the project. They recognize that an expanded 
transit system will enhance accessibility for customers and contribute to the overall 
economic vitality of Estes Park. This support highlights the importance of collaboration 
between public and private entities in advancing sustainable transportation solutions. 

Attachment C pg 2 



D. 
TOWNoFESTESPARI<:._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

Conclusion: The extensive support from local, regional, statewide, public, and private 
stakeholders reinforces the project's significance in improving public transit, promoting 
sustainability, and fostering economic growth in Estes Park. This collaborative effort positions 
the project as a critical step toward achieving a more integrated and environmentally friendly 
transportation network. 

LOCAL, REGIONAL, AND STATEWIDE PLANS SUPPORTING THE PROJECT 

1. Colorado Statewide Transit Plan (CSTP): 
This plan outlines strategies for improving public transit across the state, emphasizing the 
importance of accessibility, sustainability, and regional connectivity, which aligns with the 

goals of expanding the Estes Park Transit system. 

2. Colorado Electric Vehicle Plan: 
This initiative promotes the adoption of electric and zero-emission vehicles throughout the 
state, supporting the transition to cleaner transportation options for public transit, including 
the Estes Park Trolley. 

3. Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP): 
STIP identifies funding priorities for transportation projects across Colorado, including 
public transit expansions. The Estes Park Transit project fits within these priorities, 
highlighting the state's commitment to improving transit infrastructure. 

4. Colorado Greenhouse Gas Pollution Reduction Roadmap: 
This roadmap sets targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions in the state, emphasizing 
the need for sustainable transportation solutions like enhanced public transit, which is a 
key aspect of the Estes Park project. 

5. North Front Range Metropolitan Planning Organization (NFRMPO)Regional 
Transportation Plan: 
This plan outlines transportation priorities for the North Front Range region, including 
strategies for enhancing public transit services and improving connectivity among 

communities. 

6. Upper Front Range Regional Transit Plan: 
This plan focuses on developing coordinated transit services throughout the Upper Front 
Range region, identifying key transit needs and opportunities for collaboration among 
different transit providers, including Estes Park. 

Attachment C pg 3 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-

Mu1ti-Moda1 Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

7. North Colorado Transit Study: 
This study evaluates transit needs in Northern Colorado and identifies strategies to 
enhance public transportation services, supporting the expansion of transit options in 
areas like Estes Park. 

8. Larimer County Climate Smart Future-Ready Plan: This plan provides a roadmap for 
the county to combat air pollution, intensive weather patterns and natural disasters. 

Conclusion:These plans collectively reinforce the importance of developing a robust and 
sustainable transit system in Estes Park, contributing to broader goals across Colorado. 

Attachment C pg 4 



"C .:!:: 
C: Ill 
:::s C: 
~ l!! 
Ill ts ~ ·- .. ... ca 
C.a.. 
Q Ill 

ca J!! 
"C Ill 
ow 
:E 

I 

E 
:::s 
:E 

Ill ..c 
C. 
l!! 
C) 
0 
0 
..c 
a. 
Ill 
C: 
ca 
ii: 
Ill 
C. 
ca 

::E 

C 
1-z 
w 
::E 
:I: 
0 

~ 
c( 

FAU.llltl[RA:0 

OOl!ANCE 
10.-

A 
N 

CONlfuttlon do-M!,._. may aff9C1 pc.kfnv 
01"Mn ondo¥Ollablllty.f'Of~R, pl.owwllfl 
0.--.,C~~~--· 

0 

MAlLA:D 

@rgrr• @ RESTROOMS 

,.,,_ ___ ...,.. _,. __ ID/.,11«--

0w._..._J0&6 __ .,.... ______ 

111o11 ....... ...,._. .. _.....__,........,__,_ 

~• .. IAl,ili·M lffi#N 
IUV » · OClOID lDI DM.'f ·--O EITESPAAl"Y151TORCENJER 

0 '!'0NHHAU./90HO"""" 
O M OAfCAJn' LllOCIC SHOP 
O TREGCNf,,_ 
0 WCST-.ut<C£HT£11 
O FMWWDAIYE 
Q E!..JO-OtN lOOOE 
0 ~ WAUHS GAROCN 
0 THl CAl.8$TtAI( ltCSTAUA,•1n 
I> E. RMRSIOC, ltOCXWW. 
$ Tl-MTV tnON LfAllO 

""T00U£'r 

""''"" ,.,,..,,,.. 
AOUTUS 
TIWAC 
AU.OW, -MIIYlll>-10 -

All.1 • IO'TJ Dtoll.l' • IO'T1 • NJll'T 19 MT& ... 

• LOCA1101f DIH.ltT\MI TIMU 
ESTts PAAK \IISIT0lt CCNTOI 00 JO 
TH[~ AT STlAMCR ~AV 02 li 

0 SlA"'II.EYHOH( OS l6 
0 TlHSat CREO: ow..m Of .:tf 
0 ~ MOUfHNN LODGE TI '-1 

ROCKY MOUKTAIN GATrN,._Y ,. 46 
8 EfflSPAAtCONOOS It .4t 

A$PENWN>SONF...u. RIVEft 1' ,_. 
HOHESTEAOI.ANEOH~L "rvl:Rlt()l,O .20 .50 

, STCIHCIMOOCltCSOln 71 SI 
W""1TI PI.M/NICICV'S 22 S7 

E:B:tw:Ji·i ·i'II EHN 
1- _,.,.I CWI.Y • ...,.1 • 1PTJf Y,T & .,_., 

• LOCAJIOIII DUrlUllUIIITIICI 
8 CSTtSMR«vtSITORC[ NTCR 00 l0 
f) ROGllN HOffl. ~o,,y If.. OS lS 
0 ESTESPAAICHIEALTH .OI ll 
0 llOGf'S CCff£E ll 1.0 
OTHl: H«S u .u 
o sounaC,t,B;NS 11 ., 
0 ESTUVM.I.FfCOMMl.lNTYc::e;TER 20 SO 
0 £STESMAICIVDIT$ C~ » 51 

~:!"l!W:l'.!'. tln1 • 1Wf 1!!'lZ? 
• LOCATIOfil otH.IITl.#W T1MII 
0 HT[SNJt(\ll$fTCMICflrffTII: 00 
0 ESTEi ~ BREWERY / RJH CITY 'OS 
O WORL.OMAR,: m 
O MAHOARV <>I 
0 NATICl™il.PAAIC Vlll,f,GE ll 
O AI.PINETRA.ILlttOCE .t2 
O EU:: ~ LOOOE, 'f'-1 RESORT ·'14 
O UG\JCUrf11Cl,t,OS.I-IOHW.lil'W 1"i 
O SWIFTCUttR£NTL00CE 11 

YMCAAOHIIQlAATM. IUIU»IG .J7 
GHJlACIIJt lOOGf Jl 
0 RCJCD«JIJNTCOTT-"GES .ll 
~ W T 111:IVVtSIO(, AOCICWELl mt£E1 lt 
el TMRTYBB..OWLEATHER loO 

~ ;:•!;~!ji . ..,,n - w-r ~1Z'l.! 
• !.OC4JK)ot OIMAT\NfNI 
0 ESTESPAAKV&ITORCEN191 1>0 .lO 
0 EITES,-,icJUN'T"-HlOOGE Ol 12 
0 IUT wtJTtRN SLVCR SA.0CU 05 .lJ 
O OUAUTYINN ()(; 1' 
0~~ 06 lS 
0 LAKE ESTU MNINA CR V 
O ESTEl"-'R!CIID,,. 0t JI' 
0 GOOD SAMMIT.t.N VI.LAGE 10 l,(l 

0 TMONS"°""' ,rM..COHIIDOlN'IS U .4J 
W.UOFAMl.'t'"1E()CN.cantR 14 44 

Q Qll0UACWll ~ Al Wl.[Al[RO,,t.O IS ·4S 
9 lSTtsMRICSf.N()A~ "16 46 
-, 1tA\1£NAvtt«JE,lONl!!PINEOAM! 17 47 
C, Wt FRONT 11Jl:EET AT AANCH MEADOW •1f "J.f 
C) I..OWERSTAPUYVUAGE .20 SO 

..-
Cl 
C. 

0 -C: 
Q) 

E 
.r:. u 
ro 

~ 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant 
Submission Estes Park Transit Operations 

Attachment D pg 2 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'--

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

Reference List 

1. 2024 Estes Park Strategic Plan 
Town of Estes Park. (2024). Strategic vision for improving transportation options and 
accessibility. 

2. 2022 Estes Park Environmental Sustainability Task Force Report 
Town of Estes Park. (2022). Recommendations for sustainable transportation solutions 
and carbon emission reduction . 

3. Future Estes Park Transit Development Plan 
Town of Estes Park. (Upcoming). Plan to assess and forecast transportation needs and 
ridership trends. 

4. Estes Park Zero Emission Vehicles Plan 
Town of Estes Park. (In bidding process). Focus on transitioning to zero-emission 
vehicles in public transit. 

5. Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) Grant 
Town of Estes Park. (2025). Grant details for expanded transit service and development 
of a mobile app. 

6. Colorado Statewide Transit Plan (CSTP) 
Colorado Department of Transportation. (2023). Strategies for improving public transit 
across Colorado. 

7. Colorado Electric Vehicle Plan 
Colorado Department of Transportation. (2023). Initiatives promoting electric and zero
emission vehicle adoption. 

8. Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
Colorado Department of Transportation. (2023). Funding priorities for transportation 
projects in Colorado. 

9. Colorado Greenhouse Gas Pollution Reduction Roadmap 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment. (2022). Targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

10. North Front Range Metropolitan Planning Organization (NFRMPO) Regional 
Transportation Plan 
NFRMPO. (2023). Transportation priorities for the North Front Range region . 

11. Upper Front Range Regional Transit Plan 
Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region. (2022) . Coordinated transit 
services and key needs. 

Reference List pg 1 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PAR!'-._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

12. North Colorado Transit Study 
North Front Range MPO. (2022). Evaluation of transit needs in Northern Colorado 
and strategies for enhancement. 

13. Transportation Advisory Board Support Letter 
Town of Estes Park. (2024). Formal endorsement of the project by the 
Transportation Advisory Board. 

14. Drive Clean Colorado Initiative 
Drive Clean Colorado. (2023). Support for zero-emission vehicle adoption in 
public transportation. https://drivecleancolorado.org/ 

15. GoNOCO 34 Plan 
North Front Range MPO. (2023). Enhancements to transportation infrastructure 
and services along the US 34 corridor. https://gonoco34.org/ 

16. 2013 Estes Park Transit and Parking Study 
Paul S. Sarbanes Transit in Parks Technical Assistance Center (2013).https:// 
westerntransportationinstitute.org/wp-contenUuploads/2018/02/TRI PT AC-TA
EstesPark-lTS.pdf 

17. 2011 Evaluation of an Intelligent Transportation System for Rocky Mountain 
National Park and Estes Park. 
Paul S. Sarbanes Transit in Parks Technical Assistance Center (2011). https:// 
westerntransportationinstitute.org/wp-contenUuploads/2018/02/T A-ROMO _ITS
Eval.pdf 

Reference List pg 2 



- D. 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI"-

October 22 , 2024 

Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region 

Dear Members of the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Reg ion, 

I am writing to express the Town of Estes Park's strong support for the funding 
applications related to the Moraine Avenue Trail Design, the Trolley Facility, and 
Transit Operations. These projects represent a significant opportunity for our 
community to enhance transportation options and improve overall quality of life . 

Moraine Avenue Trail Design: Th is project will provide safe and accessible 
pathways for pedestrians and cyclists, promoting active transportation and outdoor 
recreation . The trail will connect key areas with in our town , encouraging residents 
and visitors alike to explore our beautiful surround ings. Additionally, it aligns with our 
goals of enhancing public health and reducing vehicle congestion. 

Trolley Facility: The development of a dedicated Trolley Facility will not only 
improve the efficiency of our transit services but will also ensure that we can 
accommodate future growth in ridership . A well-designed facility will support 
sustainable transportation solutions, reduce our carbon footprint, and provide 
residents with reliable options for getting around town . 

Transit Operations: Continued investment in our transit operations is crucial for 
maintaining accessibility and mobility for all community members. By supporting this 
initiative, we can ensure that our transit system remains robust and responsive to the 
needs of our residents, especially those who rely on public transportation. 

These projects will positively impact our community by fostering connectivity, 
enhancing mobility, and promoting environmental sustainabil ity. They will contribute 
to a vibrant, accessible town that encourages healthy lifestyles and supports local 
tourism. 

We believe that the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region's 
investment in these projects will yield long-lasting benefits for Estes Park and its 
residents . Thank you for considering our support for these important initiatives. 

Sincerely, 

Gary Hall 
Mayor, Town of Estes Park 
cc: Jeff Bailey, Town Engineer, Town of Estes Park 

170 MAGREGOR A VE. P.O. BOX 1200, ESTES PARK CO. 80517 WWW.ESTES.ORG 

Boa rd of Trustees 
Mayor & Trustees 

970-577-4777 
gha ll @estes .org 



Grant Review Committee 
Multi Modal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund 
Colorado Department of Transportation 

Dear Colorado Department of Transportation , 

I am writing to express that Visit Estes Park has strong support for the Multi modal 
Transportation and Mitigations Options Funds (MMOF) application for Transit Operations in 
Estes Park. 

This project will significantly enhance transportation access for seniors, residents of rural and 
Disproportionately Impacted (DI) communities, and individuals with disabilities. By improving 
public transit options, we promote safe access to many of the resident and visitor popular 
destinations via our fixed route transit services and support our commitment to community 
mobility. 

Additionally, increased passenger usage will help reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT), leading 
to lower greenhouse gas emissions and improved air quality, which are critical for addressing 
cl imate change and public health. 

The project will enhance network connectivity by closing gaps in our transportation system and 
providing intermodal connections. Our district, local government, and community stakeholders 
have shown broad support for this initiative, aligning with our shared goals for sustainable 
development. 

We wholeheartedly support the MMOF funding application and look forward to the positive 
impact this project will have on our community. 

Thank you for your consideration . 

Thank you for considering our support for this transformative project. 

Sincerely, 

DtUt4- /J~ 

Dana Paiement 
Senior Destination Development Manager 

Visit Estes Park 

Visit Estes Park• 1692 Big Thompson Ave. Ste. 101 Estes Park, CO 80517 • VisitEstesPark.com 



Dear Members, 

The Estes Park Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) enthusiastically supports the Town of Estes 
Park's application for the Multimodal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF). The TAB, 
comprised of local citizens, believes that the MMOF funding will provide well supported multimodal 
projects throughout the Estes Park valley. The need for a connected network of bicycle , pedestrian 
and transit modal systems will improve safety, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, serve seniors and 
those disadvantaged , and youth accessing safe routes to school. The economic advantages will 
benefit the seasonal workers that often do not have personal transportation as well as bolster the 
increasing number of tourists expecting safe multi-modal systems to be provided . The Town of Estes 
Park's 2019 Complete Streets Policy was unanimously supported by the Town Board and the TAB. 
The MMOF program goals align with the needs and transportation plans of Estes Park. 

The TAB expresses its gratitude to COOT for the opportunity to apply for funding. Estes Park, a 
community of only 6,000 full-time residents, hosts millions of people each year who visit our historic 
village and Rocky Mountain National Park. As a small, rural town whose occupancy increases 
exponentially over the course of several months, we rely on assistance from Federal and State 
funding sources to accommodate visitors, seasonal workers, and residents alike. Favorable 
consideration of this application would be greatly appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Belle Morris 

Chair, Transportation Advisory Board 



D 
TOWN0FESTESPARI'--

Multi-Moda1 Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

ATTACHMENT 1 
This document has been provided to address both the 'Project Scope• and 'Project Benefits · sections of the grant. 

While the full responses are available in the designated sections of the PDF, we are offering this printed version for the reviewer's convenience, 
should they prefer it in this format. 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 

This scope of work outlines the necessary tasks and deliverables for implementing 
extended service hours for The Peak Shuttle in Estes Park. 

1. Extended Shuttle Operations: 
Task: Implement an extension of shuttle service for an additional four hours daily on six 
routes as well as implementing recommended tasks from the Transit Deman Plan. 
Deliverable: Schedule adjustments and operational plans for the extended hours. 

2. Vehicle Rental: 
Task: Secure additional vehicles to accommodate the increased service hours. 
Deliverable: Contract agreements for vehicle rentals, including specifications and 
operational readiness. 

3. Fuel Procurement: 
Task: Arrange for fuel supply to support the extended shuttle operations. 
Deliverable: Contracts with fuel suppliers, including estimated fuel usage calculations 
for the additional service hours. 

Attachment 1- pg 1 



D 
TOWNoFESTESPARl'-

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

PROJECT BENEFITS 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity:The project enhances connectivity by integrating The 
Peak (Estes Park Transit) with existing transportation options. It links key destinations, 
such as parks and shops, facilitating seamless transfers among biking, walking, and 
public transit. This integration promotes sustainable travel , improves accessibility for 
residents and visitors, and reduces traffic congestion. It aligns with goals outlined in the 
statewide transit network plan (Bustang, page 8, YTP) and is identified as a priority 
project addressing ongoing needs (Pipeline, page 19). 

2. Safety: The project improves roadway safety for non-motorized users by enhancing 
connectivity through the Estes Park Trolley. By connecting key destinations, it 
encourages seamless transfers among various modes of transport, promoting safer 
travel options for pedestrians and cyclists. 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation: Supporting the The Peak (Estes Park Transit) 
service through this grant contributes to GHG mitigation by reducing vehicle miles 
traveled (VMT). The electric trolley provides a reliable alternative to personal vehicles, 
encouraging public transit use and decreasing car traffic. This shift lowers emissions 
and promotes multimodal travel , enhancing the sustainability of Estes Park's 
transportation network and improving air quality. The project aligns with the goal of 
providing an efficient multimodal transportation system while preserving the integrity of 
existing infrastructure (UFR 2045 Regional Transportation Plan , page 8) . 

4. Equity: The Peak (Estes Park Transit) service project benefits disproportionately 
impacted (DI) communities by improving access to essential services and recreational 
areas for underserved residents. By offering an affordable and reliable transportation 
option , the trolley helps bridge mobility gaps for J-1 employees, low-income families, 
seniors, and individuals with disabilities, fostering social equity and inclusivity in the 
community. 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health: The project enhances quality of life and public 
health by ensuring reliable access to medical facilities, recreational areas, and essential 
services. The trolley facilitates transportation to healthcare providers, removing barriers 
to care. Additionally, it promotes active transportation, supporting walking and biking , 
and connects residents to parks, fostering community engagement and well-being. 

6. Economic Impact: The Estes Park Trolley service increases economic impact by 
improving access to employment centers, local businesses, and tourism hotspots. It 
encourages residents and visitors to explore attractions, stimulating local commerce and 
attracting new customers. By reducing reliance on personal vehicles, the trolley also 
eases the burden on local resources. 

Attachment 1- pg 2 



7. Cost-Benefit: 

D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-._ 

Multi-Modal Options Fund Grant Submission 
Estes Park Transit Operations 

The Estes Park Trolley service project offers substantial benefits relative to its total 
cost. It promotes sustainable transportation and enhances community connectivity, 
generating long-term savings through reduced VMT. Additionally, it boosts local 
commerce by improving access to essential services and recreational areas, ultimately 
enhancing the quality of life for residents. Lessons learned from the pilot program in 
2025 will inform strategies to further reduce vehicle miles traveled. Notably, transit 
services will be offered free of charge. In 2023 The Peak (Estes Park Transit) served 
99,472 people on the transit system. 

Attachment 1- pg 3 



Local MMOF Project Application - 2024 
Complete and submit this form-fillable application electronically! Any printed, scanned or converted files will 
not be accepted. Answer all questions fully. 

Transportation Planning Region: Upper Front Range -------------------
Applicant Information 
Sponsor Agency Name: Town of Estes Park 

Applicant Contact (name & title): Laura Blevins, Grants Specialist 
-------------------------

Em a ii: lblevins@estes.org 

Phone: 970-577-357 4 

Project Manager (name & title): Paul Fetherston, Internal Services Director 

Email: pfetherston@estes.org 

Phone: 970-577-3598 

Project Description 
Project Name: E t p k T II F ·i·t s es ar ro ey acI 1 y 

Project Type (select all that apply): 

Fixed-route or On-demand Transit: 
D Capital, Rolling Stock 
0 Equipment 
0 Operations 
~ Facility 
D Planning 

D Transportation Demand Management program 
0 Multimodal Mobility project enabled by new technology 
0 Multimodal Transportation Study 
0 Bicycle or Pedestrian Project 
0 Transportation Modeling 
0 GHG Mitigation Project 

Project Physical Location & Limits (Briefly describe the routes, mileposts, endpoints, address, boundaries, or 
description of the service area of the project, including intersecting roadways.) 

1. 577 Elm Road, Estes Park, CO 80517 2. 1601 Brodie Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517 3. 600 Big 
Thompson Ave, Estes Park, CO 80517 

County(ies): Municipality(ies ): 

Larimer County Town of Estes Park 



Project Scope of Work: 
List and describe the actual Work and Tasks/Deliverables that will be done. (Do not include why it's being 
done or i ts benefits - see Project Benefits section below) 

1. Facility Design - secure a 3rd party to design a new facility or addition to an existing facility for 
purposes of sheltering and servicing electric trolleys and buses. 
2. Construction - construction of an appropriate facility or addition to an existing facility for purposes of 
sheltering and servicing electric trolleys and/ or buses. 

Match Funding Required 
Total Project Cost: $1 ,064,000 

Required Match Rate (50% default): 0% (Review the Match policy and approved match rate tables) 

Minimum Match Funding Required: $ 0.00 
(auto calculated) -----------

Match Rate Explanation (not required of Counties or Municipalities): 
Provide a brief description of your agency's service area to justify the match rate claimed above. 

Based on grant documentation. 

Project Funding 
Identify below all the sources and amounts of funds proposed for use on the proposed project, including the 
amounts and years of MMOF funding requested, and whether other project funds are already secured (through 
an award or a formal agency's budget) or are unsecured funds required and being sought through other award 
programs or contributors. 

MMOF Funding Request - Indicate the amount of funds requested by State Fiscal Year (FY), based on the year 
anticipated to be spent on the project. (NOTE: The FY is July 1 - June 30, with FY2025 beginning July 1, 2024) 

FY2025: $ 300,000 

FY2026: 

FY2027: 

FY2028: 

Total MMOF Requested: $ 300,000 
(auto-calculated) ------------

Other Secured Funding - Provide the Sources, Types, Year(s) and Amounts of project funding that has 
already been secured by an award or a format budget or commitment (attached all formal documentation). 

Source (a'lencv and orooram name): Type Year(s) Amount($) 

FTA 5339 (b) Funds Federal 2024 $ 260,384.00 

COOT FASTER Funds State 2024 $ 250,968.00 
Town of Estes Park Local Match Local 2024 $ 127,568.00 

*Provide evidence of all Secured Funding in Attachment C (resolutions, adopted budgets, award notifications, 
letters, etc.) 



Other Funding Required, but not yet secured - Provide the Sources, Types and Amounts of other required 
project funding that is being sought but is not yet secured by a formal award or commitment, and the date 
anticipated to be secured. NOTE: In-kind funding must be pre-approved by COOT. 

Date 
Source (agency and prOQram name): Type anticipated Amount($) 

General Fund Balance Transfer/ or Estes Park School DistricU $ 125,080.00 or Available Capital Improvement Funding 

Total Project Funding: $ 1 064 000 00 
(Must equal Total Project Cost above) ____ , __ , __ • __ _ 

Project Timeline 
Provide the expected month and year for each of the following stages of the project. 

Projected Date to Advertise: 

Projected Start Dates 

Planning: 

Design: 

Construction: 

Projected Completion Date: 

Project Readiness: 

01/26 

01/26 

02/26 

05/26 

10/26 

Right of Way (ROW) - Is the ROW for this project secured? Describe and explain the status/issues below and 
attach referenced documents in Attachment G: 
Currently, two of the three properties under consideration are owned fee simple by the Town of Estes 
Park. The third property under consideration is owned fee simple by the Estes Valley School District and 
would involve a long term lease with the Town for purposes of a shared facility. 

Environmental: Briefly describe what environmental review or clearances have been completed and attach 
referenced documents in Attachment E: 

An environmental review required by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) has been completed 
for the two town owned properties under consideration . A NEPA environmental review could be 
undertaken if the third property under consideration - owned by the Estes Valley School District - moves 
forward as a shared facility to shelter and service Town electric trolleys, and the School District's electric 
buses. 



Project Benefits 
Briefly describe how the project provides the following specific benefits (n/a if not applicable): 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity - how the project contributes to a complete bicycle, pedestrian, transit 
and/or other multimodal system. 

The Town of Estes Park is seeking MMOF grant funding of $300,000 to support the construction 
of a faci lity designed to shelter and service its electric trolleys, which play a vital role in 
transporting visitors throughout the community. As the eastern gateway to Rocky Mountain 
National Park Estes Park attracts a□oraximatelv 3 1 million visitors aorn ,allv Ibe electric tralleva 

2. Safety - Project improves roadway safety for non-motorized users. 

The proposed facility for sheltering and servicing electric trolleys in Estes Park will 
significantly enhance roadway safety for non-motorized users, including pedestrians and 
cyclists. Key improvements include: 
• Desiooated Transit Soaces· Ibe facility will create clearly marked areas far transit vehicles a 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation - Project reduces GHG by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) or 
increasing multimodal travel. 

The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and buses in Estes Park plays a crucial role in 
mitigating greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
through the following mechanisms: 
• S1 ,onart far Electric Transit Qotiaos· Rv facilitation the ooeratia□ af electric trallevs and b11ses a 

4. Equity - Project benefits Disproportionately Impacted (DI) communities or other underserved and 
disadvantaged community members. 

The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and buses in Estes Park will provide significant 
benefits to disproportionately impacted (DI) communities and other underserved and 
disadvantaged members of the community through the following means: 
a lmoraved Access ta Reliable P11blic Tra□soactatiao · I be facility will enhance the availabilitv a□O 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health - Project provides access to medical facilities and services or to 
recreation areas, increases active transportation or provides other quality-of -life benefits. 

The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and buses in Estes Park will significantly 
enhance quality of life and public health through the following means: 
o Increased Access to Medical Facilities and Services: The project will improve public transit 
ra1 ,tes makioo it easier far residents ta reach essential healthcare oraviders and medical a 

6. Economic Impact - Project increases access to/from/within employment or economic centers, bolsters 
tourism or commerce, or decreases the burden on local resources. 

The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and buses in Estes Park will have a significant 
positive economic impact through several key avenues: 
o Improved Access to Employment Centers : By enhancing public transit options, the facility will 
nravide better ca□□ectivitv ta local emolavment b1 ,bs Ibis imnmved access will belo residents a 

7. Cost-Benefit - Project provides substantial benefits relative to the total cost of the project. 

Potential additional costs incurred by a location change include the following estimates 
(depending on location): 
• Title VI equity analysis= $15,000 
• NEPA - $25 QQQ P 



Planning & Support 
Describe relevant planning, studies and history related to the project: 

The trolley facility initiative in Estes Park has a rich history and is built upon various planning efforts 
and studies that highlight the community's commitment to enhancing public transportation 
through electric trolleys. Key milestones include: 
1. Initiation of the Trolley Initiative (2020): The project began in 2020 with the Town's purchase g 

Describe the local, regional, statewide, public and private support for the project and provide evidence in 
Attachment C. 

The initiative to construct a facility for housing and servicing the Town of Estes Park's electric fleet 
has garnered extensive support from various local , regional , statewide, public, and private entities, 
reflecting a unified commitment to enhancing public transportation and sustainability. Key sources 
of support include: g 

List all Local, Regional and/or Statewide Plans supporting and/or identifying the project: 

1. 2024 Estes Park Strategic Plan : Outlines the Town's vision for improving transportation options, 
emphasizing a robust transit system to support economic growth and environmental sustainability. 
2. Estes Park Environmental Sustainability Task Force Report (2022): Highlights the need for 
sustainable transportation solutions, including electric transit options, to reduce carbon emissions an~ 

Supplemental Attachments Required - please label attachments accordingly. 

Required of All Projects: 
~ Attachment A - Cost estimate and project implementation schedule (for Transit: outline the capital, 

operating and equipment costs and timelines separately) 
~ Attachment B - Evidence of Secured Funding, including sponsor and contributing agency resolutions, 

Award Notifications, commitment letters, etc. 
~ Attachment C - Evidence of supporting planning, studies and local/regional/statewide support 

Required of Infrastructure Projects: 
~ Attachment D - Maps, plans and photographs 
~ Attachment E - Environmental Review 
~ Attachment F - Proposed maintenance plans, agreements, covenants 
~ Attachment G - Right-of-way, easements, legal property description 



COOT Review & Recommendations 
COOT Review Lead: 

Comments/Concerns/Questions 

Eligibility 

Budget/ 
Funding 

Readiness/ 
Timeline 

Scope & 
Feasibility 

Other 

Date: 
Recommendations 



D. 
TOWN OF ESTES PAR!'-._ 

ATTACHMENT A 
COST ESTIMATE 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK 
Electric Trolley Facility Construction Project 
BID SCHEDULE 

Architect/Engineer 
Title VI Equity Analysis 
NEPA 
D/E 
ON. 1 Gen. Conditions/Insurance/Taxes 
DN. 2 Earthwork 
DN. 3 Concrete (Foundation/SOG/Exterior Aprons) 
DN. 7 Thermal & Moisture Protection 
DN. 8 Doors 
DN. 13 PEMB 
DN. 22 Plumbing 
DN. 23 HVAC 
DN. 26 Electrical 

TOTAL: 

Design 
$100,000 
$15,000 
$25,000 
$50,000 

$190,000 
Grand Total: 

Construction 

$175,000 
$150,000 
$115,000 
$37,000 
$49,000 
$250,000 
$40,000 
$30,000 
$28,000 

$874,000 
$1,064,000 

Attachment A, pg 1 



D 
TOWNoFESTESPARK_ 

Attachment A - Project Implementation Schedule 

Projected Date to Advertise 

From Date of grant award fully executed (Week 0) , the following timeline would apply: 

Week O -2: Projected Date to Advertise 

Weeks 2 - 6: Planning 

Weeks 6 - 18: Design 

Weeks 18 - 38: Construction 

For example, if the grant award if fully executed in December 2025, We could start this 
process in Jan 2026: 

Jan 1 - Jan 15: Projected Date to Advertise 

Jan 15 - Jan 31 : Planning 

Feb 1 - May 1 - Design 

May 1 - October 1 - Construction 

Attachment A, pg 2 



1. FTA 5339 (b) Funding 

D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARK..__ 

TROLLEY FACILITY - ATTACHMENT B 
EVIDENCE OF SECURED FUNDING 

-~ ~--
1 · -

- - - -- - -- --------- --
4 rr, \;".>nc,"lt<~J•cr 1-oc.:.r.,l~rrt A,p(,1...-...,nvn' •,,..iri::t .. ~r ~w,1• •r"t<:,-;..dt l..o< ' .. r->Kn,( , ~r~1 

A1'fard-020%7 

2020·53.J9'b::E~ Troi~v '"K'liry A.ddltic,,:,•.·f,1mR 

"""' 
2020 

nPS3J9 

2. COOT- FASTER funding - supplement to 5339 (b) 

+ J:ollovv 

-~ ~~-
- ~ - - --- - - - -----

~~,,. /..rr<•)l,1,-..., ,x r • ., • ._ ,,._,t Ai,,t.~-._~(Jll lNJlo.;I .. ~, /.,w.Jl r, ..... c..AJ.-L ·~,.,.1r,~n~,1, ~~1--",• l 

ft Awards 

~ Award-021601 

2024-FASTE R: E:.ect:ic Trotley ►aci lty~dd'ltioo(w 2020-

5339 

202, 

~ ted 

+ Follow 

Attachment B, pg 1 



TOWN OF ESTES PARK 
2024 ADOPTED BUDGET N 

C) 
SUMMARY OF BUDGETED GRANT, DONATION, ANO DEBT REVENUES a. 

ALL FUNDS Ill -C: 
(1) 

Project 
Fllderal / 

2023 Amended 2024 Mople<:t 
E 

Fund ACCOUrit # Project oescr Grant Program / Grantoc- St.atll / ..c: 
Code Budget Budget (.) 

Othl'!I' ctl 
:i::: 

256 25.6-5690-569.32-2 1 B PKGS Bi9 Horn P king Structure Lea~ Purchase Lease PlICt\ase FIMoclng 0 1,902,000 <( 
256 Total 1,902,000 

260 260-0000-334 .30-00 EPMOBH EP MOOII ty Hub • V1SilOI' Cet1tet' Parklflg Loe • DeSi9n COOT s 200,000 
260 260-0000-3 34. 30-00 EPMOBH EP Mool ty Hub • v,sllOI' Cenlet' Parking Loe - conslr COOT s 829,504 

t 
260 Total 1,029,.504 

502 502-0000-333 .00-00 TBARPA Trailblazer Bu11dou1- ARPA Funclang US Depl of Treasury F 1,615,174 
502 50.2-0000-334 .JO-OO TBDOLA Trn,lblazer Butldout- OOLA Grant OOLA s 1,190,250 

cos (CongresSNlooUy Directed 
502 50.2-0000-333 .00-00 W ILFRE CDS Fu Mit19ation lir'Ml R pl Spending) F 785,937 
502 502-0000-333.00-00 Ski Road Lin Rebuild F 64.000 

Cf) 502 502-0000-333.00-00 Taylor Road Lifle Ret>uokl F 23,000 
~ 

- ~ 

502 502-0000-333.00-00 COurlly Road 90 Line Rebuokl F 34,000 
502 Total 3,591 ,.361 121,000 

l~I~ 50J 503-0000-333 .00-00 PMLOAN Prospect Mm water Dist Wmerh11 USDA Gtant F 10,535,000 

0 SOJ 503-0000-333 .00-00 GC P FILTRATION IMPROVEM E s USOAGranl F 3,400.000 
SOJ 503-0000-333 .00-00 WUSBOR BOR water Meter Project USBOR F 75,000 

~ 
SOJ 503-0000-388 .40-00 PMLOAN Prospect Min Water Dist wmerhn USDA Loon F 7,675,000 

503 Total 18,285,000 3,400,000 

612 612-0000-333 .00-00 ELTRC H TrOlley Facitty Conslr COOT Grant F 260,384 

~ 612 612-0000-333 .00-00 ELTRC H TrOlley Facll ty D~n COOT Grant F 12,BJ.3 
Additional Federa l Grant -Applic 

612 612-0000-333.00-00 ELTRCH TrOlley Facl~ty Constr Pen ng F 260,967 
612 Total 534,184 

625 625-0000-3.34 .20-00 HOTSPT W ll'e!Qss Hotspot Giant s 
625 625-0000-334 .20-00 PHO ES Phone svstem Upgrade COOT-RMS s 
625 625-0000-334 .20-00 LPTOP1 Laptop Grant COOT CanDO Program s 

625 Total 

Grand Total $ 3.2,474 ,463 s 3,546,750 

Poge 219 ol 231 



Approval of Board of Education action to support shared electric bus/trolley facility 
1 message 

Ruby Bode <ruby_bode@psdr3.k12.co.us> 
To: Paul Fetherston <pfetherston@estes.org>, Laura Blevins <lblevins@estes.org>, Jason Damweber <jdamweber@estes.org> 

Dear Paul, Laura, and Jason, 

Laura Blevins <lblevins@estes.org> 

Thu, Sep 26, 2024 at 5:34 PM 

This week at the Board of Education meeting, the Board unanimously approved the action item to support exploration of a shared electric bus/trolley facility on district property with 
the Town of Estes Park. 

Thank you for this opportunity to build this partnership. 

Sincerely, 
Ruby 

Ruby Bode 
Superintendent of Estes Park Schools 
970-586-2361 ext 3003 
www.estesschools.org Facebook 

Attachment B, pg 3 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI<._ 

ATTACHMENT C 

EVIDENCE OF SUPPORTING PLANNING, STUDIES AND LOCAL/REGIONAL/STATEWIDE 

PLANNING AND SUPPORT 

The trolley facility initiative in Estes Park has a rich history and is built upon various planning efforts 
and studies that highlight the community's commitment to enhancing public transportation 
through electric trolleys. Key milestones include: 

1. Initiation of the Trolley Initiative (2020) : The project began in 2020 with the Town's purchase 
of its first electric trolley, marking a significant step toward developing a sustainable public 
transit system that could serve both residents and visitors, setting the foundation for future 
expansions. 

2. Planning and Design Efforts: Since the acquisition of the trolley, Town staff have invested 
extensive time and resources into planning and designing the trolley facility. These efforts 
have included evaluating potential locations, conducting feasibility studies, and developing 
designs that accommodate the unique needs of electric transit vehicles. This thorough 
planning process ensures that the facility will effectively support the Town's transit goals. 

3. Collaboration with Estes Park School District (Spring 2024): In Spring 2024, the Estes Park 
School District began exploring the possibility of establishing a shared facility on their 
property on Brodie Avenue. This collaboration presents an opportunity to optimize 
resources and align the interests of both the Town and the School District in promoting 
electric transit options. The potential shared facility could streamline operations and 
enhance service delivery for both entities. 

4. Community Engagement: Throughout the planning process, the Town has engaged with 
community stakeholders to gather input and ensure that the facility meets the needs of 
residents and visitors. This engagement has helped shape the vision for the trolley facility 
and reinforced community support for public transit initiatives. 

5. Alignment with Broader Goals: The trolley facility initiative aligns with various local and 
regiona l planning efforts aimed at promoting sustainable transportation, reducing traffic 
congestion, and improving accessibility. It reflects the Town 's commitment to enhancing 
multimodal options and addressing the growing demand for reliable public transit. 

In summary, the trolley facility initiative has evolved since its inception in 2020, supported by 
dedicated planning efforts and emerging collaboration wit h the Estes Park School District. This 
project is a crucial step toward enhancing public transportation and promoting sustainable transit 
solutions in the Estes Park community. 

LOCAL, REGIONAL, AND STATEWIDE PLANS SUPPORTING THE PROJECT 

The initiative to construct a facility for housing and servicing the Town of Estes Park's electric fleet 
has garnered extensive support from various local, regional, statewide, public, and private entities, 

Attachment C, pg 1 



H 
TOWN OF ESTES PARK:..__ 

reflecting a unified commitment to enhancing public transportation and sustainability. Key sources 
of support include: 

1. Local Support: The Town of Estes Park is providing local funding to support the 
construction of the facility. This financial backing demonstrates the Town's commitment to 
developing a robust transit infrastructure that meets the needs of its residents and visitors. 

2. Estes Park School District: The Estes Park School District has expressed strong support for 
the initiative, particularly in exploring the possibility of a shared facility on their Brodie 
Avenue land. This collaboration not only maximizes resources but also aligns the goals of 
both the Town and the School District in promoting electric transit options. 

3. Regional Support: The project has received backing from the Colorado Department of 
Transportation (COOT), which recognizes the importance of enhancing public 
transportation in the region. CDOT's support helps ensure that the project aligns with 
broader transportation goals and funding opportunities. 

4. Statewide Support: The initiative is also supported by the Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA), which provides grants to improve transit systems across the nation. This federal 
backing underscores the project's significance within the broader context of transportation 
improvements in Colorado and beyond. 

5. Public and Private Stakeholders: The project has attracted interest from various public 
and private stakeholders who see the value in developing a sustainable transit solution . 
Local businesses and community organizations recognize that enhancing public 
transportation will boost tourism and economic activity in Estes Park. 

In summary, the project to house and service the Town 's electric fleet has strong backing from a 
diverse array of stakeholders, including local government, the Estes Park School District, regional 
transportation agencies, and federal grant programs. This collaborative effort reflects broad 
community support for advancing public transit and sustainable transportation solutions in Estes 

Park. 

List of Local, Regional, and Statewide Plans Supporting the Project 

1. 2024 Estes Park Strategic Plan : Outlines the Town's vision for improving transportation 
options, emphasizing a robust transit system to support economic growth and 
environmental sustainability. 

2. Estes Park Environmental Sustainability Task Force Report (2022) : Highlights the need for 
sustainable transportation solutions, including electric transit options, to reduce ca rbon 
emissions and improve air quality. 

3. Future Transit Demand Plan: Aims to assess and forecast transportation needs in Estes 
Park, providing data on ridership trends and preferences to optimize transit services. 

4. Zero Emission Vehicles Plan : Focuses on transitioning to zero-emission vehicles as part of 
the Town's sustainability efforts, aligning with the project's goals for electric trolleys. 

Attachment C, pg 2 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES P~ 

5. Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) Grant: Supports expanded transit services and 
infrastructure improvements, including a mobile app for real-time information, enhancing 
the overall transit system. 

6. Town of Estes Park Capital Improvement Plan (2024-2028): Identifies infrastructure 
priorities and funding allocations for various projects, including the tro lley facility. 

7. Larimer County Electric Vehicle Plan: Promotes the integration of electric vehicles into the 

county's transportation network, supporting the development of electric transit options. 

8. Climate Smart Future Ready Plan: Addresses climate resilience and sustainable 
t ransportation strategies, aligning with the project's goals. 

9. Colorado Transit Enterprise and Volkswagen Settlement Program: Provides funding 
opportunities for transit projects that enhance sustainability and reduce emissions, 
supporting the initiative. 

10. Colorado Electric Vehicle Plan: Promotes the adopt ion of electric and zero-emission 
vehicles statewide, supporting the transition to cleaner transportation options. 

11. Colorado Transit ZEV Roadmap: Outlines strategies for integrating zero -emission vehicles 
into public transit systems across Colorado, aligning with the project's objectives. 

12. Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) : Identifies funding priorities for 
transportation projects, including public transit expansions, supporting the project's goals. 

13. Colorado Greenhouse Gas Pollution Reduction Roadmap: Sets targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions, emphasizing susta inable transportation solutions that align 
with the project's mission. 

14. North Front Range Metropolitan Planning Organization (NFRMPO) Regional Transportation 

Plan : Outlines transportation priorities for the region, including strategies for enhancing 
public transit services and connectivity. 

15. Upper Front Range Regional Transit Plan : Focuses on developing coordinated transit 
services throughout the Upper Front Range region, addressing key transit needs. 

16. North Colorado Transit Study: Evaluates transit needs in Northern Colorado and identifies 
strategies to enhance public transportation services, supporting the project's expansion. 

These plans collectively reinforce the significance of t he tro lley facility initiative in advancing 
sustainable public transit and enhancing community connectivity in Estes Park. 

Attachment C, pg 3 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI<.__ 
ATTACHMENT D MAPS PLANS AND 

PHOTOGRAPHS 

1. 1601 Brodie Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517 

• 3 additional sta lls (6 total) 
• Add (2) new doors to existing stalls to allow full pull-through from each stall 
• New storage facility in back of parking lot 
• Remove section of fence/ sliding automatic gate for drive access 
• Loss of 6-7 parking spaces in front of fence+ 5-6 parking spaces on backside of fence 

Attachment D, pg 1 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARK_ 

2. 600 Big Thompson, Estes Park, CO 8051 7 

600 Big Thompson 

• Proposed 1 OO0sqft building 

• 2 bays 

• 2 charging stations 

Attachment D, pg 2 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARK_ 

3. 575 Elm, Estes Park, CO 80517 

S75 Elm Road 
• Proposed 1600sqft additional to existing Fleet Shop 

• 2 bays 

• 2 charging stations 

Attachment D, pg 3 



_g 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI'-

October 22 , 2024 

Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region 

Dear Members of the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region, 

I am writing to express the Town of Estes Park's strong support for the funding 
applications re lated to the Moraine Avenue Tra il Design , the Trolley Facility, and 
Transit Operations. These projects represent a significant opportunity for our 
community to enhance transportation options and improve overall quality of life . 

Moraine Avenue Trail Design: This project will provide safe and accessible 
pathways for pedestrians and cyclists , promoting active transportation and outdoor 
recreation . The trai l will connect key areas with in our town, encouraging residents 
and visitors alike to explore our beautiful surroundings. Additionally, it al igns with our 
goals of enhancing public health and reducing vehicle congestion . 

Trolley Facility: The development of a dedicated Trolley Facility will not only 
improve the efficiency of our trans it services but will also ensure that we can 
accommodate future growth in ridership . A well-designed facility will support 
sustainable transportation solutions, reduce our ca rbon footprint, and provide 
res idents with reliable options for getting around town. 

Transit Operations: Continued investment in our transit operations is crucial for 
maintaining accessibility and mobility for all community members. By supporting this 
in itiative, we can ensure that our transit system rema ins robust and responsive to the 
needs of our residents , especially those who rely on public transportation . 

These projects will positively impact our commun ity by fostering connectivity, 
enhancing mobility, and promoting environmental sustainability. They will contribute 
to a vibrant, accessible town that encourages healthy lifestyles and supports local 
tourism . 

We bel ieve that the Upper Front Range Transportation Plann ing Region 's 
investment in these projects will yield long-lasting benefits for Estes Park and its 
residents. Thank you for considering our support fo r these important initiatives. 

Sincerely, 

Gary Hal l 
Mayor, Town of Estes Park 
cc: Jeff Bailey, Town Engineer, Town of Estes Park 

170 MAGREGOR A VE. P.O. BOX 1200, ESTES PARK CO. 80517 WWW.ESTES.ORG 

Board of Trustees 
Mayor & Trustees 

970-577-4777 
ghall@es tes.org 



September 26, 2024 

To Whom It May Concern , 

On behalf of the Estes Park School District, I am writing to express our support for the Town of Estes Park's 
application for the Multimodal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF). Securing this funding will 
allow us to embark on an exciting partnership between the school district and the town , aimed at making a 

lasting impact on our community by expanding our electric bus and trolley fleet. 

As a mountain town nestled in the beauty of Colorado, we are uniquely aware of the importance of 
sustainability and environmental stewardship. The proposed facility, which will be designed and constructed 
with the help of MMOF support, will improve our community's transportation infrastructure. By investing in 
electric buses and trolleys, we will not only reduce emissions and improve air quality, but we will also set a 
standard for energy efficiency and forward-thinking environmental practices. 

This initiative goes beyond just transportation. It represents a commitment to the future of our community, 
creating cleaner air for our children and reducing our carbon footprint. For the school district, this partnership 
with the Town of Estes Park means that our students will benefit from safer, cleaner transportation options, 
enhancing both their health and their daily experience. Additionally, the collaboration between the town and the 
school district strengthens our collective ability to serve the needs of residents, students, and visitors alike. 

Thank you for considering the Town of Estes Park's application for this critical funding . I am confident that the 

resources provided by the MMOF will enable our town and school district to achieve remarkable progress 
toward a cleaner, more efficient future. If you have any questions or need further information , please feel free 
to contact me at 970-556-4362 . 

Sincerely, 

Ruby Bode 
Superintendent of Schools 
Estes Park School District R-3 
Ruby_bode@psdr3.k12.co.us 
970-556-4362 



R 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI<._ 

ATTACHMENT E 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

1. 1601 Brodie Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517 

NEPA review will need to be conducted on this site. 

2. 600 Big Thompson, Estes Park, CO 80517 

NEPA Review has been done on this site and can be provided if needed. 

3. 575 Elm, Estes Park, CO 80517 

NEPA Review has been done on this site and can be provided if needed . 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES PARK:._ 

ATTACHMENT F 
PROPOSED MAINTENANCE PLANS, AGREEMENTS, COVENANTS 

1. 1601 Brodie Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517 
Maintenance Plan: Shared Facility on School District Property -
The maintenance plan for a shared facility on EPSD owned property would be the result of 
discussions between the parties and included in an interlocal agreement between the two 
parties. It is anticipated that (a) the maintenance plan will establish a mutual commitment 
to support the sustainable operation and maintenance of the proposed facility to house and 
service the Town's electric trolleys and ESPD's future electric buses; and (b) both parties 
will ensure that the facility is designed to meet current and future transportation needs 
while prioritizing environmental sustainability. Based on the use of the shared facility, both 
the Town and EPSD will be proportionally responsible for the ongoing maintenance and 
operation of the building, with an emphasis on regular inspections and necessary upgrades 
to maximize its useful life. This partnership is rooted in a shared vision of enhancing 
community infrastructure and fostering sustainable transportation solutions for future 
generations. 

Agreement/Covenant between Town and Estes Park School District (ESPD): 
An agreement/covenant between the Town of Estes Park and the ESPD will be established if 
the 1601 Brodie site is selected. 

2. 600 Big Thompson, Estes Park, CO 80517 

Maintenance Plan: Trolley Facility on Town owned property 
The maintenance plan for the Town of Estes Park's trolley facility building - included as a 
general Town asset-would be included in the Town's overall facilities 
maintenance with the intention to maximize the longevity and functionality of 
this vital community asset. As such, inspections would be conducted on a regular 
basis to assess structural integrity, HVAC systems, and electrical 
installations, in an attempt to provide preventative maintenance and proactively 
address any issues. Additionally, the facility would be included in the Town Facility Building 
Maintenance and Repairs account for purposes of funding routine and emergency repairs, 
ensuring the facility remains a reliable asset. 

3. 577 Elm, Estes Park, CO 80517 
Maintenance Plan: Same at #2 



D 
TOWNoFESTESPARI<._ 

ATTACHMENT G 

RIGHT-OF-WAY, EASEMENTS, LEGAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

1. 1601 Brodie Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517 

No Right of Way or easements needed. 

Descript ion : Lot 1, ESTES PARK SCHOOLS SUB, EP. 

2. 600 Big Thompson, Estes Park, CO 80517 

No Right of Way or easements needed. 

Description : LOT 1 B, REPLAT OF POR LOT 4 AND ALL LOT 1, STANLEY MEADOWS ADD, EP 

3. 577 Elm, Estes Park, CO 80517 

No Right of Way or easements needed. 

Description : LOT 1, ELM ROAD 2ND ADD, EP 



e 
TOWNoFESTESPARI<._ 

ATTACHMENT 1 
This document has been provided to address the "Project Benefits" section of the grant. While the full response can 
be found in the designated section of the PDF, we are offering this printed version for the reviewer's convenience, 

should they prefer it in this format. 

PROJECT BENEFITS 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity: The Town of Estes Park is seeking MMOF grant funding of 
$300,000 to support the construction of a facility designed to shelter and service its electric 
trolleys, which play a vital role in transporting visitors throughout the community. As the 
eastern gateway to Rocky Mountain National Park, Estes Park attracts approximately 3.1 

million visitors annually. The electric trolleys are essential for providing multi-modal 
transportation options and alleviating traffic congestion . The proposed facility will 
significantly enhance multimodal connectivity in several ways: 

• Dedicated Shelter and Service: The facility will offer dedicated space for the electric 
trolleys and potential electric buses from the Estes Park School District (EPSD), 
ensuring they are well-maintained and readily available for transit operations. 

• Seamless Transfers: By providing a centralized location for both electric trolleys and 
buses, the facility will facilitate smooth transfers between different modes of 
transportation, making it easier for residents and visitors to navigate the town. 

• Improved Access for Pedestrians and Cyclists: The new facility will enhance 
accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists, ensuring that all modes of transport are 
interconnected . This aligns with the objectives outlined in the 2024 Town of Estes 
Park Strategic Plan, which emphasizes the importance of transportation 
improvements for a more integrated community. 

• Collaboration with EPSD: The potential for a shared facility with the EPSD not only 
maximizes resource efficiency but also supports both entities in meeting their 
transportation needs, reinforcing community objectives while minimizing costs. 

Overall, the construction of this facility is a critical step in developing a complete multi modal 
transportation system in Estes Park, ultimately benefiting both the local community and the influx 

of visitors. 

2. Safety: The proposed facility for sheltering and servicing electric trolleys in Estes Park will 
significantly enhance roadway safety for non-motorized users, including pedestrians and 
cyclists. Key improvements include: 

• Designated Transit Spaces: The facility will create clearly marked areas for 
transit vehicles, reducing confusion for all road users. This dedicated space 
minimizes the likelihood of accidents by ensuring that non-motorized users 
have clearly defined pathways and access points. 

• Reduced Traffic Conflicts : By centralizing transit operations, the project will help 
decrease interactions between vehicles and non-motorized users. This 
separation will lower the risk of collisions, contributing to a safer environment 
for pedestrians and cyclists. 

Attachment 1, pg 1 



g 
TOWN OF ESTES PAR!<._ 

• Safer Access to Public Transportation : The facility will be designed with 
accessibility in mind , ensuring that it is easy for all users to reach public 
transportation. Improved access points will encourage more individuals to use 
public transit, further reducing vehicular traffic and enhancing overall safety. 

• Enhanced Infrastructure: The integration of features such as bike racks, 
pedestrian crossings, and sign age will promote safer travel options. These 
enhancements will ensure that non-motorized users feel secure and supported 
when accessing public transportation facilities. 

In summary, this project is poised to improve roadway safety for non-motorized users by providing 
designated transit spaces, reducing traffic conflicts, and promoting safer access to public 
transportation . 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation: The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and 
buses in Estes Park plays a crucial role in mitigati ng greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
through the following mechanisms: 

• Support for Electric Transit Options: By facilitating the operation of electric 
trolleys and buses, the project directly contributes to the reduction of reliance 
on fossil fuel-powered vehicles. This t ra nsition to electric transportation helps 

lower overall emissions associated with public transit. 

• Reduction of Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT): The integration of electric trolleys 
and buses into the community's transportation network encourages more 
residents and visitors to utilize public transit rather than personal veh icles. This 
shift results in fewer vehicle miles traveled, leading to a significant decrease in 
GHG emissions. 

• Promotion of Sustainable Transportation: The facility will serve as a hub for 
sustainable transit options, making it easier for users to choose public 
transportation over single-occupancy vehicles. By enhancing the appeal of 

electric transit options, the project fosters a culture of sustainability within the 
community. 

• Alignment with Environmental Goals: This initiative aligns with broader 
environmental objectives, such as those outlined in the 2024 Town of Estes Park 

• Strategic Plan and state-level sustainability initiatives. By reducing emissions 
and promoting clean transportation , the project supports the Town's 
commitment to environmental stewardship. 

In summary, by supporting electric trolleys and buses, the project significant ly reduces vehicle 
miles traveled, decreases greenhouse gas emissions, and promotes sustainable transit options, 
cont ributing t o a cleaner and healthier environment. 

Attachment 1, pg 2 



R 
TOWN OF ESTES PARI<._ 

4. Equity: The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and buses in Estes Park will 
provide significant benefits to disproportionately impacted (DI) communities and other 
underserved and disadvantaged members of the community through the following means: 

o Improved Access to Reliable Public Transportation: The facility will enhance the 
availability and reliability of public transit options, ensuring that all community 
members, including those in DI communities, have consistent access to 
transportation. This improvement is crucial for individuals who may not have 
reliable personal vehicles. 

o Addressing Mobility Gaps: By establishing a centralized hub for electric trolleys and 
buses, the project will specifically target mobility gaps in underserved areas. This 
will allow residents in these communities to reach essential services, employment 
opportunities, and recreational areas more easily. 

o Fostering Equitable Access to Essential Services: The facility will facilitate 
transportation to key destinations such as healthcare providers, grocery stores, and 
educational institutions. By improving access to these services, the project 
promotes social equity and helps reduce barriers faced by low-income families, 
seniors, and individuals with disabilities. 

o Community Engagement and Collaboration: The project encourages collaboration 
between the Town and local organizations serving DI communities, ensuring that the 
voices and needs of these populations are considered in transit planning. This 

inclusive approach helps to foster a sense of ownership and community among all 
residents. 

In summary, the facility will benefit disproportionately impacted communities by improving access 
to reliable public transportation, addressing mobility gaps, and fostering equitable access to 
essential services, thereby promoting social equity and inclusivity within Estes Park. 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health: The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and 

buses in Estes Park will significantly enhance quality of life and public health through the 

following means: 

o Increased Access to Medical Facilities and Services: The project will improve public 
transit routes, making it easier for residents to reach essential healthcare providers 
and medical facilities. This access is critical for ensuring that individuals receive 
timely medical care, ultimately leading to better health outcomes. 

o Connection to Recreation Areas: By facilitating transportation to local parks and 
recreational facilities, the project promotes physical activity and community 
engagement. Easy access to recreational areas encourages residents and visitors to 
participate in outdoor activities, contributing to overall physical and mental well

being. 

o Promotion of Active Transportation: The facility will support active transportation 
options by integrating transit with walking and cycling paths. By making it easier for 

Attachment 1, pg 3 



I 
TOWN OF ESTES P~ 

individuals to combine different modes of transport, the project encourages 
healthier lifestyle choices and reduces re liance on personal vehicles. 

o Enhanced Community Well-Being: By fostering greater connectivity between 
communities and essential services, the project enhances the overall quality of life 
for residents. Improved public health outcomes, increased physical activity, and 
enhanced access to social and recreational opportunities contribute to a vibrant, 
healthy community. 

In summary, by increasing access to transit, the project promotes active transportation options, 
con nects communities to medical facilities and recreation areas, and enhances overall public 
health and well-being in Estes Park. 

6. Economic Impact: The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and buses in Estes 
Park will have a significant positive economic impact through severa l key avenues: 

o Improved Access to Employment Centers: By enhancing public transit options, the 
facility will provide better connectivity to local employment hubs. This improved 
access will help residents reach job opportunities more easily, supporting workforce 
participation and economic stability. 

o Boosting Local Commerce: The facility will facilitate increased foot traffic to local 
businesses by making it more convenient for residents and visitors to shop and dine 
in Estes Park. This influx of customers can lead to higher sales and greater 
economic activity, benefiting the local economy. 

o Enhancing Tourism: As the eastern gateway to Rocky Mountain National Park, Estes 
Park attracts millions of visitors each year. The electric trolleys will provide tourists 
with convenient transportation options to key attractions, enhancing thei r overall 

experience and encouraging longer stays, which directly supports local businesses 
and tourism operators. 

o Reducing Reliance on Personal Vehicles : By promoting the use of public transit, the 
project will decrease the number of personal vehicles on the road. This reduction 
can ease congestion, lower wear and tea r on local infrastructure, and diminish the 
environmental burden, ultimately benefiting local resources and reducing 
maintenance costs. 

o Supporting Economic Resilience: The fac ility will play a vital role in creating a 
sustainable transportation network that can adapt to changing commun ity needs. 
By bolstering public transit, the project supports economic resilience, ensuring that 
Estes Park can respond effectively to futu re growth and challenges. 

In summary, the facility improves access to employment centers and local commerce, bolsters 
economic activity and tourism, and reduces reliance on personal vehicles, all of which contribute 
to the overall health and vitality of the local economy in Estes Park. 

Attachment 1 , pg 4 



a 
TOWN OF ESTES P~ 

7. Cost-Benefit: 
Potential additional costs incurred by a location change include the following 
estimates (depending on location): 

• Title VI equity analysis= $15,000 

• NEPA = $25,000 

• D/E = $50,000 

Regardless of the FTA scope change approval , the Town will still need funding to cover 
any gaps for construction as our estimates have more than doubled since our initial 
estimate in 2020. 
The construction of the facility for electric trolleys and buses in Estes Park presents a 
compelling cost-benefit scenario through several key factors : 

o Substantial Benefits Relative to Costs: The project is designed to deliver 
significant benefits, including increased accessibility to public transit and 
reduced emissions from transportation. When evaluated against its total cost, 
these benefits make the project a financially sound investment for the 
community. 

o Enhanced Transit Accessibility: By improving public transit options, the facility 
will ensure greater access for residents and visitors alike. This accessibility not 
only promotes inclusivity but also encourages higher ridership, further justifying 
the investment. 

o Environmental Benefits: The project supports the use of electric trolleys and 
buses, which will lead to reduced greenhouse gas emissions. The environmental 
advantages translate into long-term savings for the community, such as improved 
air quality and lower health-related costs associated with pollution. 

o Resource Collaboration : The project leverages combined resources from both 
the Town of Estes Park and the Estes Park School District (EPSD). This 
collaborative approach not only optimizes funding but also ensures that the 
facility meets the needs of both entities, making the project more efficient and 
effective. 

o Long-Term Community Investment: Investing in this facility is an investment in 
the long-term sustainability of the community's transportation infrastructure. By 
enhancing public transit, the project supports economic growth, environmental 
stewardship, and improved quality of life for residents. 

In summary, the project provides substantial benefits relative to its total cost, making it a 
financially sound investment in community infrastructure. The collaboration between the Town 
and EPSD further enhances the project's viability and effectiveness, ensuring it meets the 
diverse needs of the community. 

Attachment 1, pg 5 



D 
TOWN OF ESTES P~ 

Reference List 

1. 2024 Estes Park Strategic Plan. Town of Estes Park. 

2. Estes Park Environmental Sustainability Task Force Report (2022). Town of Estes Park 

3. Future Transit Demand Plan. Town of Estes Park. 

4. Zero Emission Vehicles Plan. Town of Estes Park. 

5. Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) Grant Application. Town of Estes Park. 

6. Town of Estes Park Capital Improvement Plan (2024-2028). Town of Estes Park, page 89. 

7. Larimer County Electric Vehicle Plan. Larimer County. 

8. Climate Smart Future Ready Plan. Larimer County. 

9. Colorado Transit Enterprise and Volkswagen Settlement Program. Colorado Department of 
Transportation. 

10. Colorado Electric Vehicle Plan. Colorado Department of Transportation . 

11 . Colorado Transit Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Roadmap. Colorado Department of 
Transportation. 

12. Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) . Colorado Department of 
Transportation. 

13. Colorado Greenhouse Gas Pollution Reduction Roadmap. Colorado Department of Public 
Health and Environment. 

14. North Front Range Metropolitan Planning Organization (NFRMPO) Regional Transportation 
Plan. NFRMPO. 

15. Upper Front Range Regional Transit Plan. Upper Front Range Transportation Planning 
Region. 

16. North Colorado Transit Study. North Front Range MPO. 



D 
TOWNorESTESPARI'-._, 

Cindy Terwilliger 
Department of Transportation 
2020-5339(b) : Electric Trolley Storage Facility Addition (w/2024 FASTER) 
Agreement Number/ PO Number: 25-HTR-ZL-00237 / 491003517 

RE: Scope Change request 

Subject: The Town of Estes Park is requesting a change to the scope of the 5339 (b) 
grant project for constructing an electric trolley facility. The Town proposes adding two 
new potential locations to the existing approved site at 577 Elm Rd. The additional 
locations are: 

1. 1601 Brodie Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517 (Estes Park School District) 
2. 600 Big Thompson, Estes Park, CO 80517 (Estes Park Visitor Center) 

Summary of Request: 

The Town is proposing a change in the scope of the Electric Trolley Facility Project to 
add two new optional locations alongside the original site at 577 Elm Road. After 
completing due diligence reviews on all three sites, the Town will select the most 
suitable location for the facility that will meet the electric vehicle storage requirement for 
the useful life of the building. 

1601 Brodie Avenue: 
This site currently houses the Estes Park School District's transportation facility and 
fleet. It could accommodate both the Town's two electric trolleys and the School 
District's future alternative fuel buses. The scope change would allow for the design of a 
multi-bay facility to house, charge, and service these vehicles, while also providing 
space for future vehicle maintenance needs. Preliminary assessments suggest that 
relocating the charging infrastructure to this location may incur an estimated electrical 
utility cost of up to $100,000. 

600 Big Thompson: 
This site is located next to the Visitor Center and Parks Shop on Town-owned land, 
making it an ideal location for storing the trolleys near the hub of our transit services. 
This central location would reduce drive time and extend the battery life of the trolleys. 

Potential Funding: 
If the scope change is approved by the FTA, Town staff will apply for the Colorado 



Department of Transportation Multi Modal Options Fund Grant to help cover the costs 
associated with relocating the charging infrastructure, utility expenses, and any design 
or construction costs related to the scope change. 

The Town will select one of these three sites after due diligence has been completed by 
the Estes Park School District and the Town's Internal Services Department. At the time 
of this request, the Estes Park School District Board unanimously approved the action 
item to explore a shared electric bus/trolley facility on district property with the Town of 
Estes Park. 

The Town requests Federal Transit Administration (FTA) approval to adjust the scope of 
the 5339(b) grant funds and local match for one of these new sites and seeks guidance 
from the FTA on the next steps. 

Sponsor Rationale: 

The Town requests this scope change for the following reasons: 

1601 Brodie Avenue 

• Optimal Location: The Brodie Avenue site better supports long-term goals and 
grant objectives, offering increased future opportunities and aligning with the 
shared goals of the Town and the School District. 

• Enhanced Collaboration: A shared facility optimizes resource use and 
strengthens community partnerships between the Town and the School District. 

• Cost Efficiency: Shared infrastructure and maintenance reduce costs for both 
parties. 

• Operational Synergy: The site allows for a multi-bay facility accommodating 
both the Town's electric trolleys and the School District's planned addition of 
alternative fuel buses, improving operational coordination . 

• Strategic Alignment: The location supports the Town's 2024 Strategic Goals for 
multimodal transportation and year-round transit services. Its proximity to 
downtown eliminates the need for vehicles to travel up Elm Road , extending 
battery life. 

• Future Expansion: The site offers flexibility for future expansions, including 
additional vehicle storage and charging needs. 

• Community Benefit: Enhances the sustainability of local transportation and 
supports broader goals of reducing emissions and improving air qual ity. 

• Feasibility: Preliminary assessments indicate that relocating the existing 
charging infrastructure is feasible , with manageable utility costs. 

1 



• Grant Compliance: The new site aligns with grant requirements, ensuring the 
facility's long-term use and a likely 40-50 year lifespan, which is more achievable 
at the school facility. 

600 Big Thompson site 

• Optimal Location: The 600 Big Thompson site would be adjacent to the current 
transit hub of Estes Park and save time and money relative to driving to the 577 
Elm address which is outside of downtown. 

• Strategic Alignment: The location supports the Town's 2024 Strategic Goals for 
multimodal transportation and year-round transit services. Its proximity to 
downtown eliminates the need for vehicles to travel up Elm Road, extending 
battery life. 

• Future Expansion: The site offers flexibility for future expansions, including 
additional vehicle storage and charging needs. 

• Community Benefit: Enhances the sustainability of local transportation and 
supports broader goals of reducing emissions and improving air quality. 

• Feasibility: Preliminary assessments indicate that there is adequate electrical 
transformers that exist at this location. 

• Grant Compliance: The new site aligns with grant requirements, ensuring the 
facility's long-term use and a likely 40-50 year lifespan, which is more achievable 
at the school facility. 

Region/Office: FTA Region 8 is supportive of this scope change. 

2 



[]f-
fSTES ~ PAR 

Laura Blevins <lblevins@estes.org> 

RE: Estes Park - 2020-5339(b) - CO-2023-026 

Maddox, Callion (FTA) <callion.maddox@dot.gov> Sat, Nov 2, 2024 at 11 :33 AM 
To: Laura Blevins <lblevins@estes.org> 
Cc: "Belmont, Emma (FTA)" <emma.belmont@dot.gov>, "Rocke - COOT, Robin" <robin.rocke@state.co.us>, Paul Fetherston <pfetherston@estes.org>, Derek Pastor 
<dpastor@estes.org>, Dana Klein <dklein@estes.org>, Audrey Dakan - COOT <audrey.dakan@state.co.us>, "Kullas, Robyn (FTA)" <robyn.kullas@dot.gov>, Shilpa Kulkarni - COOT 
<shilpa.kulkarni@state.co.us>, Sarah Collette - COOT <sarah.collette@state.co.us> 

Hello Laura, 

I reviewed the request, and because this is passthrough award, I am waiting on a concurrence letter from COOT (agreement with the amendment request) . Once I receive that letter, I 
will forward to our HQ with approval form RB leadership. At that point, it typically takes 30 days for a response. 

Thank you, 

0 
U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

(Quoted text hidden] 

Gallion Maddox 

Transportation Program Specialist 

FTA Region 8 

Callion.Maddox@dot.gov 

303.362.2414 (office) 

202.993.0353 (cell) 



Local MMOF Project Application - 2024 
Complete and submit this form-fillable application electronically! Any printed, scanned or converted files will 
not be accepted. Answer all questions fully. 

Transportation Planning Region: Upper Front Range -------------------
Applicant Information 
Sponsor Agency Name: Town of Platteville 

Applicant Contact (name & title): Troy Renken, Town Manager 
-------------------------

Em a ii: trenken@plattevillegov.org 

Phone: 970.785.2245 

Project Manager (name & title): Troy Renken, Town Manager 
-------------------------

Em a ii: trenken@plattevillegov.org 

Phone: 970.785.2245 

Project Description 

Project Name: Downtown Business District Sidewalk & Landscape Improvement Project 

Project Type (select all that apply): 

Fixed-route or On-demand Transit: 
D Capital, Rolling Stock 
D Equipment 
D Operations 
D Facility 
D Planning 

D Transportation Demand Management program 
D Multimodal Mobility project enabled by new technology 
D Multimodal Transportation Study 
~ Bicycle or Pedestrian Project 
D Transportation Modeling 
D GHG Mitigation Project 

Project Physical Location & Limits (Briefly describe the routes, mileposts, endpoints, address, boundaries, or 
description of the service area of the project, including intersecting roadways.) 

The project area will be the Downtown Business District in the 500-700 blocks of Main Street and the 300 
block of Marion Avenue. Sidewalks on both sides of these blocks will be included in the project. 

Q 
County(ies ): Municipality(ies ): 

Weld Platteville 



Project Scope of Work: 
List and describe the actual Work and Tasks/Deliverables that will be done. (Do not include why it's being 
done or its benefits - see Project Benefits section below) 

The existing sidewalks on both sides of the 300 block of Marion Avenue (Town of Platteville 
right-of-way) and both sides of the 500-700 blocks of Main Street/ Business US85 (COOT 
right-of-way) will be replaced or upgraded due to very poor condition and deterioration. Various 
sections of curb and gutter will also be replaced due to either missing sections or poor condition . 

Match Funding Required 
Total Project Cost: $ 891,036 

Required Match Rate (50% default): 25% (Review the Match policy and approved match rate tables) 

Minimum Match Funding Required: $ 222,759.00 
(auto calculated) ---------- -

Match Rate Explanation (not required of Counties or Municipalities): 
Provide a brief description of your agency's service area to justify the match rate claimed above. 

In 2020 the Town of Platteville recieved $250,000 in MMOF funding to complete the Division Blvd Sidew, 

Project Funding 
Identify below all the sources and amounts of funds proposed for use on the proposed project, including the 
amounts and years of MMOF funding requested, and whether other project funds are already secured (through 
an award or a formal agency's budget) or are unsecured funds required and being sought through other award 
programs or contributors. 

MMOF Funding Request - Indicate the amount of funds requested by State Fiscal Year (FY), based on the year 
anticipated to be spent on the project. (NOTE: The FY is July 1 - June 30, with FY2025 beginning July 1, 2024) 

FY2025: $25,000 

FY2026: $25,000 

FY2027: $618,277 

FY2028: $0 

Total MMOF Requested: $ 668,277 
(auto-calculated) ------------

Other Secured Funding - Provide the Sources, Types, Year(s) and Amounts of project funding that has 
already been secured by an award or a formal budget or commitment (attached all formal documentation). 

Source (a'!encv and prOQram name): Type Year(s) Amount($) 

Town of Platteville Streets Fund Local 2025 $6,250.00 
Town of Platteville Streets Fund Local 2026 $6,250.00 

Town of Platteville Streets Fund Local 2027 $ 210,259.00 

Local 

*Provide evidence of all Secured Funding in Attachment C (resolutions, adopted budgets, award notifications, 
letters, etc.) 



Other Funding Required, but not yet secured - Provide the Sources, Types and Amounts of other required 
project funding that is being sought but is not yet secured by a formal award or commitment, and the date 
anticipated to be secured. NOTE: In-kind fundin!;? must be pre-aooroved by COOT. 

Date 
Source (agency and program name): Type anticipated 

N/A 

Total Project Funding: $ 891 036 00 
(Must equal Total Project Cost above) _____ , __ • ___ _ 

Project Timeline 
Provide the expected month and year for each of the following stages of the project. 

Projected Date to Advertise: 

Projected Start Dates 

Planning: 

Design: 

Construction: 

Projected Completion Date: 

Project Readiness: 

05/26 

05/25 

07/25 

07/26 

01/27 

Amount($) 

Right of Way (ROW) - Is the ROW for this project secured? Describe and explain the status/issues below and 
attach referenced documents in Attachment G: 

The right-of-way in the 300 block of Marion Avenue is within the Town's street right-of-way and the 
right-of-way along the 500-700 blocks of Main Street are within COOT right-of-way. The Town would 
pursue all COOT permitting requirements for approval for this project. 

Environmental: Briefly describe what environmental review or clearances have been completed and attach 
referenced documents in Attachment E: 

The streets and right-of-ways were initially platted when the Town of Platteville was founded in 1871 and 
no environmental reviews have been done to date. The majority of the project area is in COOT 
right-of-way with a 1-block section located in Town right-of-way. If any environmental reviews were done 
in the project area COOT would have the records. Otherwise the environmental reviews will be 
completed during the design and preconstruction process. 



Project Benefits 
Briefly describe how the project provides the following specific benefits (n/a if not applicable): 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity - how the project contributes to a complete bicycle, pedestrian, transit 
and/or other multimodal system. 

The sections or blocks of this project area along Main Street and Marion Ave are the primary 
locations of businesses in the downtown business district. Pedestrian and bicycle access for all 
ages and residents in the community to the businesses will be improved to allow enhanced 
access Also the b11sioesses on the east side of Maio Street io the oroiect scone area do oat P 

2. Safety - Project improves roadway safety for non-motorized users. 

The current sidewalks are either deteriorating or unsafe in many locations and this project will 
provide safe pedestrian access and improved mobility which will promote more use and deter 
pedestrians and bicylists from using the roadway. The intersection of Main & Marion will include 
enhanced crosswalks with "b11lbo11ts" on all corners with flasbioa crosswalk beacons P 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation - Project reduces GHG by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) or 
increasing multimodal travel. 

The Downtown Business District Sidewalk Improvement Project will provide a safer and ADA 
compliant pedestrian access to area businesses that will likely reduce vehicle use resulting in 
less GHG as residents and business patrons will utilize the improved sidewalks. 

4. Equity - Project benefits Disproportionately Impacted (DI) communities or other underserved and 
disadvantaged community members. 

The project area is centrally located in the community and will provide improved pedestrian and 
bicycle access to the downtown businesses for all residents. Platteville has a poverty rate of 
8.1 % and a senior citizens (60 yo+) comprising approximately 21 % of the populution. Platteville 
bas an overall narn ,latioo of 2 962 with a oer caoital income of $37 845 with aooroximatelv 55% P 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health - Project provides access to medical facil ities and services or to 
recreation areas, increases active transportation or provides other quality-of-life benefits. 

Platteville does not have any medical faciltiies but the project area includes businesses 
consisting of the post office, chiropractor, realitor, fitness club, construction office and the three 
of the largest restaurants in the community. These are the primary businesses in the downtown 
area that residents visit oo a rem ,lar basis Ibe Downtown B11sioess District is located one blocD 

6. Economic Impact - Project increases access to/from/within employment or economic centers, bolsters 
tourism or commerce, or decreases the burden on local resources. 

The Downtown Business District consists of primary businesses that were previously mentioned 
which provides services and employment opportunities for the community. The Town Board and 
staff have been working with the local Economic Development Committee to make 
imnmvemeots to the Downtown B11sioess District to exoaod and attract new b11sioess P 

7. Cost-Benefit - Project provides substantial benefits relat ive to the total cost of the project. 

The Town has been working with COOT since 2014 to devolve Main Street and make much 
needed infrastructure improvements including new roadway, sidewalks, lighting and signage. 
The most recent estimated cost (engineers opinion) to complete these various improvements is 
$3 252 733 fexch1dioa s11barade 11tilities) and this sidewalk imorovemeot oroiect wo11ld P 



Planning & Support 
Describe relevant planning, studies and history related to the project: 

In 2016 the Town completed a Main Street Design Concept Plan with the assistance of CU Denver 
students which included improved pedestrian and vehicle access to local businesses in the project 
area. In 2019 the Town Engineer completed a Main Street Reconstruction Cost Estimate that was 
used in devolution discussions with COOT that were not successful. Also in 2019-20 the Town Q 
Describe the local, regional, statewide, public and private support for the project and provide evidence in 
Attachment C. 

This project is included in the Town's 2022-2025 Capital Improvement Plan (project list) and continues 
to be a high priority due to the importance of improving the primary access through the business 
district and community. As previously stated, the Town has been pursuing the devolution of Main 
Street for approximately 1 0+ years in order to make these long-term infrastructure improvements and g 

List all Local, Regional and/or Statewide Plans supporting and/or identifying the project: 

Town of Platteville 2022-2025 Capital Improvement Plan, Main Street Design Concept (i.e. 
Streetscape Plan) and Economic Development Strategic Plan. 

Supplemental Attachments Required - please label attachments accordingly. 

Required of All Projects: 
~ Attachment A - Cost estimate and project implementation schedule (for Transit: outline the capital, 

operating and equipment costs and timelines separately) 
~ Attachment B - Evidence of Secured Funding, including sponsor and contributing agency resolutions, 

Award Notifications, commitment letters, etc. 
~ Attachment C - Evidence of supporting planning, studies and local/regional/statewide support 

Required of Infrastructure Projects: 
~ Attachment D - Maps, plans and photographs 
~ Attachment E - Environmental Review 
~ Attachment F - Proposed maintenance plans, agreements, covenants 
~ Attachment G - Right-of-way, easements, legal property description 



CDOT Review & Recommendations 
CDOT Review Lead: Bryce Reeves 

Comments/Concerns/Questions 

Project is eligible as Bike/ped . Not sure how this 
meets capital/rolling stock for transit project 

Eligibility 

Construction estimate seems reasonable. Any 
unforseen ROW/enviro/design costs could impact 
ability to complete the project. Do you intend to 

Budget/ 
pay for all preconstruction out of Town funds? If 
not, all project costs need to be included in the 

Funding estimates/budgeUrequest. 
The MMOF funds requested section should 
indicate only the MMOF funding needed each 
fiscal year, not the total project expenditures 
anticipated . 

Thre is no way this proejct will be able to start 
design on 3/2025 and then go to costruction on 
7 /2025. There are required design reviews, and 
clearances that need to be obtained all of which 

Readiness/ take time. If any type of ROW will be needed, 

Timeline including temporary easements, your project will 
take at least a year to get to construction . Based 
on the info you put in ENviro, no environmental 
work as been started/completed for this project 
so that will take time. 

Based on the language in the application, 
existing sidewalks will be replaced and ADA 
compliance addressed at some locations. Any 
plans to replace existing sidewalks with wider 

Scope & sidewalks anywhere or try to implement any of 

Feasibility the main street design concepts? 

Missing attachments E-G. If you haven't 
started/completed enviro review, maint 
agreements, or ROW then include an 
attachments that states you have not done this 

Other 
but will be completed as part of the 
preconstruction process 

Date: 10/7/2024 
Recommendations 

Uncheck capital/rolling stock box 

Recommend adding CM services to the 
construction budget. 

Please correct the MMOF funding 
section to reflect only the amt of MMOF 
funds requested for each Fiscal Year. 

Revise your schedule. Missing 
implementation schedule from 
Attachment A. 

I think for this project to be 
competative, you'll need to include 
upgrades to the existing system by 
including streetscaping elements 
shown in your main street design 
concept included as an attachment. 
Otherwise this proejct will become 
throwaway when sometime in the 
future you implement your main streets 
concepts 

Please label your attachments that 
apply to the required list. Don't leave it 
up to the reviewer to guess which page 
is meant for which attachment. 



Platteville MMOF Project Application 2024 

November 7, 2024 

TOWN OF PLATIEVIILE 

Troy Renken 
Town Manager 

400 Grand Avenue, Platteville, Colorado 80651 
970.785.224.S - 970.785 .2,t76 (I) 

(tre11ken@plattevillcgov.org) 

Attachmenl A 

Cosl Estimate & Project Implementation Schedule 

T he Engineers Estimate of Probable Cost for Construction provided by EPS Group / orthern Engineering is 
included witl1 this attachment. This estimate includes costs for design & surveying, preconstruction and 
construction phases along witl1 streetscape elementc; and construction managemenL 

The Implementation Schedule for Lltis project is as follows: 

Planning will begin in May 2025 followed by design and engineering in July 2025. This overall preconstruction 
and design phase will take approximately 9-12 months to complele. 

The projected date to advertise for RFP's is May 2026 followed by contract execution in June and construction 
starts in July 2026. Projecl completion is expected by January 2027 allowing a 6-month construction period. 

The Implement,1.tion Schedule is a general timeline and subjecl to change if necessary. 



~ ENGINEERS ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST FOR CONSTRUCTION am 

Item 

202. 

202. 

202. 

202. 

210. 

210. 

210. 

210. 

210. 

608. 

608. 

608. 

608. 

608. 

610. 

614. 

202. 

207. 

214. 

608. 

608. 

622. 

622. 

623. 

208. 

208. 

620. 

625. 

626. 

630. 

TOWN OF PLATTEVILLE 
MAIN STREET SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS 

NOVEMBER 6, 2024 

Description 

DEMOLITION 
REMOVAL OF CONCRETE 

REMOVAL OF ASPHALT MAT 
REMOVAL OF LANDSCAPING 

REMOVAL OF GRAVEL 
REPLACE CHAIN LINK FENCE 

REPLACE WOOD FENCE 

RESET SIGN 
RESET MAIL BOX 
RESET FIRE HYDRANT 

SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS 
CONCRETE SIDEWALK (4" THICK)(WESTI 
CONCRETE SIDEWALK (4" THICK)(EASTI(ELEVATED) 
HANDICAP RAMP 

TRUNCATED DOMES 
CONCRITT DRIVEWAY (6" THICK) 

FLASHING BEACON (SOLAR POWERED) 

SIGN PANEL (CLASS 1) 

STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS (MARIQN/MAINl 
SIGNAGE, BANNERS, MISC AMENITIES 

PLANTING BEDS (TOPSOIL)(SHRUBS/PERENNIALS) 

DECIDUOUS TREES 2" CAL 
CONCRETE SIDEWALK (4" THICK)(6" ABC) 
PAVER TYPE 1 (SAND BASE AND A.B.C.) 

BENCHES 
BIKE RACKS 
IRRIGATION SYSTEM (COMPLETE) 

EROSION CONTROL 
SILTFENCE 
CONCRETE WASHOUT 

~ 

SANITARY FACILITY 

CONSTRUCTION SU RVEYING 

MOBILIZATION 

TRAFFIC CONTROL 

TOTAL 

Quantity Units 

1,966 SY 
188 SY 
496 SY 

559 SY 
200 LF 

80 LF 

18 EA 

1 EA 
2 EA 

2,235 SY 

740 SY 
16 EA 

280 SF 
262 SY 

2 EA 
24 SF 

1 LS 

480 SF 

4 EA 
2,000 SF 

2,400 SF 
4 EA 

2 EA 
1 LS 

3,244 LF 

1 EA 

1 EA 

LS 

LS 

LS 

CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATE TOTAL : 

PROJECT CONTINGENCY: 

TOTAL: 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION ESTIMATE: 

PAGE 1 of 1 

Unit Price 

$35.00 

$8.00 

$3.00 

$4.00 

$18.00 

$25.00 

S150.00 

$150.00 

$1,500.00 

$70.00 

$110.00 

$5,000.00 

S50.00 

$80.00 

$12,000.00 

$50.00 

$50,000.00 

$15.00 

$800.00 

S 11.00 
$26.00 

$2,000.00 
$1,000.00 

$40,000.00 

$3.00 

$3,000.00 

S1,500.00 

$15,000.00 

$30,000.00 

$25,000.00 

20% 

Amount 

$68,810 

$1,504 

$1 ,488 

$2,236 

S3,600 

$2,000 

S2,700 

S150 

$3,000 

$156,450 

$81,400 

$80,000 

$14,000 

S20,960 

$24,000 

$1 ,200 

$50,000 

$7,200 

$3,200 

$22,000 

S62,400 

$8,000 

$2,000 

$40,000 

$9,732 
$3,000 

$1 ,500 

$15,000 

$30,000 

$25,000 

$742,530 

$742,530 

$148,506 

$891 ,036 

$60,000 



Plalleville MMOF Project Application 2024 

November 7, 2024 

TOWN OF PLATTEVTI.T,E 

Troy Renken 
Towu Manager 

400 Grand Avenue, Platteville, Colorado 80651 
970.785.224-5 - 970.785.2476 (() 

(trenken@plattevillegov.org) 

Attachrnenl B 

Evidence of Secured Funding 

The Town Board of Trustees have dedicated approximately $1,138,700 in reserve funds for Downtown 
Revitalization. These funds are placed in a COLO Trnsl accounl and are reserved for sidewalk, roadway, storm 
drainage, street scaping and other improvements needed in the Downtown Main Street Business DistricL The 
overall engineers probably opinion of cost lo complete all aspects of the Downtown Revitalization, including the 
reconstruction of Main Street, is approximately $4,500,000 with a portion of this funding going towards the 
proposed Downtown Business District Sidewalk Improvement Project. 

The Mayor and Board ofTruslees have agreed lo approve a Resolution to formally commit the needed funding 
for the local match once the grant award is approved. The DRAFT 2025 Operating & Capita.I Budget is included 
with this att.,1.chment and is scheduled for approval on December 3, 2024. In order to use the above mentioned 
reserve funds the funds musl be budgeted as an expenditure in the Genera.I Fund in the Street section. The 2025 
budget reflects $350,000 for PW Capital Items that would be used towards this project. 



Local MMOF Project Application - 2024 
Complete and submit this form-fillable application electronically! Any printed, scanned or converted files will 
not be accepted. Answer all questions fully. 

Transportation Planning Region: Upper Front Range -------------------
Applicant Information 
Sponsor Agency Name: Weld County 

-----------------------------
Applicant Contact (name & title): Evan Pinkham, Transportation Planner 

Email: epinkham@weld .gov 

Phone: (970)400-3727 

Project Manager (name & title): Evan Pinkham, Transportation Planner 

Email: epinkham@weld.gov 

Phone: (970)400-3727 

Project Description 

Project Name: W Id C t O D d T ·t S • e oun y n- eman rans, erv,ce 

Project Type (select all that apply): 

Fixed-route or On-demand Transit: 
D Capital, Rolling Stock 
0 Equipment 
~ Operations 
0 Facility 
0 Planning 

D Transportation Demand Management program 
0 Multimodal Mobility project enabled by new technology 
0 Multimodal Transportation Study 
0 Bicycle or Pedestrian Project 
0 Transportation Modeling 
0 GHG Mitigation Project 

Project Physical Location & Limits (Briefly describe the routes, mileposts, endpoints, address, boundaries, or 
description of the service area of the project, including intersecting roadways.) 

The Weld County portion of the Upper Front Range TPR boundary. 

County(ies): 

Weld 

Municipality(ies ): 

Fort Lupton, Keenesburg, Platteville, Gilcrest, 
Kersey, Ault, and Nunn 



Project Scope of Work: 
List and describe the actual Work and Tasks/Deliverables that will be done. (Do not include why it' s being 
done or i ts benefits - see Project Benefits section below) 

The proposed project is for Weld County to contract mobi lity services to provide an on-demand transit 
program for individuals that are 60+ and/or disabled individuals . The program will extend our current 
program which is expected to operate until the end of 2026. This program will operate from January 
2027-December 2028. The program allows for unincorporated Weld County residents (in the service 
area), and individuals living in Ault, Fort Lupton, Gilcrest, Keenesburg , Kersey, Nunn, and Platteville tag 
Match Funding Required 
Total Project Cost: $ 553,720 

Required Match Rate (50% default): 25% (Review the Match policy and approved match rate tables) 

Minimum Match Funding Required: $ 138,430.00 
(auto calculated) -----------

Match Rate Explanation (not required of Counties or Municipalities) : 
Provide a brief description of your agency's service area to justify the match rate claimed above. 

Weld County requests a lowered local match amount due to budget constraints with several of our partne 

Project Funding 
Identify below all the sources and amounts of funds proposed for use on the proposed project, including the 
amounts and years of MMOF funding requested, and whether other project funds are already secured (through 
an award or a formal agency's budget) or are unsecured funds required and being sought through other award 
programs or contributors. 

MMOF Funding Request - Indicate the amount of funds requested by State Fiscal Year (FY), based on the year 
anticipated to be spent on the project. (NOTE: The FY is July 1 • June 30, with FY2025 beginning July 1, 2024) 

FY2025: 

FY2026: 

FY2027: $125,993 

FY2028: $ 137,422 

Total MMOF Requested: $263,415 
(auto-calculated) -----------

Other Secured Funding - Provide the Sources, Types, Year(s) and Amounts of project funding that has 
already been secured by an award or a formal budget or commitment (attached all formal documentation). 

Source (agency and program name): Type Year(s) Amount($) 

Weld County Local 2027-2028 $47,306.18 
Ault, Fort Lupton, Gi lcrest, Keenesburg, Kersey, Nunn, and Local 2027-2028 $40,498.82 Platteville 

*Provide evidence of all Secured Funding in Attachment C (resolutions, adopted budgets, award notifications, 
letters, etc.) 



Other Funding Required, but not yet secured - Provide the Sources, Types and Amounts of other required 
project funding that is being sought but is not yet secured by a formal award or commitment, and the date 
anticipated to be secured. NOTE: In-kind funding must be pre-approved by CDOT. 

Date 
Source (agency and prOQram name): Type anticf pated Amount($) 

FTA 5311 Federal 11/26 $ 101,250.00 

FTA 5311 Federal 11/27 $ 101,250.00 

Total Project Funding: $ 553 720 00 
(Must equal Total Project Cost above) _____ , __ • ___ _ 

Project Timeline 
Provide the expected month and year for each of the following stages of the project. 

Projected Date to Advertise: 

Projected Start Dates 

Planning: 

Design: 

Construction: 

Projected Completion Date: 

Project Readiness: 

11/26 

12/28 

Right of Way (ROW) - Is the ROW for this project secured? Describe and explain the status/ issues below and 
attach referenced documents in Attachment G: 

N/A 

Environmental: Briefly describe what environmental review or clearances have been completed and attach 
referenced documents in Attachment E: 

N/A 



Project Benefits 
Briefly describe how the project provides the following specific benefits (n/a if not applicable): 

1. Network/Modal Connectivity - how the project contributes to a complete bicycle, pedestrian, transit 
and/or other multimodal system. 

The program will greatly improve mobility for Weld County's aging population. The program will 
help to allow for older adults, and individuals with a disability to remain in their current homes 
and stil l get to the services that they need. Connectivity will be greatly improved for these 
individ11als P 

2. Safety - Project improves roadway safety for non-motorized users. 

This program does not greatly impact safety for non-motorized users. 

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Mitigation - Project reduces GHG by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) or 
increasing multimodal travel. 

The program will increase mulitmodal travel within Weld County. 

4. Equity - Project benefits Disproportionately Impacted (DI) communities or other underserved and 
disadvantaged community members. 

This program will serve many DI communities in Weld County and will serve many 
disadvantaged community members. A relatively high percent of the population within the 
service boundary is living with a disability, which underscores the need for transportation 
assistance in the ceaion Ibis on-demand transit ocoacaro bas rn,roecrn,s cororo11oitv benefits P 

5. Quality of Life and Public Health - Project provides access to medical facilities and services or to 
recreation areas, increases active transportation or provides other quality-of-life benefits. 

The program provides the opportunity for riders to go to recreation/senior centers, get to their 
place of employment, and among other things go to medical appointments. Giving these 
residents a more reliable form of transportation will help them engage more with their 
cororo1 mitv wbicb is a aceat benefit foe the cororo1 mitv Pcovidioa this notion foe tcaosooctation P 

6. Economic Impact - Project increases access to/from/within employment or economic centers, bolsters 
tourism or commerce, or decreases the burden on local resources. 

This program will encourage the population being served to obtain employment if desired, when 
transportation was previously a barrier. This population will have better access to improve 
economic conditions. 

7. Cost-Benefit - Project provides substantial benefits relative to the total cost of the project. 

Giving these residents a more reliable form of transportation will help them engage more with 
their community, which is a great benefit for the community. 



Planning 8: Support 
Describe relevant planning, studies and history related to the project: 

Weld County has operated an on-demand transit program in this area since August 2023. 

Describe the local, regional, statewide, public and private support for the project and provide evidence in 
Attachment C. 

The communites of Ault, Fort Lupton, Gilcrest, Keenesburg, Kersey, Nunn, and Platteville have 
provided support to this program. These communites will assist in local match funding. 

List all Local, Regional and/or Statewide Plans supporting and/or identifying the project: 

Weld County has several goals in the 2045 Weld County Transportation Plan regarding the need for a 
variety of transit options including on-demand transit programs. 

Supplemental Attachments Required - please label attachments accordingly. 

Required of All Projects: 
~ Attachment A - Cost estimate and project implementation schedule (for Transit: outline the capital, 

operating and equipment costs and timelines separately) 
~ Attachment B - Evidence of Secured Funding, including sponsor and contributing agency resolutions, 

Award Notifications, commitment letters, etc. 
~ Attachment C - Evidence of supporting planning, studies and local/regional/statewide support 

Required of Infrastructure Projects: 
D Attachment D - Maps, plans and photographs 
D Attachment E - Environmental Review 
D Attachment F - Proposed maintenance plans, agreements, covenants 
D Attachment G - Right-of-way, easements, legal property description 



2027 

Item Hourly Cost Hrs. per Year (50hrs/week 50.8 weeks/year) Cost 

Operating Costs (1 Bus) $ 106.00 2540 $ 269,240.00 

2027 Total Cost $ 269,240.00 

(-) FTA 5311 Funding $ 101,250.00 

(-) MMOF Grant Funds $ 125,992.50 

2027 Local Match $ 41,997.50 

2028 

Item Hourly Cost Hrs. per Year (50hrs/week 50.8 weeks/year) Cost 

Operating Costs (1 Bus) $ 112.00 2540 $ 284,480.00 

2028 Total Cost $ 284,480.00 

(-) FTA 5311 Funding $ 101,250.00 

(-) MMOF Grant Funds $ 137,422.50 

2028 Local M atch $ 45,807.50 

2027-2028 

Item Hourly Cost Hrs. per Year (50hrs/week 50.8 weeks/year) Cost 

Operating Costs (1 Bus) $ 112.00 2540 $ 553,720.00 

Total Cost $ 553,720.00 

(-) FTA 5311 Funding $ 202,500.00 

(-) MMOF Grant Funds $ 263,415.00 
Total Local Match $ 87,805.00 

Project Implementation Schedule 

Activity Date 

Draft Application Submittal 10/3/2024 

Final Application Submittal 11/7/2024 

Public Outreach Continually 

Program Start Date 1/1/2027 
Program End Date 12/31/2028 



Town Population Percent Cost/Bus 2027 {After FTA 5311) Cost/Bus 2021 (After FTA 5311) Local Match/ Bus 2027 Local Match/ Bus 2021 local Match for 2027-2021 
Platteville 2950 7.95" s 13,349.78 s 14,560.87 s 3,337.44 s 3,640.22 s 6,977.66 

Fort Lupton 7974 21.48" s 36,085.13 s 39,358.76 s 9,021.28 s 9,839.69 s 18,860.97 

Gilcrest 1027 2.77" s 4,647.53 s 5,069.16 s 1,161.88 s 1,267.29 s 2,429 .17 

Keenesburg 1250 3.37" s 5,656.69 s 6,169.86 s 1,414.17 s 1,542.46 s 2,956.64 
Kerwy 1498 4.04% s 6,778.97 s 7,393.96 s 1,694.74 s 1,848.49 s 3,543.23 
Ault 1920 5.17" s 8,688.67 s 9,476.90 s 2,172.17 s 2,369.23 s 4,541.39 

Nunn 503 1.35" s 2,276.25 s 2,482 .75 s 569.06 s 620.69 s 1,189.75 

Wold 20000 53.88" s 90 506.98 s 98 717.74 s 22,626.74 s 24,679.44 s 47,306.18 

37122 100.00% s 167,990.00 s 183,230.00 s 41,997.50 s 45,807.50 s 87,805.00 



TIMNATH 

SEVERANCE 
WINDSOR 

"~f 
LONGMONT 

I"''""' 
FREDERICK 

DACONO 

Weld County On-Demand Transit Service 
Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region Service Area 

-- State Highway 

Service Area 

~=: Weld County Boundary 



November 7, 2024 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
1111 H Street 

Greeley, Colorado 80631 
Website: www.weldgov.com 
Email : epinkham@weld.gov 

Phone: (970) 400-3750 
Fax: (970) 304-6497 

RE: FY 2024-2028 MMOF Call for Projects - On-demand Transit Program Local Match Reduction 

Dear Colorado Transportation Commission, 

Weld County is formally requesting a reduction to the local match requirement for MMOF funding as 
determined by the Colorado Transportation Commission and stated in the MMOF Program Overview. Weld 
County is looking to contract transportation service on behalf of eight Weld County communities to continue 
a much-needed transit mobility program to the region. The program serves our 60+ community as well as 
individuals living with a disability with transportation to a variety of regional destinations at no cost to the 
rider. This much needed program promotes a complete and integrated multimodal system in Upper Front 
Range region . The program meets several of the funding goals of MMOF including: 

• Benefits seniors by making aging in place more feasible . 
• Benefits residents of rural and disproportionately impacted communities by providing them with 

more access and flexible public transportation services. 
• Provides enhanced mobility for persons with disabilities. 
• Reduces emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases. 

Weld County requests a lowered local match amount due to budget constraints with several of our partner 
communities. The communities of Ault, Fort Lupton, Gilcrest, Keenesburg , Kersey, Nunn, and Platteville 
are looking to continue to provide a portion of the local match for the program, however struggle to come 
up with the proportional amount needed. According to the MMOF Program Overview, Weld County is 
required to match MMOF funding at 50%. We are requesting this amount be reduced to 25%. Weld County 
and our partner communities look forward to continuing to provide this service to our residents and 
municipal partners. Thank you for your consideration of reducing Weld County's MMOF local match from 
50% to 25%, to be able to contract this very important transportation service to our unincorporated residents 
and small rural communities. 

Sincerely, 

£~Jiu.--
Evan Pinkham , MPA 
Transportation Planner 
Weld County Public Works 



RESOLUTION 

RE: APPROVE MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION AND MITIGATION OPTIONS FUND 
(MMOF) CALL FOR PROJECTS APPLICATION FOR 2027-2028 ON-DEMAND 
TRANSIT SERVICES, AND AUTHORIZE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TO 
SUBMIT ELECTRONICALLY - UPPER FRONT RANGE TRANSPORTATION 
PLANNING REGION (UFRTPR) 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Weld County, Colorado, pursuant to 
Colorado statute and the Weld County Home Rule Charter, is vested with the authority of 
administering the affairs of Weld County, Colorado, and 

WHEREAS, the Board has been presented with a Multimodal Transportation and 
Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) Call for Projects Application for 2027-2028 On-Demand Transit 
Services from the County of Weld , State of Colorado, by and through the Board of County 
Commissioners of Weld County, on behalf of the Department of Public Works, to the Upper Front 
Range Transportation Planning Region (UFRTPR), with further terms and conditions being as 
stated in said application, and 

WHEREAS, after review, the Board deems it advisable to approve said application, a copy 
of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Weld County, Colorado, that the Multimodal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) 
Call for Projects Application for 2027-2028 On-Demand Transit Services from the County of Weld, 
State of Colorado, by and through the Board of County Commissioners of Weld County , on behalf 
of the Department of Public Works, to the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region 
(UFRTPR) , be, and hereby, is approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board that Evan Pinkham, Department of Planning 
Services, be, and hereby is, authorized to electronical ly submit said application. 

ce: Pw(CH/t)t/ /OTJ/S"B/Ef/') 

\Of 14 /i'-I 
2024-2601 

EG0082 



MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION AND MITIGATION OPTIONS FUND (MMOF) CALL FOR 
PROJECTS APPLICATION FOR 2027-2028 ON-DEMAND TRANSIT SERVICES - UPPER 
FRONT RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING REGION (UFRTPR) 
PAGE 2 

The above and foregoing Resolution was , on motion duly made and seconded, adopted 
by the following vote on the 2nd day of October, AD., 2024. 

ATTEST: ~ ~ ~;J_ 
Weld County Clerk to the Board 

Date of signature: ! D/cg} Q 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
WELD co~ 

~ o___; 

2024-2601 
EG0082 



October 4, 2024 

Dear CDOT Scoring and Selection Panel, 

Mayor Zo Hubbard 
130 S. McKinley Avenue 
Fort Lupton, CO 80621 

Phone: 303 .857.6694 
Fax: 303 .857.0351 

Mayor@fortluptonco.gov 
www.fortluptonco .gov 

As Mayor of the City of Fort Lupton, I am writing on behalf of t he City to support the Multimodal 
Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund application being submitted for the Via Mobility project by 
Weld County through the Upper Front Range Transportation Planning Region. 

The City was fortunate enough to benefit from a previous grant cycle that currently is running this 
program for our community. The program continues to demonstrate that the residents of Weld County 
and smaller communities need these services. The economics of running a standalone program would 
be challenging for a community such as ours. Considering our limited resources, a collaborative effort 
fund ing by grants like this one will continue to create viabl e opportunities to benefit our citizens. 

The City Council is earmarking up to $18,658.64 as our portion of the required local match to help make 
this needed resource a reality. This is a true regional effort to help Weld County and its small 
communities to provide needed services for those who get forgotten all too often . 

I look forward to this this project becoming an asset to the region. I encourage CDOT to approve the 
grant application submitted for the Via Mobility Project. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions. 
; 



Gil Ct: 

Evan Pinkham, Transportation Planner 
Weld County Public Works 
1111 H Street 
Greeley, CO 80631 

Dear Evan, 

October 30,204 

PO Box 128 
304 l11

' Street 
Gilcre\'t, CO 80623 
(970) 737 2426 
(970) 737-2427 fax 

wwu·. townofg if crest. org 

The Town of Gilcrest Board of Trustees would like to provide this letter of support for the 
continued services of the Via Mobility on Demand Transportation program. We 
understand that the Town of Gilcrest match contributions will be allocated for the Town's 
share. We appreciate Weld County's including the Town of Gilcrest in this project and 
think it will be beneficial to our community. 

Best regards, 

Steve Nothem 
Mayor 



E an Pinkham 
Transportation Planner 
Weld County Public Work 
1 I 1 1 H Street 
Greeley CO 80631 

Dear E an, 

ow 
185U C 

POR 

PHO 70 5 72 4 0 

October l 7 2024 

The Town of unn Board of Trustees would like to pro ide this letter of 
upport for the continued ervices of the ia Mobility on Demand Transportation 

program. We under tand that the To n of unn match contributions will be 
aJlocated for the Town hare. e appreciate Weld aunty s including the Town 
of unn in thi project and think that thi will continue to be a great ben fit to our 
citizens within our community. 

~/~~----
A a or Jordan able, 

Town of unn 
Board of Trustee 



October 22, 2024 

UFR Regional Planning Commission 
Weld BOCC Chair Kevin Ross 

TOWN OF PLATTEVILLE 

Micheal Cowper, Mayor 
400 Grand Avenue, Platteville, Co lorado 80651 

970.785 .2245 - 970.785.2476 (f) 
( mcowper@plattevillegov.org) 

Reference: Via Mobility Program & MMOF Grant Application 

Commissioner Ross, 

On behalf of the Platteville Board of Trustees I am submitting this Letter of Support for the Multimodal 
Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) grant application that Weld County is pursuing to 
continue the Via Mobility public transit project for many smaller communities in the area. 

The Board of Trustees and I firmly believe that this program has benefited our senior population and other 
residents by providing them with a reliable and convenient transportation option that the Town would otherwise 
not be able to afford. Our community recently participated in the Via Mobility pilot program with strong 
participation and positive results and the Town looks forward to continuing this program through a partnership 
with Weld County and surrounding rural communities. 

Along with this Letter of Support the Board of Trustees have agreed to commit funding of approximately 
$6,902.91 for our community local match to help fund the program through 2028 . The Via Mobility program is 
an asset and needed resource for rural communities in the area and we look forward to working with Weld 
County and area communities to provide these important services to our residents. 

The Town of Platteville supports this program and highly recommends that the MMOF grant funding be 
approved to continue this important public transportation service. 

Sincerely, 

1chael Cowper 
Mayor of Platteville 



November 7, 2024 

Evan Pinkham 

Evan Pinkham, MPA 
Transportation Planner 
Weld County Planning Services 
1402 N. 17th Avenue I Greeley 

Re: Via Mobility Program 

TOWN OF KERSEY 
' I E 9 0 

Dear C-Dot & Via Mobility Program Committee: 

The Town of Kersey would like to formally express its interest in the VIA Mobility service 
currently being evaluated in partnership with Weld County. After meeting with Weld 
County representatives, we are confident that this program will provide significant benefits 
to our residents, enhancing accessibility and mobility options for our community. 

In May 10, 2022 the Kersey Town Board supported the proposed VIA Mobility service and 
has continued to do so every year since then . The board enthusiastically supports this 
program and recognizes the value it brings to our residents. 

In support of the program's success, we kindly request a reduction in the overall matching 
funds required from Weld County. This adjustment would greatly assist the Town of 
Kersey in making these services accessible to our community members. 

Please feel free to contact me directly should you have any questions or require further 
information . 

Thank you for considering this opportunity to strengthen our community's transportation 
resources. 

Sincerely, 

Stacy L. Brown 
Town Manager 
Town of Kersey 
sbrown@kerseygov.com 



11/26/2024

1

Upper Front Range TPR
Meeting #2

December 5, 2024
1

Meeting Purpose

Provide refresher 
on RTP planning 
context

Seek concurrence 
on vision, goals 
and focus areas 
based on TPR 
Member survey 
input

Provide a status 
update on TPR 
projects

Offer ideas and 
seek TPR guidance 
on establishing 
2050 RTP priority 
projects

2

Establish a set of guided conversations that will help you (as a TPR) 
develop your 2050 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP).

What We Need From You Today

3

1. Your concurrence (or changes to) the revised vision, goals, and 
focus areas

2. Decisions on the approach that should be used to establish 
priority projects for 2050 RTP

• Selected approach will be executed between now and TPR 
Meeting #3 (March 6, 2025)

1

2

3



11/26/2024

2

Plan Development

Statewide Transportation 
& Transit Plans

Regional Plans 10-Year Plan 4-Year STIP

Data Integration ● Stakeholder and Community Input

Policy Directive (PD) 14
Guiding Principles for Plan Development & Implementation

Advancing 
Transportation

Safety

No matter where you’re going or how you’re getting there, Colorado is 
committed to providing you a safe and efficient transportation network so 
you arrive at your destination safely.

Fix Our Roads Prioritize strategic investments in Colorado's highways to improve 
infrastructure conditions.

Sustainably 
Increase 

Transportation
Choice

Provide alternatives to single occupancy vehicle travel that increase 
choices and reduce air pollution from transportation.

Transportation Funding

Policy: TPR Vision/Goals

Project Identification:
TPR Priorities

OTHER FUNDING 
OPPORTUNITIES

Policy: PD 14 & Regional 
Needs

Project Identification:
10-Year Plan

CDOT FUNDING 
PRIORITIES

6

4

5

6



11/26/2024

3

Region 4 Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP)
Workshop Results

7

Region 4 Strategic Highway Safety Plan Key Takeaways:
1. Safety Culture - foster collaboration with DICs, advance safe-first initiatives, 

identify policy changes, infrastructure demetrimes local safety culture
2. Infrastructure - infrastructure misalignment, need to prioritize safety in 

engineering, roadway conditions and navigation, work zone safety, historical 
disinvestment in DICs, adequate design for rural roadways

3. Collaboration and Stakeholder Engagement - align state and local agencies, 
bring in community to advocate for safety initiatives, CSP as a strong partner

4. Enforcement - explore speed cameras use, culturally sensitive 
communication around enforcement, workforce shortage, targeted 
enforcement/education

5. Safety Planning - Success in local safety plans, need for work zone planning 
and infrastructure protection, need emphasis on multimodal safety

6. Risky Behaviors - distracted driving, impaired and aggressive driving, 
perception on invincibility, and vehicle design/speed

Common Themes from All 
Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) Workshops

8

Additional feedback and questions regarding SHSP can be received through the 
following methods:

• Project Team email: shsp@state.co.us

• Online engagement platform: https://cdot-shsp.mysocialpinpoint.com

Additional Information and Resources

7

8

9



11/26/2024

4

Additional Data Request: Wildlife Crash Data

10

Data Visualizer

https://experience.arcgis.com/experien
ce/c9ec4c30351143caaa995b6ad5ce5f44

11

Upper Front Range
VISION, GOALS, and FOCUS AREAS

12

10

11

12



11/26/2024

5

Upper Front Range Vision

13

The Upper Front Range TPR will promote 
economic vitality and mobility for all residents 
through strategic investments in a multimodal 
transportation system.

Upper Front Range Vision - Proposed Changes

14

No changes were made to the 2050 Upper Front Range RTP 
Vision based on TPR Member Survey

2045 Upper Front Range RTP Goals & Survey Results

No ChangeDeleteModify2045 Goal

66%33%Improve safety throughout the transportation system.

66%33%Provide a multimodal transportation system for the efficient movement of people and goods.

66%33%Preserve the functional integrity of the existing transportation system and correct identified 
deficiencies.

66%33%Promote vibrant communities while preserving farm and forest land, water resources, and air quality

33%66%
Further the creation of natural gas infrastructure and the use of compressed and liquefied natural gas 
and alternative transportation fuels.

66%33%Support mitigation strategies to address potential natural disasters throughout the region.

66%33%Prioritize projects to anticipate and utilize all funding opportunities

66%33%Deliver transportation system investments cost-effectively, incorporating life cycle costs.

66%33%Collaborate and communicate with other agencies to implement regional transportation priorities

13

14

15



11/26/2024

6

2045 Upper Front Range RTP Goals & Survey Results

No ChangeDeleteModify2045 Goal

100%Integrate transportation and land use planning throughout system design and implementation

66%33%Coordinate projects with other entities within the region, including Rocky Mountain National Park, 
adjacent communities, TPRs, and states.

100%Engage the public throughout the development of the RTP and its implementation.

Survey Result Themes

Connect transportation options to new housing developments and 
areas of growth

Align population and tourism growth with enhanced and diverse 
transportation options to manage congestion and traffic

17

2050 Upper Front Range RTP Modified Goals

18

No ChangeDeleteModify2050 Goal

66%33%Improve safety throughout the transportation system.

66%33%Provide a multimodal transportation system for the efficient movement of people and goods.

66%33%Preserve the functional integrity of the existing transportation system and correct identified 
deficiencies.

66%33%Promote vibrant communities while preserving farm and forest land, water resources, and air quality

33%66%
Further the creation of natural gas infrastructure and the use of compressed and liquefied natural gas
and alternative transportation fuels.

66%33%Support mitigation strategies to address potential natural disasters throughout the region.

66%33%Prioritize projects to anticipate and utilize all funding opportunities

66%33%Deliver transportation system investments cost-effectively, incorporating life cycle costs.

66%33%Collaborate and communicate with other agencies to implement regional transportation priorities

16

17

18



11/26/2024

7

2050 Upper Front Range RTP Modified Goals

19

No ChangeDeleteModify2050 Goal

100%Integrate transportation and land use planning throughout system design and implementation

66%33%Coordinate projects with other entities within the region, including Rocky Mountain National Park, 
adjacent communities, TPRs, metropolitan planning organizations, and states.

100%Engage the public throughout the development of the RTP and its implementation.

Focus Areas & Potential Modifications

20

Focus areas tell a story about what you want people to know about your TPR 
that’s most important.

2045 Focus Areas and Potential Modifications:

• Safety

• Road Conditions

• Freight and Rail

• Tourism and Economic Development

• Federal Land Access

• Environmental Mitigation

Status Update:
Upper Front Range TPR Projects

21

19

20

21



11/26/2024

8

Projects Overview/Background

22

Project Database – This includes all projects that were identified during 
the 2045 Statewide/Regional Transportation Plan development process.

TPR Priority Projects – The Upper Front Range 2045 RTP identifies Top 
20 Priority Projects (in rank order, including 22 highway projects).

10-Year Plan Projects – CDOT’s strategic document that outlines the 
state's transportation priorities and planned investments over a 10-year 
period.

• FUNDED: 2019-2026 (first 8 years of the plan)
• UNFUNDED: 2027-2028 (last 2 years of the plan)

Upper Front Range TPR Project Overview

23

Number of Projects 
Complete or Under 

Construction

Total Cost
(in millions, 2024$)Number of Projects

0$70.02FUNDED
in 10-Year Plan

TPR
Priority 

Projects

1*$65.01*FUNDED
Other funding source(s)

0$262.52OUTYEARS
of 10-Year Plan

0$451.517UNFUNDED

1$849.022TPR Priority Projects

*Partial funding

Upper Front Range TPR Project Overview (cont.)

24

Number of Projects 
Complete or Under 

Construction

Total Cost
(in millions, 2024$)Number of Projects

5$80.314FUNDED
in 10-Year Plan

Database 
Projects

11$67.911FUNDED
Other funding source(s)

0$19.94OUTYEARS
of 10-Year Plan

0$587.8*103UNFUNDED

16$755.9*132Database Projects

17$1,604.9*154All Projects

*Project costs for unfunded projects are in 2019$ and will be inflated to 2024$

22

23

24



11/26/2024

9

Upper Front Range TPR Project Types

25

With Bike/Ped 
Component

StudyTransitRural PavingHighway

00002FUNDED
in 10-Year Plan

TPR
Priority 

Projects

00001FUNDED
Other funding source(s)

20002OUTYEARS
of 10-Year Plan

200017UNFUNDED

400022TPR Priority Projects

Upper Front Range TPR Project Types (cont.)

26

With Bike/Ped 
Component

StudyTransitRural PavingHighway

00536FUNDED
in 10-Year Plan

01604FUNDED
Other funding source(s)

Database 
Projects

00013OUTYEARS
of 10-Year Plan

(non-TPR
Priority

Projects)

1528093UNFUNDED

153194106Database Projects

193194128All Projects

Project Updates

27

Region 4 staff and Transit Agencies reviewed all projects in the Upper 
Front Range TPR and provided updated status, cost, and project 
description (including identification of opportunities to add bicycle, 
pedestrian, transit, and safety elements).

25

26

27



11/26/2024

10

New Projects for Consideration

28

New projects for consideration (from 4P Meetings):

● CO 144 Resurfacing I-76 to US 34

● CO 52 Resurfacing Improvements

● CO 52 Congestion Mitigation

● I-76 Commerce City to Wiggins Reconstruction

● Transit Service Greeley to Loveland to Estes Park

● US 6 (I-76) Resurfacing Improvements

● US 85 Transit Service

● US 85 Resurfacing through Eaton

● US 85 Resurfacing on Platteville’s Main Street

● CO 14 Safety Study and Improvements from LCR 5 to WCR 43

New Projects for Consideration

29

New projects for consideration:

● CO 66 Highway and Multimodal Options Study

● I-25 Wellington Pedestrian Crossing

● I-25 Truck Parking near Wellington

● I-76 Brush Park-n-Ride Facility at CO 71

● US 34 Passing Lanes and Safety Improvements (Greeley to Wiggins)

● US 85 Corridor Railroad Safety Improvements

● US 85 Corridor Safety Study

● US 34 East Slab and Diamond Grind WB

● I-76 Keenesburg East Resurfacing (MP 40.5 to 45.5)

● I-76 Keenesburg East Resurfacing (MP 45.5 to 50.1)

● Improved transit operating in Estes Park

2045 RTP Priority Projects

Under Construction
(I-76 is partially funded)

Funded (US 287 
projects are combined 
as a single project)

In Design

30

28

29

30



11/26/2024

11

2050 RTP PROJECT PRIORITIES

31

UFR Project Scoring (from 2045 RTP)

Only the Highway projects 
were evaluated using the 
scoring guidelines.

32

Discussion Question: Project Evaluation
Approach for 2050 RTP

33

1. Do you want to retain the same approach for project evaluation as last 
time? Or, is there a desire to change any of the evaluation criteria, 
weighting and/or apply updated data to assess the projects?

• Last time, we only scored the new projects. If the highway project scoring criteria is 
updated, we would likely need to rescore all the projects (holding harmless the 
projects that have already been funded or are in design).

2. Last time, the TPR only scored highway projects. Does the TPR want to look 
into a data-informed approach for scoring transit projects?

• May want to consider different approaches for local vs regional & inter-regional transit 
needs.

3. How would the TPR like to consider new projects to be added to the list?

31

32

33



11/26/2024

12

Summary of TPR Decisions & Guidance

34

● Approach to identifying project priorities:

● Who is responsible:

● Evaluation categories:

● Projects to be evaluated:

SCHEDULE & NEXT STEPS

35

2050 Statewide and Regional Plan Timeline

36

34

35

36



11/26/2024

13

Next Steps

● Meeting # 3 (Winter 2024-25)

○ Summarize & discussion of public input

○ Present and discuss draft project priorities

● Virtual Town Hall with TC Commissioner (Winter 2025)

● Meeting # 4 (Spring 2025)

○ Review draft RTPs

● TPR Chair Meeting (Spring / Summer 2025)

Check Out the ‘Your
Transportation Priorities’

Website for More
Information

Upper Front Range TPR
Active Transportation/Transit Session

December 5, 2024
38

Meeting Purpose

39

• Bring forward the best possible projects in Upper Front Range TPR

• Review benefits of active transportation and transit

• Provide an update on current CDOT led active transportation and 
transit initiatives and correlation to RTP update and implementation

• Discuss importance of intentional integration of active transportation 
and transit projects with roadway, safety, maintenance projects

• Identify opportunities for project integration

37

38

39



11/26/2024

14

Importance of “Complete Project” Approach

40

Project Integration Approach

Complete projects consider the needs of people and places 
and use context-sensitive solutions to improve access, 

mobility, and safety

● Complete projects often, but not always, integrate multiple travel 
modes

● Projects designed as “Complete Projects” are more comprehensive in 
addressing diverse needs, making them more compelling for future 
funding opportunities.

● Identifying needs early on helps secure appropriate funding

41

“Complete Project” Considerations

Focus on the needs and experiences of all 
users; equitable access to transportation 
options

Prioritize the safety of everyone using the 
transportation system

Balance costs with benefits delivered; 
identify solutions that provide the best 
value

Provide efficient and reliable travel across 
all modes of transportation

Ensure safe, accessible streets for 
everyone—whether they walk, bike, drive, 
or take transit

Plan for current and future transportation
needs, considering changes in population,
technology, and land use

Fit the local community and environment 
using context-sensitive solutions that 
respect the character, culture, and 
environment of the area

42

40

41

42



11/26/2024

15

Active 
Transportation

43

What is Active Transportation?

Active transportation is any 
human-scale and typically 
human-powered mode of 
transportation, such as walking, 
running, bicycling, roller 
blading, or using an electric 
bicycle, kick scooter or electric 
scooter, skateboard, wheelchair, 
or other personal assistive 
mobility device.

44

What is a Vulnerable Road User (VRU)?

• Vulnerable Road Users include:

• Pedestrians

• Cyclists (including those on e-bikes)

• People using personal mobility devices 
(e.g. wheelchairs)

• People using rideable toys (e.g. 
scooters, skateboards)

• People working in roadway work zones

45

43

44

45



11/26/2024

16

Communities?

DI Communities meet oneWorhat are Disproportionately Impacted (DI)more of the following criteria:
● Low Income - 40% or more are below 

200% of the federal poverty level

● Housing Cost Burdened - 50% or more 
spend over 30% of household income on 
housing

● Communities of Color - 40% or more 
identify as people of color

● Linguistic Isolation - 20% or more 
speak a language other than English 
and speaks English less than very well

● Historically Marginalized – History of 
environmental racism, such as 
redlining

● Cumulative Impact – Justice40 or ES80

● Tribal Lands

● Mobile Home Parks

46

Why Invest in Active Transportation?

Equity

* Safety *

Economic 
Growth

Community 
Connections

* Sustainably Increase 
Transportation Choice *

Public Health

47

*Policy 
Directive 
(PD) 14

Goal Areas

Why Invest in Active Transportation?

Equity 
VRU crashes 
occur 2x more

often in DI 
communities

* Safety *
600+ VRUs seriously injured 

or killed each year in 
Colorado, an 80% increase 

from 2013

Economic 
Growth

Contributes
$1.5B+ annually 
to Colorado’s 

economy

Community 
Connections
Human-scaled 
transportation 

supports 
placemaking

* Sustainably Increase 
Transportation Choice *

Transportation causes 28-30% 
of all GHG emissions

Travel options provide choice

Public Health
Increase physical 
activity, promote 

mental health

48

*Policy 
Directive 
(PD) 14

Goal Areas

46

47

48



11/26/2024

17

How to Fund Active Transportation

49

• CDOT-Managed Grant Programs
• RMS – Revitalizing Main Streets
• MMOF – Multimodal Transportation &

Mitigation Options Fund (awarded by TPRs)
• SRTS – Safe Routes to School
• TAP – Transportation Alternatives Program
• HSIP – Highway Safety Improvement 

Program

• Other State Agencies
• GOCO – Great Outdoors Colorado
• CDPHE’s Demonstration Project Funding
• DOLA’s EIAF - Energy/Mineral Impact 

Assistance Fund Grant

• USDOT-Managed Grant Programs
• ATIIP - Active Transportation Infrastructure 

Investment Program
• SS4A – Safe Streets and Roads for All
• RAISE - Rebuilding American Infrastructure 

with Sustainability and Equity
• RCP - Reconnecting Communities Pilot

• As part of highway projects
• 10-year plan fund sources

• Resource: USDOT Pedestrian and
Bicycle Funding Opportunities Table

What makes a good location for AT investment?

50

• Unmet and existing demand for active transportation

• Near schools, parks, main streets, or residences

• Closes a network gap

• Enhances safety at location where VRU crash(es) or near miss(es) have 
occurred

• Within 1-mile of existing or planned transit stop

• Serves a Disproportionately Impacted (DI) community

Active Transportation Plan
(ATP) Overview

51

49

50

51



11/26/2024

18

Active Transportation Plan (ATP)

52

• Set goals, policy recommendations, and action steps

• Integrate with local and regional bicycle and pedestrian plans

• Create tool to prioritize active transportation investments/priorities

• Integrate with other statewide planning initiatives

• Not a project-based plan

DRAFT Active Transportation Goals

53

SAFETY: Enhance the safety of active transportation users by reducing 
crashes, injuries, and fatalities.

EQUITY: Ensure equitable access to safe and convenient active 
transportation facilities for all communities, particularly underserved and 
vulnerable populations.

MOBILITY CHOICE: Increase the availability, accessibility, and convenience 
of active transportation to create a complete network that provides 
sustainable alternatives to driving and improves air quality.

CONNECTED COMMUNITIES: Promote connections among active 
transportation, transit, and the built environment to maximize the impact 
of investments in active transportation infrastructure and programs.

ATP Public Involvement

54

• Phase I: Public survey on active transportation activity, barriers, facility 
preferences, and vision

• Phase 2: Vision, goals and strategies

• Phase 3: Implementation Plan

• Statewide Community Advisory Committee

• Consists of local and state agency representatives, MPO and TPR representatives, 
and bicycle and pedestrian advocates

• Will meet 2 more times between now and April 2025 (first meeting was Sept 25)

• To join, email Annelies at annelies.vanvonno@state.co.us

52

53

54



11/26/2024

19

ATP Survey Results
55

ATP Survey Responses

● 3,099 respondents 
statewide

● 55 respondents in the 
Upper Front Range TPR

Northwest

Eastern

Southeast

Denver 
Area

Upper
Front
Range

Pikes
Peak
Area

Pueblo Area

North
Front
Range

South Central

San Luis 
Valley

Gunnison Valley

Southwest

Intermountain

56

Central 
Front 
Range

Grand 
Valley

UFR Survey Results: Vehicles and Modes

Vehicle Access Travel Modes

57

55

56

57



11/26/2024

20

UFR Survey Results: Pedestrian Facilities

58

100% 84%78%

9% 11% 4%

Percentage of respondents confident or comfortable:

Detached sidewalk on a
residential road Multi-use path Narrow sidewalk, next to road

Shoulder & available grass
on a residential road

No shoulder, available grass
on a residential road Highway with shoulder

UFR Survey Results: Bicycle Facilities

Percentage of respondents confident or comfortable:

59

94% 85% 72% 55%

38% 11% 2%

Multi-use path
Bike lane with physical protection Buffered bike lane Bike lane with no buffer or barrier

Sharrow on a residential road Highway with shoulder Highway with no shoulder

UFR Survey Results: 
Barriers to Walking

60

58

59

60



11/26/2024

21

UFR Survey Results: 
Barriers to Biking and Rolling

61

UFR Survey Results: 
Active Transportation Vision

“More communities in Northern 
Colorado east of US 85 
connected by bike paths.”

“Protected bike lanes on 
major roads; not having to 
bike more than 0.5 miles 
unprotected”

62

Transit
Regional Transit, TCS, & Complete Transit Projects

63

61

62

63



11/26/2024

22

Setting the Stage

Upper Front Range’s Transit Vision (2019)

To improve regional mobility for all residents through effective 
coordination, planning, and delivery of transit services.

Mobility
A modally integrated transit 
system that provides local, 
regional, and interregional 
connectivity and is affordable, 
efficient, and easy to use.

Safety
A resilient transit network that 
makes travelers feel safe and 
secure.

Asset Management 
A high-quality system that is 
financially sustainable and 
operates in a state of good 
repair.

Statewide Transit Goals

64

Advancing Priorities through Transit

Transportation Focus Areas
● Make travel safer
● Fix our roads and maintain our 

current system
● Expand transit service to 

Coloradans
● Reduce GHG emissions from the 

transportation sector

Benefits of Transit

● Connectivity
● Accessibility
● Affordability
● Travel choice
● Reduced congestion
● Reduced air pollution
● Improves public health and 

quality of life

Advancing Transit

1. Planning & 
Promoting

2. Prioritizing

3. Funding
4. Implementing

65

Transit in Upper Front Range

Transit Providers
● NECALG

● Estes Park

● Via Mobility

● Transfort

66

64

65

66



11/26/2024

23

Transit in Upper Front Range

67

Existing Transit in the Upper Front Range

• Estes Park - Providing local transit services and connections to RMNP

• NECALG - County Express operates on-demand transit and fixed route 

services in Morgan county as well as Northeast counties in Eastern TPR

• Transfort - Working to provide connections from North Front Range

• Via Mobility - providing on-demand transit in Larimer and Weld counties

• North Front Range MPO (RideNoCo) - Provides a call center in Larimer and 

Weld County, coordinating human service and transit services

Transit in the Regional Plans

68

Planning Requirements for Transit

• Regional Transit Plans serve as the Regional Coordinated Transit and Human Services Plans 
that meet FTA requirements for On Demand Transit Providers to receive funding (23 CFR 
Part 450; 49 CFR Part 613).

• CDOT will get the information in the Transit Provider Survey (expected early 2025) and 
this information needs to be in the RTP appendix

• Infrastructure projects are required to be in a plan to receive federal funds

• Upper Front Range’s previous Coordinated HST Plan for example

Transit in the Regional/Statewide Plans

69

• Planning Process

• Updating previous Regional/Statewide Plan

• Have needs, conditions, or priorities changed?

• Keep in mind - who will be running this project and are they prepared for it?

• Is there a financial plan for sustainable funding? Does it need to be updated?

• Are projects outdated and/or should they be removed from the plan?

• Adding projects to this upcoming plan - please let us know

• Examples

• Projects scope could change within reasonable bounds to add a feasibility study or design

• Lead Agency could be changed

• SB24-230 and additional transit funding opportunities - including competitive grants

67

68

69



11/26/2024

24

Regional Plans & TCS

Regional Transportation Plan
• The Regional Plan provides input in the 

Region’s priorities for projects
• This is where Upper Front Range’s insight 

& priorities informs statewide planning

Transit Connections Study
• TCS will not provide recommendations; it 

will serve as a resource for transit 
agencies & CDOT

• Ex. How does Bustang/Outrider fit into 
Colorado’s transit? How might CDOT 
improve it?

70

Examples of Transit Project Integration:
“Complete Project”

71

Projects that involve transit or incorporate transit into the process

• Examples for Upper Front Range RTP -

Complete Project Ideas

● Corridors with heavy bus usage: how does this impact road condition?
● High traffic areas: could transit alleviate some car traffic?

Corridor Studies

● Bus Bays - Moving Transit stops away from flowing traffic
● Reinforcing Bus Stop areas with concrete

Road Improvements

Next Steps

72

70

71

72



11/26/2024

25

Key Takeaways

73

• There is funding for active transportation and transit that cannot go to 
other types of projects.

• Integrating active transportation and transit elements into roadway, safety 
and maintenance projects where feasible can make projects more 
competitive for 10-Year Plan funding (in terms of GHG compliance and PD 
14 evaluation), and other sources of discretionary funding.

• As you as a TPR work to update your priority project list and database of 
projects, TPR members are encouraged to work with your regional partners 
and transit agencies to bring forward active transportation, transit, and 
“complete project” ideas.

73



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
������������
 ,�����������
 ������������
 3 �4!�� 3�����������
 ������������
 5�����������
 6

 �4!�� 7�����������
 7

89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC

89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC89:�;<=>�9?@A?@BC

DEFG HIJKLMN OPQR OPQRS�TUVWK�XYZYUJM[\]MWKI[JXY[�̂YV[XN_I[̀ àbY[WXUVbX�OPQR�̀MWX�Yc�TUVWK�I[ZYUJM[�̂YV[XN�LIXK�XK̀ÙbY[WXUVbXIY[�Yc�dYXK�eM[̀W�YcM̀WXdYV[f�M[f�L̀ WXdYV[f�OPQRgXK̀�I[X̀UbKM[J̀�MX�hi�R�M[f�XLYOPQR�dUIfJ̀W�jWkM[[I[J�XK̀�TlimaMIeUYMf�M[f�TInYV�̂Ù òpg�XKMXMÙ�cV[bXIY[MeeN�YdWYèX̀q hm ZYUJM[ lrg�Ths�mhltutS�rsHua Ŷ[WXUVbXIY[ vEDqFw vRxqww D�XY�E yMUXIMeeN�cV[f̀fSDp�FRzQw\FRzQG�OPQR�yKMẀ�O{S�àbY[WXq�|�Zyt}O~k�XWq�lY[PTu\Tu�jcV[f̀f�vDQZ�I[�t̀WIJ[pFp�OPQR�yKMẀ�{�mX�ZYUJM[�XY�TUVWK�jV[cV[f̀fvFxqZ�I[�vFQ�pDExR� HIJKLMN hi�FGQ hi�FGQS�s̀f�W�yebM̀�XY]NY~I[J�TYUf̀U sKIW�kUYǹbX�I[beVf̀W�XK̀bY[WXUVbXIY[�YckMWWI[J�eM[̀W�M[f�YXK̀U�WMc̀XNI~kUY�̀~̀ [XWq lmg�hm _MUI~̀ U mhltut�jFwD�PFwFRp t̀WIJ[ vFwqww vQwqww F�XY�E mV[f̀f�jvDRpq�yVeèf�Vk�vGZ�LIXK�V[dVfJ̀X̀fiXUMX̀JIb�mV[f̀f�cUY~�y�l�WVUkeVWqmV[fI[J�DExE�MW�kMUX�Yc�XKIW�kUYǹbX�Ot�jhi�FGQSâ�QF�jrLe�̂M[NY[�aYMfpDEEz HIJKLMN hi�Gx hi�Gx�mUY[XMJ̀�aYMfO~kUY�̀~̀ [XW sKIW�kUYǹbX�ÙeYbMX̀W�M[fÙMeIJ[W�XK̀�hi�Gx�mUY[XMJ̀aYMf�M[f�I[X̀UẀbXIY[W�I[yeMXX̀�Ieè�M[f�}IebÙWXq hm ]̀ ef hlmhltut�jFwFQPFwFGp yeM[[I[J vDwqww vDFqxw D�XY�E FxGGRPhi�Gx�mUY[XMJ̀�aYMf�O~kUY�̀~̀ [XW�vDwZI[�m�FQ��jV[cV[f̀fpq�bb̀WW�̂Y[XUYe�yeM[�P�eI~IX�Mbb̀WW�MeY[J�XK̀KIJKLMN�M[f�nYI[�LIXK�UYMfW�XKMX�I[X̀UẀbX�LIXKhi�Gxq�̂eYẀ�WY~̀ �Yc�XK̀�Mbb̀WẀW�M[f�VẀ�MẀUÌW�Yc�cUY[XMJ̀�UYMfWqDGww HIJKLMN OPFx ìJ~̀ [X���LIXKI[�hma�syaj_̂a�xR�XY�̂r�Dp àbY[WXUVbXIY[�Yc�~MI[eI[̀gdUIfJ̀W�M[f�I[X̀UbKM[J̀W hm _MUI~̀ U lr vDw�qQw vDxzqww D�XY�z mV[fW�XY�ÙbY[WXUVbX�XKIW�ẀJ~̀ [X�LIee�d̀�[̀ f̀̀fI[�XK̀�cVXVÙq��sKIW�ẀbXIY[�IW�JYI[J�XY�bY[XI[V̀�XYf̀JUMf̀�M[f�[̀ f̀�Y[JYI[J�~MI[X̀[M[b̀qDEzD HIJKLMN hi�zE hi�zE�M[f�̂a�DRg�ZYUJM[ŶV[XN O[X̀UẀbXIY[�I~kUY�̀~̀ [XW hm ZYUJM[ lr vwqRw z t̂rs�KMW�[YX�K̀MUf�~VbK�MdYVX�XKIW�I[X̀UẀbXIY[qlYX�WVÙ�LKMX�XK̀�MWo�IW�K̀Ù�DEwQ HIJKLMN hi�zR hi�zRS�uWX̀W�yMUo�XY�TYVef̀UŶV[XN�_I[̀ ZYdIeIXN�I~kUY�̀~̀ [XW�I[beVfI[JLIf̀[I[Jg�M[f�bY[WXUVbXIY[�YckMWWI[J�eM[̀W�M[f�kVeeYVXWq hm _MUI~̀ U lr vGqww vDDqxw D�XY�EDExE HIJKLMN hi�FGQ hi�FGQS�̂a�QF�jrLe�̂M[NY[aYMfp O[X̀UẀbXIY[�I~kUY�̀~̀ [XWq hm _MUI~̀ U mhltut�jFwD�PFwFRp t̀WIJ[ vFqww vzqFw F�XY�z O[beVf̀f�MW�kMUX�Yc�Ot�DExRq

DwFz HIJKLMN r̂�QD r̂�QD�̂YUUIfYUO~kUY�̀~̀ [XW sKIW�kUYǹbX�I[beVf̀WÙbY[WXUVbXIY[�Yc�bYUUIfYUgWKYVef̀U�LIf̀[I[Jg�WMc̀XNgYk̀UMXIY[Me�bY~kY[̀[XWq t̂rs u�g�hm _I[bYe[gZYUJM[g�]̀ ef hlmhltut�jFwFQPFwFGp vFwwqww vFxwqww F�XY�E

FzDRw\FDGQQ�cV[f̀f�M[f�bY[WXUVbX̀fjvxgRExgxDEp��FxGGz�V[cV[f̀f�LIXK�m�FQ�jvDEqzZpZYÙ�I~kUY�̀~̀ [XW�MÙ�[̀ f̀̀f�cYU�̂r�QDq�OX�W�MeMUJ̀�bYUUIfYU�M[f�cè�IdIeIXN�LYVef�d̀�K̀ekcVe�XYbKMẀ�kUYǹbXWqmÙIJKX�O~kUY�̀~̀ [XW�jWKYVef̀UW�XKUYVJKYVXgbeI~dI[J\kMWWI[J�eM[̀Wg�|�bVU�̀�ceMXX̀[I[JpqOX�IW�kMUX�Yc�XK̀�yYUXW�XY�yeMI[W�bYUUIfYUq�OX�IWbMeèf�H̀MUXeM[f�u�kÙWWLMNqOsi�̂Y~kY[̀[XS�sUMccIb�c̀ èW�IX�W�XYY�cMU�[YUXK�XYd̀bY~̀ �M�kUIYUIXN�cYU�YVU�Osi�cYeoW�LIXK�Mee�XK̀YXK̀U�[̀ f̀W�I[�XK̀�WXMX̀qZMX̀UIMeW�̂Y~~̀ [XWS�̂r�QD�XKUYVJK�TUVWKq�aYMfiVUcMb̀�sÙMX~̀ [X�Zy�DQxqx�XY�DQRq�q�yYYUbY[fIXIY[Wq�t_�wPEq�vFqGZq�Ỳe�Zb̂UMbò[S�HZ��~Iee�M[f�cIee�cUY~�ZyFwxqxwPFDxqwqDzGE HIJKLMN r̂�DE r̂�DE�P�hi�FGQ�XY�XK̀]̀ WX̀U[�_MUI~̀ U�̂YV[XN�_I[̀ yMWWI[J�eM[̀�M[f�J̀Y~̀ XUIbI~kUY�̀~̀ [XW hm _MUI~̀ U lr yeM[[I[J vDwqww vDEqww F�XY�E aE�sUMccIb�bVUÙ[XeN�LYUoI[J�Y[�WMc̀XN�WXVfN�cYUXKIW�ẀbXIY[g�LIee�Ẁ �̀Ic�kMWWI[J�eM[̀�IW�Y[̀�YcÙbY~~̀ [f̀f�I~kUY�̀~̀ [XWq

����� �����

�����

���������� �������������������������� �¡¢�£¤¥¦§̈�¤��¡�

�©¦���ª¡«¬®�̄°�±²±³



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
������������
 3�����������
 ,,�����������
 ,,�����������
 ,4�����������
 ,�%#�	$#�	
 ,� �5!�� ,�%#�	$#�	
 ,������������
 ,3 �5!�� ,3�����������
 ,3�����������
 ,3�����������
 ,3�����������
 �4�����������
 �4 �5!�� �4%#�	$#�	
 �4�����������
 �6

789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB789�:;<=�8>?@>?AB

CDEF GHIJKLM NO�DFP NO�DFP�LQR�SNT�UD VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ ǸOabSXcR de SXcR fO gUhii gEhi U SLZ�̂LYW�\j�WJX�VQWXYZX[WH\Q�kYH\YHWHlLWH\Q�mWnRMhỲH_XYZ�LYX�YnQQHQI�ZW\̂�ZHIQZo�YXZncWHQI�HQ[YLZJXZh�SXcR�N\nQWM�HZ�̂nWWHQI�HQ�L�WX]̂ \YLYMjHph�SX�qXcHX_X�WJX�YX[\]]XQRLWH\Q�KLZ�j\Y�LY\nQRLq\nWh�f\W�ZnYX�\j�WJX�TOS�ZHWnLWH\Qr�ǸOaHZ�Q\W�ZnYX�WJX�ZWLWnZ�\Q�WJHZ�\QXo�qnW�HZZn̂ \̂YWH_X�\j�WJHZ�̂Y\sX[W�qXHQI�[\]̂ cXWXRht\[LWH\Q�LcZ\�JLZ�]Ls\Y�RYLHQLIX�HZZnXZhCDFu GHIJKLM dm�DU dm�DUbdm�Dv�VQWXYZX[WH\Q�HQwZWXZ�kLYx VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZh de tLYH]XY fO gvhii gEhU C�W\�P SLZ�Q\W�HRXQWHjHXR�LZ�L�̂YH\YHWM�HQ�WJX�PiPDVQZXYZX[WH\Q�kYH\YHWM�mWnRMhCUDP GHIJKLM dm�DU dm�DU�LQR�NT�PU VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ de y\YILQ fO gihvi P ǸOa�JLZ�Q\W�JXLYR�]n[J�Lq\nW�WJHZ�HQWXYZX[WH\Qhf\W�ZnYX�KJLW�WJX�LZx�HZ�JXYXrCUzz GHIJKLM dm�PEu dm�PEu{�tNT�EiN�|SXZW} VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZh de tLYH]XY fO gihvi gChPz P SLZ�Q\W�HRXQWHjHXR�LZ�\QX�\j�WJX�W\̂�̂YH\YHWHXZ�HQdm�PEu�mLjXWM�mWnRMhCDFE GHIJKLM dm�DU wZWXZ�kLYx mLjXWMo� o�LQR�ZMZWX]ŶXZXY_LWH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ�HQwZWXZ�kLYx de tLYH]XY fO gCihii gCUhii P S\ncR�qX�Zn̂ \̂YWH_X�\j�L�̂cLQQHQI�ZWnRM�HQ[\\YRHQLWH\Q�KHWJ�wZWXZ�kLYxh�aJHZ�JLZ�qXXQRHZ[nZZXR�KHWJ�WJX�a\KQ�HQ�WJX�̂LZW�qnW�Q\�L[WH\QW\�RLWXh~HxXb̂XR�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ�KXYX�HRXQWHjHXR�qM�aYLjjH[LZ�L�̂YH\YHWMhCECE GHIJKLM dm�Dv dm�Dv�LQR�wc]�T\LR�HQ�wZWXZkLYx VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ|Y\nQRLq\nW} de tLYH]XY fO gChii gDhii P SLZ�Q\W�HRXQWHjHXR�LZ�L�̂YH\YHWM�HQ�WJX�PiPDVQZXYZX[WH\Q�kYH\YHWM�mWnRMhCEPC GHIJKLM dm�Dv dm�Dv�LW�kLYxHQI��LYLIX VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ|Y\nQRLq\nW�\Y�ZHIQLcHlLWH\Q} de tLYH]XY fO gChii gDhii PCEzF GHIJKLM dm�Ez T\LRZ�kLYLccXc�W\�dm�Ez THIJW�HQbYHIJW�\nW de SXcR fO kcLQQHQI gihPi gihPz C�W\�UCUCu GHIJKLM NO�zP NO�zP�jY\]�fm�ẐcHW�W\SHIIHQZ mLjXWM�KHRXQHQI�LQR�ZJ\ncRXYZ de y\YILQ fO gCPhii gCUhvi P�W\�D wcHlLqXWJ�HRXQWHjHXR�RYH_LqHcHWM�cHjX�\j�WJXL̂_X]XQWh�m\nWJXYQ�XQR�JLZ�̂Y\qcX]Z�KHWJ\_XY�W\̂ ĤQIo�Lc\QI�KHWJ�RYLHQLIX�HZZnXZh�Nnc_XYWZLYX�W\\�Z]LcchCUDi GHIJKLM V�uv V�uv�TX[\QZWYn[WH\Q�jY\]�e\YWy\YILQ�W\�~YnZJ aJX�̂Y\sX[W�YX[\QZWYn[WZ�q\WJcLQXZ�\j�WJX�HQWXYZWLWX�HQ�q\WJRHYX[WH\QZo�LZ�KXcc�LZHQWXY[JLQIXZ�LW�NO�CUUo�NO�zP|yLHQ�mWYXXW}o�LQR�WJX�~LYc\KT\LR�HQWXY[JLQIXh ǸOa de y\YILQ fO X̀ZHIQ gCPzhii gFihii C�W\�U ~XXQ�L�̂Y\sX[W�ZHQ[X�CFFEh�VW�HZ�L�̂YXZXY_LWH\QŶ\sX[Wh�VW�KLZ�qnHcW�HQ�CFzzh�aJX�\YHIHQLcY\LRKLM�HZ�ZnqZWLQRLYRo�K\YQ�\nW�LQR�JLZ]ncWĤcX�ZLjXWM�HZZnXZh�SX�JL_X�qXXQ�]LxHQI[\]]HW]XQWZ�W\�WJX�[\]]nQHWHXZ�\j�~YnZJ�LQR�eWy\YILQhVQWXY[JLQIX�LW�NO�CUU�HZ�L�̂YH\YHWM�j\Y�WYLjjH[hCUDD GHIJKLM V�uv V�uv�LW�SNT�UF VQWXY[JLQIX�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ�LWSNT�UF�HQ�GnRZ\Q de SXcR fO gPzhii guzhii P VQ�WJX�̂Y\[XZZ�\j�H]̂ cX]XQWHQI�L�ZJ\YW�WXY]�jHphtLYIXY�jHp�QXXRXRh�TLHcY\LR�K\ncR�QXXR�W\L̂YWQXYo�qnW�WJLW�]LM�Q\W�JL̂ X̂Q�YHIJW�LKLMqX[LnZX�WJXM�LYX�j\[nZHQI�\Q�SNT�E�LW�WJX]\]XQWhCUUU GHIJKLM dm�Ez dm�Ez�LQR�NO�vi H̀L]\QR�VQWXY[JLQIX de SXcR fO kcLQQHQI gDEhzi gUuhii PCUzC GHIJKLM NO�DF NO�DF�f\YWJ�\j�SHIIHQZ mLjXWM�KHRXQHQI�LQR�ZJ\ncRXYZ de y\YILQ fO kcLQQHQI guhii gEhzi P�W\�D mJ\KZ�n̂�\Q�RYH_LqHcHWM�cHjXhCivC mWnRM NO�zP NO�zP��[[XZZ�N\QWY\c�kcLQ VfawT�Tw�VOf�t�aT�fmVa{V]̂ cX]XQW�YXIH\QLc�ZXY_H[XLc\QI�dm�DU�[\QQX[WHQI�wZWXZkLYx�KHWJ�V�Pzh�wZWH]LWXR�LW�DRLMZ�̂XY�KXXx�|CoPzi�LQQnLcJ\nYZ} de SXcR fOo�~da�edf̀ ẁ{�OaGwT N\]̂ cXWXR gihPiCDuF GHIJKLM NO�C NO�C�LQR�tNT�vPw���yXMXYZN\YQXY VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ de tLYH]XY fO kcLQQHQI gDhii CCUCC GHIJKLM dm�Dv dm�DvbyLYM�Z�tLxX�T\LRbGHIJỲH_X VQWXYZX[WH\Q�V]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ de tLYH]XY fO gzhii SLZ�Q\W�HRXQWHjHXR�LZ�L�̂YH\YHWM�HQ�WJX�PiPDVQZXYZX[WH\Q�kYH\YHWM�mWnRMhCEPP GHIJKLM dm�Dv dm�Dv�LQR�m̂nY�vvVQWXYZX[WH\Q�HQ�wZWXZ�kLYx VQWXYZX[WH\Q�H]̂ Y\_X]XQWZ|Y\nQRLq\nW} de tLYH]XY fO gDhiiCDFz GHIJKLM V�Pz V�Pz���NO�C�VQWXY[JLQIX VQWXY[JLQIX�TX[\QZWYn[WH\Q de tLYH]XY fO kcLQQHQI gDihii Po�D

���������������������������� ��������



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
�
�����������
 �3�����������
 �3�����������
 �3�����������
 �3�����������
 �3�����������
 �3�����������
 �3�����������
 �3�����������
 45%#�	$#�	
 45%#�	$#�	
 45%#�	$#�	
 45%#�	$#�	
 45�����������
 �,�����������
 ��%#�	$#�	
 ��%#�	$#�	
 �������������
 ��%#�	$#�	
 ��%#�	$#�	
 ��%#�	$#�	
 �� �6!�� ��%#�	$#�	
 �������������
 �, �6!�� �,%#�	$#�	
 �,%#�	$#�	
 �,

7899 :;<=>?@ AB�C8 AB�C8�D�E?FF�GH?IJ�AB�CK�DE?FF�GH?I�;L�MNOPN�Q?RS TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLON AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]K̂99 _ [HO�;IPLO;̀;PI�?N�?�WR;HR;O@�;L�O=P�_9_CTLOPRNPUO;HL�QR;HR;O@�BOaI@̂YRHV�?L�\WPR?O;HLN�WPRNWPUO;XPb�O=PRP�>HaFI�cPcPLP̀;O�=PRP�WPR�dR?̀ ;̀Û�d=PRP�;N�WHOPLO;?FIPXPFHWVPLO�UHV;L<�OH�O=P�?RP?̂�YRHV�HaRaLIPRNO?LI;L<b�O=;N�>HaFI�cP�?�=;<=�WR;HR;O@�̀HRMNOPN̂�dR?̀ ;̀U�>HaFI�NaWWHROb�caO�̀PPFN�O=PRP�?RPF;SPF@�=;<=PR�WR;HR;O;PN�;L�O=P�?RP?̂7897 :;<=>?@ AB�C8 AB�C8e�fR@�gaFU=�GH?I�OHE?FF�GH?I�hMNOPN�Q?RSi E?jHRkE;LHRb�>;IPL;L<kN?̀PO@ AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]8̂l9 m?N�LHO�;IPLO;̀;PI�?N�?�WR;HR;O@�;L�O=P�_9_CTLNPRNPUO;HL�QR;HR;O@�BOaI@̂789_ :;<=>?@ AB�C8 AB�C8�D�ZnG�_o�mPNO�H̀ZHXPF?LI�p�E?NHLX;FFP�GÎ TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLON AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]8̂99 d=;N�;N�?�=;<=�WR;HR;O@�̀HR�Z?R;VPR�nHaLO@�?LI;VWRHXPVPLON�?RP�LPPIPÎ�:?N�c?I�N;OP�I;NO?LUP?LI�;N�?Ij?UPLO�OH�?L�PFPVPLO?R@�NU=HHF̂787_ :;<=>?@ AB�CK AB�CK�hEHR?;LP�qXPiEaFO;VHI?F EaFO;VHI?F�;VWRHXPVPLON�̀RHVf?X;N�BO�OH�E?R@rN�Z?SP�GH?I AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]_9̂9978Cs :;<=>?@ AB�C8 daRLPR�BORPPO�OH�:HNW;O?FGH?I�;L�YHRO�EHR<?L t;SPkQPIPNOR;?L�u�BOaI@�̀HR�ABC8nHRR;IHR AY EHR<?L [\ ]9̂C978lo :;<=>?@ AB�_so AB�_so�D�ZnG�s9�hM?NOi TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLON�hqavOaRL�F?LPN�HL�_soi AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]9̂K9 m?N�LHO�;IPLO;̀;PI�?N�?�WR;HR;O@�;L�O=P�AB�_soB?̀PO@�BOaI@̂78ls :;<=>?@ AB�_so AB�_sob�PvOPLI�UF;Vc;L<�F?LP>PNO�cHaLI�Z?QHROP�t@W?NN m;IPL;L< AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]79̂9978lw :;<=>?@ AB�_so AB�_so�?O�nG�Co TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLON AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]9̂K9 _ TLUFaIPI�?N�W?RO�H̀�78lK�GPI�EHaLO?;L�GI�?LI�AB_so7878 :;<=>?@ n\�l_ n\�l_�?LI�mnG�87 TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLO nf\d AY mPFI [\ fPN;<L ]9̂K97s7w :;<=>?@ AB�CK AB�CK�?LI�8O=�BORPPO�;L�MNOPNQ?RS TLOPRNPUO;HL�;VWRHXPVPLON�h?IImt�FP̀O�OaRL�F?LPi AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]9̂l97sK7 :;<=>?@ AB�sl AB�sl�?LI�mnG�__ G;<=Op;LkR;<=OpHaO�h>PNO�N;IPi?LI�UFHNaRP�hP?NOi AY mPFI [\ ]9̂897sKK :;<=>?@ AB�sl AB�sl�?LI�E?R;HL�qXP̂bQF?OOPX;FFP Ck8�VHXPVPLO AY mPFI [\ ]9̂_97sKo :;<=>?@ AB�sl AB�sl�?LI�mnG�C_bQF?OOPX;FFP nFHNP�̀RHLO?<P�RH?IN�?LI�?II?av;F;?R@�F?LPN�?N�LPPIPI AY mPFI [\ ]9̂897Cs_ :;<=>?@ n\�o n\�oe�n?RR;?<P�fR;XP�OHtHaFIPR�nHaLO@�Z;LP E;LHR�m;IPL;L< fGb�AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]_l̂99 _�h8�̀RHV�EQK�OH�oinHVWFPOPI�?L�HXPRF?@�;L�O=P�F?NO�l�@P?RN̂�B=HaFIcP�RPPX?Fa?OPI�>=PL�O=P�NPUO;HL�LPPIN�OH�cPHXPRF?@PI�?<?;L̂78Co :;<=>?@ AB�C8 d=RHa<=�YHRO�EHR<?L QPI�nRHNN;L<N�hvKi AY EHR<?L [\ ]9̂_97oss :;<=>?@ n\�78 n\�78�?LI�mnG�_w TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLO AY mPFI [\ QF?LL;L< ]8̂99 GPUHVVPLI�VHX;L<�OH�?�LP>�F;LP�̀HR�xnHFHR?IH78�B?̀PO@�BOaI@�TVWRHXPVPLONx7so_ :;<=>?@ AB�sl AB�sl�?LI�mnG�CCk88hTLOPR;Vi TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLOhTLOPR;V�;VWRHXPVPLONi AY mPFI [\ ]8̂_9787s :;<=>?@ n\�l_ n\�l_�D�AB�Kb�m;<<;LN TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLON AY EHR<?L [\ ]9̂K97os8 :;<=>?@ n\�78 n\�78�?LI�n\�o7�hM?NOi TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLO AY mPFI [\ QF?LL;L< ]_̂997ow9 :;<=>?@ n\�78 n\�78�?LI�mnG�sw TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLO AY mPFI [\ QF?LL;L< ]8̂997s7_ :;<=>?@ AB�C8 AB�C8�?LI�mnG�8o�p�yPRNP@ TLOPRNPUO;HL�;VWRHXPVPLON AY mPFI [\ ]8̂997s_w :;<=>?@ n\�l_ n\�l_�[HRO=�H̀�YHRO�EHR<?LhEQ�w_p799i�BOR?OP<;UB=HaFIPR�?LI�BaWPR�MFPX?O;HLTVWRHXPVPLON BaWPR�PFPX?O;HL�UHRRPUO;HL�HR=;<=�̀R;UO;HL�NaR̀?UP�ORP?OVPLO?LI�>;IPR�N=HaFIPRN�HL�O=PHaON;IP�H̀�UaRXPN�OH�UHRRPUO�O=PW?OOPRL�H̀�RaL�H̀ �̀RH?I�UR?N=PN AY EHR<?L [\ ]_̂997sl_ :;<=>?@ TpoK TpoK�?O�mnG�CsK TLOPRU=?L<P�;VWRHXPVPLON AY mPFI [\ ]8̂99789s :;<=>?@ AB�CK AB�CK�Z?SP�MNOPN�n?aNP>?@ E;LHR�m;IPL;L< AY Z?R;VPR [\ ]8̂99787C :;<=>?@ n\�l_ n\�l_e�nG�_7�OH�AB�slnHRR;IHR�TVWRHXPVPLON m;IPL;L<b�N?̀PO@b�?LI;LOPRNPUO;HL�;VWRHXPVPLON̂ fGb�AY mPFI [\7osl :;<=>?@ n\�78 n\�78�?LI�n\�o7�hmPNOi TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLO AY mPFI [\ QF?LL;L< ]_̂997ow_ :;<=>?@ n\�78 n\�78�?LI�mnG�7_7 TLOPRNPUO;HL�TVWRHXPVPLO AY mPFI [\ QF?LL;L< ]8̂99

z{|}�~������



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
�%#�	$#�	
 �,%#�	$#�	
 �,%#�	$#�	
 �,%#�	$#�	
 �,%#�	$#�	
 �,%#�	$#�	
 �,%#�	$#�	
 �,�����������
 3������������
 3������������
 3������������
 3������������
 3������������
 3������������
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 4�%#�	$#�	
 4�%#�	$#�	
 4�%#�	$#�	
 4������������
 4�%#�	$#�	
 4�%#�	$#�	
 4������������
 44�����������
 44%#�	$#�	
 44%#�	$#�	
 44%#�	$#�	
 44%#�	$#�	
 5�%#�	$#�	
 5������������
 5������������
 5������������
 5������������
 5������������
 5�

6787 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�6GH8I6GJ<AJKLLJM�NOKJ�PQRJOB SL=�R>K>TTLT�KO>CU @N DLTC SV WXYHYZ67YX 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�[Y \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJ�̀Aa@\b @N DLTC SV WXcHdZ67Y8 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�EV�YYM�aT>JJL_:TTL \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJÈ<>BBLT:eLCfg�=I�Ah�;K>CLULR>K>J:OBb @N DLTC SV W6YH8Z67Y7 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�XGMaT>JJL_:TTL \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJì:>̂ OBC�\BJLK]<>B;Lb�f\B]TQCLU�]TOU:B;�DEF�XYH @N DLTC SV WX7HcZ67cZ 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�jT̂M�k:T]KLUJ XIG�̂O_L̂ LBJM�]TOUL�lKOBJ>;LKO>C @N DLTC SV WZHXZ67c6 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�m>:BM�k:T]KLUJ E<>BBLT:eLCfg @N DLTC SV WZH7Z67cX 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�XXIGG@̀TJ:̂>JLb \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJg̀@i\b @N DLTC SV WXZHYZ6X78 9:;<=>? EV�6G EV�6G�n�PEF�YXj \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJU @N P>K:̂LK SV aT>BB:B; W[HZZ D>U�BOJ�:CLBJ:l:LC�OB�[Z[X�:BUJLKL]J:OB�RK:OK:J?UJQC?H6X7Y 9:;<=>? EV�6G EV�6G�>J�EF�[c�f�AJO_LaK>:K:L�FCH \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJU @N P>K:̂LK SV aT>BB:B; W6H8Z D>U�BOJ�:CLBJ:l:LC�OB�[Z[X�:BUJLKL]J:OB�RK:OK:J?UJQC?H6Xd6 9:;<=>? EV�6G EV�6G�>BC�DEF�Xd \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJ @N DLTC SV aT>BB:B; WGHZZ FL]Ô L̂BC�̂O_:B;�JO�>�BL=�T:BL�lOK�oEOTOK>CO6G�A>lLJ?�AJQC?�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJUo6GXd 9:;<=>? @A�XG @A�XG�n�mOUTL?�FO>CM�NOKJmOK;>B \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJU�pA:;B>TU @N mOK;>B SV W6HZZ6GGZ 9:;<=>? @A�XG @A�XG�n�A>QBCLKU�FO>CM�NOKJmOK;>B \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJU�>BCA:;B>T @N mOK;>B SV W6HZZ6GGY 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�[7 \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJUÀa@\b @N DLTC SV W[cH8Z6GGd 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�GZ \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJUǸKOBJ>;L�FO>C�FL>T:;B̂ LBJb @N DLTC SV W6H[Z67Y[ 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�[GH8 F:;<Jf:BIK:;<JfOQJ @N DLTC SV WZH7Z67YG 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�XZMaT>JJL_:TTL ETOUQKL�=:J<�BL=�R>K>TTLT�KO>C]OBBL]J:B;�JO�DEF�X[ @N DLTC SV FjmVqj WXHZZ ETOULC�=:J<�@aFF�ETOU:B;U�aKOrL]J67Yd 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�GZM�k:T]KLUJ NKOBJ>;L�KO>C�KL>T:;B̂ LBJ @N DLTC SV W6H[Z67c7 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�m>:B�AJKLLJIDEFdZM�a:LK]L \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJg̀K>ll:]�A:;B>Tb @N DLTC SV WZH8Z67cd 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�m>:B�AJKLLJIDEF6ZZM�SQBB \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJg̀K>ll:]�A:;B>Tb�f�\B]TQCLU�]TOU:B;L>UJ�U:CLH @l DLTC SV WZHGZ6G8X 9:;<=>? EV�6GG EV�6GGIEV�8[�M�NOKJ�mOK;>B \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJU�psis�@RC>JLU @N mOK;>B SV WZHYZ6c7d 9:;<=>? EV�6G EV�6G�>BC�DEF�X6 \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJ @N DLTC SV aT>BB:B; WGHZZ FL]Ô L̂BC�̂O_:B;�JO�>�BL=�T:BL�lOK�oEOTOK>CO6G�A>lLJ?�AJQC?�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJUo67cG 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�X8IGY \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJÈ<>BBLT:eLCfgb @N DLTC SV W6HGZ6Xd[ 9:;<=>? EV�Xd[ EV�Xd[�>BC�DEF�88 \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJ @N DLTC SVM�h@g�N@Sijit�Vg9jF EÔ RTLJLC WGHZZ6GZd 9:;<=>? @A�XY @A�XY�gK>:T�aKOrL]J�lKÔ gK>:T�aKOrL]JM�:̂RKO_L�RLCHIu:vL>]]LUU�>TOB;�B>KKO=�KO>CH @N P>K:̂LK SV W[HZZ PL_LT�[�OB�@A�XY>J�m>K?U�P>vL�FCHgO=B�C:C�UQû :J�>RRT:]>J:OB�lOK�mmVNH�\J�=>U:B]TQCLC�:B�J<L�u:vLIRLC�U>lLJ?�UJQC?�̀mOK>:BL�JOm>K?wU�P>vLbH�gK>ll:]�=OQTC�UQRROKJH6cd8 9:;<=>? EV�Xd[ EV�Xd[�L>UJ�Ol�@A�78 s]]LUU�EOBJKOT�aT>B @N DLTC SV WZH8Z6cdY 9:;<=>? EV�6G EV�6G s]]LUU�EOBJKOT�aT>B @N DLTC SV aT>BB:B; WZH8Z6768 9:;<=>? @A�XG @A�XG�L>UJ�Ol�xLKUL? s]]LUU�EOBJKOT�aT>B @N DLTC SV WZH8Z6cdG 9:;<=>? EV�Xd[ EV�Xd[�>BC�DEF�86 \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJ @N DLTC SV WGHZZ \l�:J�̂LLJU�=>KK>BJ�JO�>TTO=�lOK�UÔ L�v:BC�Ol:BJLKUL]J:OB�]OBJKOTH67YZ 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�[Z \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJì:>̂ OBC�\BJLK]<>B;Lb @N DLTC SV WX[HZZ6XdX 9:;<=>? EV�Xd[ EF�YdIcG�I�EV�Xd[�f�EOKB:U< \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJU @N DLTC SV W6HZZ W6H86G6Y 9:;<=>? EV�8[ EV�8[�>BC�DEF�Xc \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJ @N DLTC SVM�h@g�N@Sijit�Vg9jF EÔ RTLJLC WXHZZ6GG8 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�6Y \BJLKUL]J:OB�\̂RKO_L̂ LBJU @N DLTC SV WZHYZ6GGc 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�XY \BJLKUL]J:OB\̂RKO_L̂ LBJUIFL>T:;B̂ LBJ @N DLTC SV W6H6Z6GG7 9:;<=>? @A�78 @A�78�>BC�DEF�X7 \BJLKUL]J:OB\̂RKO_L̂ LBJUIFL>T:;B̂ LBJ @N DLTC SV W6H8Z

yz{|�}~�����

yz{|�}~����� ����������������������



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
������������
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 3�%#�	$#�	
 04�����������
 03%#�	$#�	
 03�����������
 ,�������������
 ,�,�����������
 ,�,%#�	$#�	
 ,�5�����������
 ,�������������
 ,�������������
 ,�������������
 ,�4�����������
 ,�4�����������
 ,�4�����������
 ,�4�����������
 ,�4�����������
 ,�4

6789 :;<=>?@ AB�C8 AB�C8�?DE�FGH�C9 IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJM AS FKTE UV W9XY96YZZ :;<=>?@ GV�6 GV�6�?DE�[GH�\ IDJKLMKNJ;OD�;PQLORKPKDJM�]OLQLOQOMKE�̂B_�:;<=�BN=OOT�M;JK AS [?L;PKL UV _KM;<D ẀX89 ?̂LJ�O]�aYY6X6YC̀ :;<=>?@ GV�67 GV�67�?DE�GV�̀\a�?DE�FGHYY IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV T̂?DD;D< WZX99 FObTE�DKKE�JO�MKK�;]�;J�PKKJM�>?LL?DJ�JO�?TTO>]OL�MOPK�J@QK�O]�;DJKLMKNJ;OD�NODJLOTX6YCZ :;<=>?@ GV�67 GV�67�?DE�FGH�\9�?DE�FGH8Y IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV T̂?DD;D< WZX896Y\6 :;<=>?@ GV�67 GV�67�?DE�FGH�\̀ IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV T̂?DD;D< W7X996Y\̀ :;<=>?@ GV�67 GV�67�?DE�FGH�6a\c�UK>H?@PKL IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV T̂?DD;D< W7X996C6̀ :;<=>?@ AB�̀7 AB�̀7�?DE�FGH�89 IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV WZX996C67 :;<=>?@ AB�̀7 AB�̀7�?DE�FGH�̀CZ IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV W7X996C̀` :;<=>?@ GV�8a GV�8a�?DE�FGH�8\cdKKDKMebL< IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ�fgbLDT?DKMh AS FKTE SAU_i_�fa96\ja9aZh _KM;<D WaX99 UO�L?J;D< [k�QLOlKNJm67a6 :;<=>?@ GV�ZZ GV�ZZ�?DE�FGH�a6 IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV GOPQTKJKE W6XC96CY8 :;<=>?@ AB�C8 AB�C8�?DE�GV�8ac�SOLJ�[bQJOD K̂EKMJL;?D�;PQLORKPKDJM AS FKTE UV W9Xa96̀C6 :;<=>?@ GV�6 GV�6�>;J=;D�FKTT;D<JOD�gO>D[;P;JM nbTJ;jPOE?T�o�EL?;D?<K;PQLORKPKDJM gO>D�O]FKTT;D<JOD AS [?L;PKL UV T̂?DD;D< W7X99 UO�L?J;D< G_Vg�;M�NODJL;ebJ;D<�W6n�O]�BbL]?NK�gLK?JPKDJ]bDEM�JO�=KTQ�>;J=�NbLLKDJ�QLOlKNJ�J=K�gO>D�;M>OLp;D<�ODX67à :;<=>?@ GV�8a AB�̀7q�IjYZc�SOLJ�nOL<?D k_kr̂i_�IPQLORKPKDJM AS nOL<?D UV WaX9967a7 :;<=>?@ GV�8a IjYZ�JO�GH�sc�SOLJ�nOL<?D K̂ErB?]KJ@�IPQLORKPKDJM AS nOL<?D UV W6X896Y\Y :;<=>?@ GV�67 GV�67�?DE�AB�C8�J=LOb<=�kbTJ K̂EKMJL;?D�;PQLORKPKDJM AS FKTE UV T̂?DD;D< W9Xa9 HKNOPPKDE�POR;D<�JO�?�DK>�T;DK�]OL�tGOTOL?EO67�B?]KJ@�BJbE@�IPQLORKPKDJMt67a8 :;<=>?@ GV�8a UOLJ=�O]�BObJ=�̂T?JJK�H;RKLcUOLJ=�M;EK�O]�H?;DeO>�uL;E<K?̂Lp�iDJL?DNKc�gL?;Tc�SOLJnOL<?D ?̂Lp;D<�IPQLORKPKDJMcuK?bJ;];N?J;OD�[?DEMN?Q;D< AS nOL<?D UV W6X9967̀7 :;<=>?@ IjYZ iv;J�C9c�SOLJ�nOL<?D BJOLP>?JKLc�̂KE�IPQLORKPKDJc[?DEMN?Q;D< AS nOL<?D UV W6X9967̀8 :;<=>?@ IjYZ iv;J�Cac�SOLJ�nOL<?D BJOLP>?JKLc�̂KE�IPQLORKPKDJc[?DEMN?Q;D< AS nOL<?D UV W6X996̀C̀ :;<=>?@ GV�Y GV�Y�;D�iMJKM�̂?Lp n;DOL�F;EKD;D< AS [?L;PKL UV WaX̀9 6�JO�7 GOPQTKJKE�?D�ORKLT?@�;D�T?MJ�8�@K?LMX�B=ObTE�eKLKKR?Tb?JKE�>=KD�J=K�MKNJ;OD�DKKEM�JO�eKORKLT?@KE�?<?;DX6̀\\ :;<=>?@ AB�̀7 AB�̀7�r�AB�̀Z FKMJKLD�u@Q?MM�NODDKNJ;OD AS [?L;PKL UV WZX69 7̂�GOPPKDJq�iMJKM�̂?Lp�DOJKE�QKEKMJL;?DM�?LKl?@>?Tp;D<�?NLOMM�J=K�=;<=>?@�?DE�?�QKEKMJL;?DNLOMM;D<�;M�DKKEKEX6797 :;<=>?@ AB�̀7 iMJKM�̂?Lp G;LNbT?J;OD�IPQLORKPKDJM�;D�?DE?LObDE�iMJKM�̂?Lp�;DNTbE;D<�?ODKj>?@�NObQTKJ AS [?L;PKL UVc�uAg�SAU_i_q�Vg:iH GOPQTKJKE W7YXa9 L̂OlKNJ�NOPQTKJKE�J=;M�MbPPKLX679Z :;<=>?@ AB�̀7 AB�̀7�?DE�FGH�8̀�j�dKLMK@ IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJ AS FKTE UV W9XZ9 _KRKTOQKLjEL;RKD�QLOlKNJX�k�JLbNp;D<�NOPQ?D@>?DJM�?NNKMM�JO�J=K�=;<=>?@�L?J=KL�J=?DEKJObL;D<�?LObDEX�wO;D<�J=LOb<=�QKLP;JM�L;<=JDO>X6769 :;<=>?@ AB�̀Z AB�̀Z�r�GOPPbD;J@�_L IDJKLMKNJ;OD�IPQLORKPKDJM�f?EEFu�TK]J�JbLD�T?DKh AS [?L;PKL UVc�uAg�SAU_i_q�Vg:iH GOPQTKJKE W6X89677a :;<=>?@ AB�̀7 AB̀7�g=LOb<=�SOLJ�nOL<?D HKMJL;Q;D<�?DE�B;<D?<K�JOGODJLOT�̂?Np?<K AS nOL<?D UV GOPQTKJKE FK�ORKLT?;E�J=;M�MKNJ;OD�;D�a9a9XZY HbL?T?̂R;D< GV�8a GV�8a�̂LOMQKNJ�s?TTK@�]LOPn̂ �87X8C�JO�n̂ �Z9XY8̀ HbL?T�LO?E�MbL]?NK�JLK?JPKDJ AS nOL<?Dc�FKTE SAU_i_�fa96\ja9aZh GODMJLbNJ;OD W8X69 W\Xa9 à89\jGV�8a�̂LOMQKNJ�s?TTK@�̂=?MK�II�]bDEKEfW8X6nhX�B?PK�?M�aY87X�SbTT@�]bDEKE�?DE�NOPKO]]�J=K�T;MJXZ\ HbL?T?̂R;D< IjYZ IjYZ�GV�677�FKMJc�FKMJeObDE_;?PODE�wL;DE�o�BT?eM�n̂88X6�JO�n̂ �Z6X\ HbL?T�LO?E�MbL]?NK�JLK?JPKDJ AS nOL<?Dc�FKTE SAU_i_�fa96\ja9aZh GOPQTKJKE Urk WZX69 SbDEKE�o�NODMJLbNJKE�>;J=�W7Zd�BJL?JK<;N�o?̂DEKP;N�HKT;K]Y9 HbL?T?̂R;D< IjYZ IjYZ�]LOP�AB�̀7�i?MJc�BT?eM?DE�_;?PODE�wL;DE�uOJ=_;LKNJ;ODM�]LOP�n̂ �ZZ�JO�n̂ỲX\ HbL?T�LO?E�MbL]?NK�JLK?JPKDJ AS nOL<?Dc�FKTE AUSAU_i_�fa9aYja9aCh T̂?DD;D< Urk W66X89 6�JO�7 :?RK�=?E�MKRKL?T�NOPQT?;DJM�LK<?LE;D<�LO?E>?@NODE;J;OD�?DE�=?M�N?bMKE�RK=;NTKM�JO�PORK�O]]�J=KLO?E�?J�=;<=�MQKKEM�?DE�E?P?<K�EbK�JO�QOJ=OTKMcKJNXgL?]];N�;M�bD?>?LK�O]�DOJKE�M?]KJ@�NODNKLDM�j�ebJ;M�DOJ�E;MLK<?LE;D<�J=K@�?LK�J=KLKX

xy�z{
xy�z{

xy�z{xy�z{xy�z{

|}~���������



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
����	��
&''(���/��/
����3
����3
���	��
&''(����	��
&''(���/

���	��
&''(�
���	��
&''(�

4546 789:;<= >?�@AB�CDEF G;;H:=<9I�JK;�?H8L<MHNH=OHH:�?=H8I<:P�9:Q�RS8=TS8P9:�9:Q�U8HHIHV CW7GXDXGUCYWZ[�7XZW?C7\YK=8<QH8�NK;�;H8L<MH�NH=OHH:?=H8I<:PDRS8=�TS8P9:DU8HHIHV]Z;;K̂ H;�S:H�8SK:Q=8<_�_H8�Q9V@F̀�Q9V;aVH98B�_K8Mb9;H�Sc�dLHb<MIH;]�eS;=�N9;HQ�S:�fA]d5_H8�̂<IH] egY7 GZB�WRB�>R [SP9:BTS8P9:Bh9;b<:P=S:BhHIQ WYB�J>7�R>WgGg\�Y7iGX fd]dA45d4 i<PbO9V CDEF CDEF�C:=HII<PH:=789:;_S8=9=<S:�?V;=Ĥ ;C:c89;=8KM=K8H C:;=9II9=<S:�Sc�c<NH8DS_=<M;�9:QC7?�C:=HII<PH:=�789:;_S8=9=<S:?V;=Ĥ ;�QHL<MH;�NH=OHH:iKQ;S:�9:Q�?=9=H�[<:H GZB�>R [SP9:BTS8P9:B?HQPO<MjBh9;b<:P=S:BhHIQ WY fA5]5545dA i<PbO9V eY�4A eY�4A�C:=HII<PH:=789:;_S8=9=<S:�?V;=Ĥ ;C:c89;=8KM=K8H C:;=9II9=<S:�Sc�c<NH8DS_=<M;�9:QC7?�C:=HII<PH:=�789:;_S8=9=<S:?V;=Ĥ ;�QHL<MH;�NH=OHH:�RS8=eSII<:;�9:Q�?=H8I<:P GZB�WRB�>R [98<̂H8B[SP9:B�hHIQ WY f@5]55
45F@ i<PbO9V >?�k̀ >?�k̀�R8H<Pb=�TSN<I<=VeŜ Ĥ8M<9I�lHb<MIH�?<P:9Im8<S8<=V�nel?mo

Ĉ_IĤ H:=<:P�eŜ Ĥ8M<9IlHb<MIH�?<P:9I�m8<S8<=V�nel?mo�9=d4�<:=H8;HM=<S:;�9IS:P�>]?]i<PbO9V�k̀�n>?�k̀o�c8Ŝ �CDEF�=ShHIQ�eSK:=V�XS9Q�455�=S<̂_8SLH�=89:;_S8=9=<S:�;9cH=VBHcc<M<H:MVB�9:QŜN<I<=Va8HI<9N<I<=V�NV�QH=HM=<:P9:Q�_8<S8<=<p<:P�MŜ Ĥ8M<9ILHb<MIH; >R ZQ9̂ ;B�hHIQ WY mI9::<:P f4]̀54@6A i<PbO9V CDd̀ CDd̀�WS8=b�NS8QH8�Sc�8HP<S:�D=SSI�cS8�l<8=K9I�hH<Pb�?=9=<S:R8H<Pb=�ZQL9:MHQ�789LHIH8C:cS8̂9=<S:�?V;=Ĥ ;�nRXZ7C?o >R hHIQ WY4@6F 789:;<= >?�@A WHO�C:=H8DXHP<S:9I�?H8L<MHNH=OHH:�G;=H;�m98j�9:Q�CDd̀ Ĉ_IĤ H:=�8HP<S:9I�;H8L<MH9IS:P�>?�@A�MS::HM=<:P�G;=H;m98j�O<=b�CDd̀]�G;=<̂9=HQ�9=�@Q9V;�_H8�OHHj�n4Bd̀5�9::K9IbSK8;o egY7 >R [98<̂H8 WYB�J>7�R>WgGg\�Y7iGX f4]5k4A5@ i<PbO9V >?�@A >?�@A�TKI=<̂SQ9I�789<IeS::HM=<S: T9II�XS9Q�=S�XSMjV�TSK:=9<:W9=<S:9I�m98j >R [98<̂H8 WY f45]554Add i<PbO9V eY�E4 gV:9̂ <M�eK8LH�h98:<:P eK8LH�?_HHQ�h98:<:P >R TS8P9: WY iH9LV�=8KMj�=89cc<M�:HHQ;�̂S8H�O98:<:P�ScK_MŜ <:P�MK8LH;]4AdF 789:;<= CDEF WHO�[SM9I�R<qHQDXSK=H789:;<=�?H8L<MH�<:�RS8=TS8P9: [YeZ[�7XZW?C7\�7b<;�_8SrHM=<:MIKQH;�=bH�_K8Mb9;H�Sc�=OSLHb<MIH;�9:Q�S_H89=<:P�MS;=;�=S_8SL<QH�c<qHQD8SK=H�NK;�;H8L<MH<:�RS8=�TS8P9:B�;<q�Q9V;�9�OHHjNH=OHH:�F\@5�9]̂]�9:Q�F\@5_]̂] WGeZ[U >R TS8P9: R>WgGg�nd546Dd5dFo mI9::<:P WaZ f4]F5 RK:QHQ�f4]FT4AdE 789:;<= CDEF WHO�XHP<S:9I�789:;<=�?H8L<MHNH=OHH:�J8K;bDRS8=TS8P9:D[SP[9:HDh<PP<:;D?:VQH8�nTS8P9:eSK:=Vo XGUCYWZ[�7XZW?C7\�?bK==IHBR<qHQ�XSK=H�a�J8K;b�R=]�TS8P9:B[SP�[9:HB�h<PP<:;B�?:VQH8skD̀_̂ B�̀�Q9V;aOHHjs�S:HLHb<MIH WGeZ[U >R TS8P9: WY fd]5F [SK�t�J<:\�J8K;b�mWXB�:S8=b�;<QHs�
4AF5 789:;<= WS:DeS88<QS8?_HM<c<M Gq_9:;<S:�Sc�WGeZ[Uu;eSK:=V�Gq_8H;;�gĤ 9:QXH;_S:;H�=S�eS::HM=�=SYK=8<QH8 XGUCYWZ[�7XZW?C7\�ZQQ<=<S:9IS_H89=<:P�QSII98;�9:Q�LHb<MIH;�=SHq_9:Q�eSK:=V�Gq_8H;;�gĤ 9:QXH_S;H;�;H8L<MH�=S�_8SL<QH8vc<8;=�9:Q�I9;=�̂<IHw�MS::HM=<S:;=S�YK=8<QH8�n_8SrHM=�MS;=;<:MIKQH�9::K9I�S_H89=<:P�9=fd5B555aVH98�9:Q�d�MK=9O9VLHb<MIH;�9=�fk5B555�H9Mbo WGeZ[U GZB�WRB�>R TS8P9:Bh9;b<:P=S:BhHIQB�xK̂ 9 WYB�J>7�R>WgGg\�Y7iGX f5]@F

fd̀5B555]5

yz{|}~�~�

yz{|}~�~� �{|}~{~��~��������~��z��}��~����~
�}������ ���z����~��z�������������z�������������~����~�
yz{|}~�~�

�����



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
����	��
&''(����	��
&''(�����3
����3

��/���	��
&''(�����3
����3
��//
+$�/
+$����	��
&''(�

4564 789:;<= >?�@A BC;�?D8E<FD�GD=HDD:I8DDJDK�9:L�MD:ED8 NO7PQRQPINSOTU�7QTO?N7VBC;=9:W�GC;�;D8E<FD�GD=HDD:I8DDJDK�XIP7�789:;<=�YD:=D8Z9:L�MD:ED8�X>:<[:�?=9=<[:Z\�T;;C]D;�4̂�8[C:L=8<_;�_D8HDD̀L9K�9:L�a�8[C:L=8<_;�[:HDD̀D:L;�9:L�]9b[8�c[J<L9K;d_C8Fc9;D�[e�5�EDc<FJD;\ MQd�Ofd�>f TL9];dMD:ED8d�gDJL OS h46\ii4j6@ 789:;<= YS�4 QDW<[:9J�f<kDLRQ[C=D�789:;<=?D8E<FD�e8[]�gDJJ<:W=[:�=[f[8=�Y[JJ<:; QPINSOTU�7QTO?N7V�ODH8DW<[:9J�e<kDLR8[C=D�X[8LDE<9=DL�e<kDLR8[C=DZ�=89:;<=;D8E<FD�GD=HDD:�gDJJ<:W=[:�9:Lf[8=�Y[JJ<:;l�S:D�8[C:L�=8<_d�[:DL9K�_D8�HDD̀ 789:;f[8=[8�S=cD8>f U98<]D8 OS ĥ\@54jja m<WcH9K YS�45 YS�45�78CF̀�n98̀<:W 78CF̀�n98̀<:W�[:�Y9]D8[:�n9;; >f U98<]D8 OS nJ9::<:W ĥ\ô TG;[8GDL�<:=[�a55A�9;�_98=�[e�=cD�QDW<[:�5�78CF̀n98̀<:W�?=CLK\4@̂4 m<WcH9K NRaA NRaA�78CF̀�n98̀<:W N:F8D9;D�78CF̀�n98̀<:W�O[8=c�[egDJJ<:W=[:�Xpn�a@̂Z >f U98<]D8d�gDJLOS h4\5@ fC:L<:W�:DDLDL�e[8�9�;=CLK�9:L�_[=D:=<9JJK�9:K8D]9<:<:W�eC:L;�e[8�;[]D�_8DJ<]<:98K�LD;<W:d�GC=:[=�e[8�<]_JD]D:=9=<[:\4@̂a m<WcH9K NRaA O[8=c�NRaA�789:;<=�fJDD=nC8Fc9;D 7c<;�_8[bDF=�<:FJCLD;�=cD_C8Fc9;D�[e�[:D�EDc<FJD�9:L[_D89=<:W�F[;=;�=[�_8[E<LD<:=D88DW<[:9J�GC;�;D8E<FDGD=HDD:�f[8=�Y[JJ<:;�9:LYcDKD::D�H<=c�[:D�8[C:L�=8<__D8�L9Kd�o6A�L9K;�9�KD98\ YMS7 Ofd�>f U98<]D8 f>OMPM�Xâ4iRâa6Z nJ9::<:W OqT ho\̂^ n98=<9JJK�eC:LDL�Xh4\AZ�9:L�C:eC:LDL�Xh4\AZ5n�Y[]]D:=V�gD�:DDL�=89:;<=�;D8E<FD�e8[]�f[8=Y[JJ<:;�=[�YcDKD::D�H<=c�9�;=[_�<:�gDJJ<:W=[:\�gDc9ED�9�J[=�[e�rD=D89:;�Hc[�:DDL�=[�WD=�=[�=cD�rTc[;_<=9J\�789:;<=�?D8E<FD�e8[]�f[8=�Y[JJ<:;�=[gDJJ<:W=[:�=[�YcDKD::Dd�gs�:DDLDL\4@â m<WcH9K >?�o6 >?�o6�Y[]]C:<=K�M8<ED�=[p98Kt;�U9̀D�Q[9L M<W<=9J�;<W:9WD�9:L�;]98=_98̀<:W�=DFc:[J[WK�e[8F[:WD;=<[:�9:L�9<8�uC9J<=K]<=<W9=<[: >f U98<]D8 OS ha\̂^4@a5 789:;<= >?�o6 BC;=9:W�?D8E<FD�e8[]B[CJLD8RUK[:;RP;=D;�n98̀ NO7PQRQPINSOTU�7QTO?N7V�ODDL[_D89=<:W�LD=9<J;�e8[]�YMSM7�R:C]GD8�[e�[_D89=<[:9J�L9K;�_D8KD98d�c[C8;�[e�;D8E<FDd�[_;�F[;=;9:L�EDc<FJD�:DDL; YMS7 MQd�>f U98<]D8 OSd�B>7�f>OMPMV�S7mPQ4@oj m<WcH9K YS�j4 YS�j4�?=[:Dc9]�=[�v<]G9JJXODG89;̀9Z�78CF̀�n98̀<:W O[�;_9FD;�Dk<;=�[:�=cD�;[C=cD8:_[8=<[:�[e�=c<;�;DW]D:=\�n98̀<:WF[CJL�GD�9LLDL�=c8[CWc�_8<E9=D<:ED;=]D:=�<:�v<]G9JJ\ >f gDJL OS ĥ\544@5i m<WcH9K NRj6 NRj6�78CF̀�n98̀<:W N:F8D9;D�78CF̀�n98̀<:W�GD=HDD:MD:ED8�9:L�vDD:D;GC8W\�T�:DHe9F<J<=K�<:�B8<Wc=[:�8DuC<8D;9LL<=<[:9J�;_9FD;\�7cD�FJ[;DLn<J[=�YD:=D8�F[CJL�GD�9:9LDuC9=D�J[F9=<[:\ >f gDJL OS ĥ\6oaaj5 m<WcH9K r98<[C; ?<W:9J�<]_8[ED]D:=;�9:LL<JD]]9�w[:D�LD=\Xn8<[8<=<w9=<[:�adod5djd@Z MQd�Ofd�>f B[CJLD8dU98<]D8 OS ĥ\Âa55o ?=CLK YS�j YS�j�S_D89=<[:;�x�?9eD=K?=CLK p[;=�e8DuCD:=�F89;c�=K_D;V�f<kDLSGbDF=;d�g<JL�T:<]9J;d�QD98P:L; >f U98<]D8 OSa555 ?=CLK YS�4d�YS�jdYS�45d�>?o5d�>?�o6d>?�a@j QDW<[:�5�?c[CJLD8�?=CLKX>fQZ QDW<[:�H<JJ�<LD:=<eK�=cD�GD;=J[F9=<[:;�e[8�J<]<=DL�;c[CJLD8<:WeC:L;\ >f U98<]D8dp[8W9:d�gDJL OS YMS7�GDJ<DED;�=c<;�H[CJL�GD�GD==D8�GD�;C<=DL�=[GD�<:FJCLDL�<:�[_D89=<[:9J�9:9JK;<;�e[8�<:L<E<LC9J;C8e9FD�=8D9=]D:=�_8[bDF=;d�9:L�<;�8DF[]]D:L<:W=c<;�GD�8D][EDL�e8[]�=cD�J<;=\a56A 789:;<= NRj6 P;;D:=<9J�BC;�?D8E<FDGD=HDD:�?=D8J<:W�9:L�MD:ED8Xn8[_[;DL�SC=8<LD8�?D8E<FDZ NO7PQRQPINSOTU�7QTO?N7VSC=8<LD8�GC;�;D8E<FD�GD=HDD:MD:ED8�9:L�?=D8J<:W\�T;;C]D;[:D�8[C:L=8<_�A�L9K;�_D8�HDD̀Aa�HDD̀;�_D8�KD98\�nC8Fc9;D�[ea�EDc<FJD;\��Y[;=�G9;DL�[:�h5\â_D8�]<JD\ YMS7 MQd�PTd�>f TL9];dMD:ED8dU[W9:dp[8W9:d�gDJL OSd�B>7�f>OMPMV�S7mPQ ho\6a

yz{|}~�� �������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��������� ���������������������������������

���������

�������� �¡¢�£¤£¥



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
�34�56
34�56

789: ;<=>?@A BCDE FGA<@HI<�BJK<LMIJI>A?�=AN<G?OP�QL<A�RL<S=>PTLUOVG@IP�=>H�WGH?L> BX;YZCZY[BFX\T�;Z\X]B;̂�]ALK=>H�?OI_AI<�@JK<LMIJI>A?�=AN<G?OP�QL<A�RL<S=>P�WGH?L>P=>H�TLUOVG@I�AL�?GKKL<A�>ÌFGA<@HI<�?I<M@UI�a<LJ�]AI<_@>S�AL[<II_Ib�?IA�AL�VIS@>�LKI<=A@>S@>�7:7cd efF; fZP�gQ \H=J?PRL<S=>P�hI_H QgXfYf�i7:c9C7:7Ej k_=>>@>S Xl\ m:dn7 QG>HIH�mn7:o
7p7E ;<=>?@A g]�nE Y?AI?�k=<q�;<=>?@A�Y_IUA<@U;<L__Ib�eO=<S@>S�]A=A@L>

TFe\T�;Z\X]B;̂�Y?AI?�k=<q<IUI@MIH�aIHI<=_�S<=>A?�aL<�ÀLI_IUA<@U�A<L__Ib?d�;OI�;L̀ >=?qIH�aL<�L>_b�L>I�UO=<S@>S?A=A@L>�AO<LGSO�AOI?I�S<=>A?�VGA@̀__�>IIH�ÀL�AL�=HIrG=AI_bUO=<SI�AOI�MIO@U_I?d�;OI�a@<?AUO=<S@>S�?A=A@L>�O=?�VII><IUI@MIH�=>H�@?�@>�AOI�K<LUI??�LaVI@>S�@>?A=__IHd�;O@?�K<LsIUA�@?aL<�=�?IUL>H�UO=<S@>S�?A=A@L>�AL?I<MI�AOI�?IUL>H�MIO@U_IP�̀O@UO?OLG_H�VI�HI_@MI<IH�@>�_=AI7:7:d�k<LsIUA�UL?A?�@>U_GHI�AOIUO=<S@>S�?A=A@L>�=>H�UL?A�aL<@>?A=__=A@L>d Y?AI?�k=<qgQ T=<@JI< QgXfYf�i7:c9C7:7Ej Xl\ m:d:c eLJV@>IH�̀@AO�7pn:�=>H�7p7p
7p7D ;<=>?@A g]�n8 Y?AI?�k=<q�;<=>?@A�]ALKBJK<LMIJI>A?

TFe\T�;Z\X]B;̂�;O@?�K<LsIUA@>U_GHI?�AOI�HI?@S>P�K<LHGUA@L>P=>H�@>?A=__=A@L>�La?IJ@CKI<J=>I>A�?@S>=SI=>H�VG?�?OI_AI<?�AL�?GKKL<A�@A??I=?L>=_�?OGAA_IK<LS<=Jd�k<LsIUA�UL?A?�@>U_GHIHI?@S>�=>HK<LHGUA@L>�La�>Ì �?ALK�?@S>?�aL<=KK<Lt@J=AI_bpp�VG?�?ALK?�=>HAIJKL<=<bl?IJ@CKI<J=>I>A?ALK�?OI_AI<?�aL<�pp�_LU=A@L>?d Y?AI?�k=<qgQ T=<@JI< XF m:dcp
uvwxyz{z|
}z~��� ����z~{�v����vw��~{z~��������zwv�z���~���zy{z���vw�x�v�z�{���|��zzx���~��{vx��wx�v�zwz�{��~���v��v����x�v�z�{���	��
&''(�



�

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
�

���	��
&''(�
���	��
&''(����	��
&''(����	��
&''(���3��+
��	��3��+
��	

4546 789:;<= >?�@A 789:;<=�BCCD;;�EF:=8FG�H9=D;

I:�4JKLM�=ND�7FO:�=D;=DP�9�:DOQH8DD:�RFS=DQM�ON<CN�T8FU<PDPDVT8D;;�;D8U<CD�CF::DC=<:W=N8DD�;=FT;X�KY�=ND�T98Z<:W;=8SC=S8DM�4Y�[UD:=;�EF\TGDV9:P�@Y�]F:P�̂98Z_�7ND�H8DD:RFS=D�F̀ D̀8DP�K5a\<:S=D8FS:Pa=8<T�;D8U<CD�̀8F\�=ND7FO:b;�=OF�G98WD;=�T98Z<:W9̀C<G<=<D;�=F�PFO:=FO:M�O<=N�:F=89:;̀D8�9=�=ND�c<;<=F8�ED:=D88DdS<8DP_�eS8<:W�=ND�̀<8;=�ODDZF̀�;D8U<CDM�=ND�>?�]S8D9S�F̀RDCG9\9=<F:�f]gRY�;NS=�PFO:=ND�hS;�;=FT�9=�=ND�T98Z<:W;=8SC=S8D�̀F8C<:W�=ND�;=FT�=F8DGFC9=D�=F�=ND�c<;<=F8�ED:=D8_7N<;�CN9:WD�;<W:<̀<C9:=Gi�<\T9C=8<PD8;N<T�F:�=ND�8FS=DM�NFODUD8=ND�7FO:�O9;�9hGD�=F�:DWF=<9=DO<=N�=ND�]gR�=F�9GGFO�;NS==GD9CCD;;�<̀�=ND�7FO:�<:;=9GGDP9CCD;;�CF:=8FG�W9=D;�9:P9TT8FT8<9=D�TDPD;=8<9:�;9̀D=i\D9;S8D;_�7N<;�T8FjDC=�OFSGP<:CGSPD�<:;=9GG9=<F:�F̀]gRa8DdS<8DP�DdS<T\D:=�9:P;9̀D=i�\D9;S8D;�=F�9GGFO8D<:;=9=D\D:=�F̀�=ND�H8DD:RFS=D_�7ND�T8FjDC=�CF;=�<:CGSPD;PD;<W:M�\9=D8<9G�9:PCF:;=8SC=<F:�CF;=;_ [;=D;�̂98Z>k l98<\D8 mg nJ_Jo
454p 789:;<= >?�@A ŜhG<C�RD;=8FF\;�9=�=ND789:;<=�qSh�9:P[UD:=;�EF\TGDV�̂98Za:aR<PD<:�[;=D;�̂98Z

lgEBl�7RBm?I7X�7ND�T8FjDC=<:CGSPD;�=ND�<:;=9GG9=<F:�F̀TShG<C�8D;=8FF\;�:D98�=ND�hS;TSGGaFS=�9:P�;NDG=D8�F:�r9:̀F8PBUD:SD_�̂8FjDC=�CF;=;�98D�h9;DPF:�9�nA5Js;dS98DàFF=CF:;=8SC=<F:�CF;=�O<=N�9T8FTF;DP�oJJa;dS98DàFF=9̀C<G<=i_�t9=D8�<;�F:�;<=DM�hS=9CCD;;�=F�;9:<=98i�;DOD8�O<GG8DdS<8D�C8F;;<:W�r9:̀F8PBUD:SD_ [;=D;�̂98Z>k l98<\D8 mg nJ_AJ45A@ 789:;<= IaLo m[EBlH�k9C<G<=<D;�mDDP;?=SPi lgEBl�7RBm?I7X�eD=D8\<:D:DDP;M�;<=D�GFC9=<F:�9:P�<PD:=<̀i9G=D8:9=<UD;�̀F8�hS;�;=F89WD�9:P9P\<:�̀9C<G<=i�̀F8�m[EBlH=89:;<=_ m[EBlH >k rF8W9: mg nJ_J545AA 789:;<= IaLo m[EBlH�]S;�]98:�eD;<W:�9:PEF:;=8SC=<F: lgEBl�7RBm?I7X�IPD:=<̀iT8D̀D88DP�;<=D�GFC9=<F:�9:P9G=D8:9=<UD;�̀F8�hS;�;=F89WD�9:P9P\<:<;=89=<F:�̀9C<G<=i�̀F8m[EBlH�=89:;<=_ m[EBlH >k rF8W9: mg n5_JJ4op6 q<WNO9i >?�65 >?�65[�kF8=�lST=F:eDUFGS=<F: eDUFGS=<F:�F̀�>?�65[�feD:UD8BUD:SDY�=N8FSWN�kF8=�lST=F: >k tDGP mg4opp q<WNO9i >?�65 >?�65k�̂G9==DU<GGD�eDUFGS=<F:eDUFGS=<F:�F̀�>?�65k�fr9<:?=8DD=Y�=N8FSWN�̂G9==DU<GGD >k tDGP mg Ĝ9::<:W lDUDG�A�9=�r9<:�?=u�Eg�oo lFFZ�<:=F�TF;;<h<G<=i�F̀�\9Z<:W�:DCD;;98i<\T8FUD\D:=;�=F�PDUFGUD�=F�̂G9==DU<GGDv�7ND8D�<;FTTF8=S:<=i�̀F8�h<ZDsTDP�<\T8FUD\D:=;�9;�T98=�F̀=N<;_�̂G9==DU<GGD�N9;�hDD:�WF<:W�9̀=D8�\SG=<\FP9G<\T8FUD\D:=;�̀F8�iD98;_

wxyz{x |}~��}����~���}�}����~���~�}����������}���~��}���������������}�������������������}
�������~����� �x��|���������}����������������~��}}��~��}���}���������}�������~�����}��������~�����~������� ���~����������}����}�������~��������}����~�������������¡�¡¢�£}���� ��~��������}���������}���������}��



��

��������	
���
�������	
����
��	����	
���
������	����	���������	�� ���������
� � ���� !"� ��	�����#$� ��	����� ��������	
 ��%&��
�� ���'(�)*�+ �	,
��*���+ -�./�����
 0��,� ��-12 ����2 0����*�)00�3��	���%	�+ � )��#	�����	���������%��
��
���'(()�
&$�
%$�
�

0�,%�

4566 789:;<= >98<?@; A:B�C9DDEA:B�CD<FG�CB:=B8
HIJKALMN�7HMLOK7P�AQB89=B�9F9DD�FB:=B8�<:�N98<RB8�9:S�TBDSF?@:=<B;�9=�=UB�L?8=U�V8?:=H9:WB�XYA�F??8S<:9=<:W�8<SB;Z?8�U@R9:�;B8[<FB�9:S�=89:;<=9WB:F<B;\�Q8?[<SB�D?F9D�9:S=BFU:<F9D�9;;<;=9:FB�Z?8�=UBQ@8FU9;B�?Z�[BU<FDB;�9:SB]Q9:;<?:�?Z�;B8[<FB;\�9:SQ8?[<SB�;=9ZZ�;@QQ?8=�Z?8<:F8B9;BS�Q98=:B8;U<Q;�9:S8BD9=<?:;U<Q;�=U8?@WU�D?F9DF??8S<:9=<:W�F?@:F<D; LVHXYA LV\�̂V N98<RB8\�TBDSLA\�_̂7�V̂L̀ ÌP�A7aIH bcd5e4fgh a<WUi9j CA�5h CA�5hP�_<W�_B9[B8�C8BBGHBU9k<D<=9=<?:�9:S�HBQ9<8 _8<SWB�HBU9k<D<=9=<?:�9:S�HBQ9<8 V̂ X?8W9: L̂V̂ L̀ Ì�l4645m464gn YD9::<:W LEM bcd5g c4fg4 a<WUi9j CA�5h CA�5hP�O=?:BU9RHBU9k<D<=9=<?:�9:S�HBQ9<8 _8<SWB�HBU9k<D<=9=<?:�9:S�HBQ9<8 V̂ X?8W9:\�TBDS L̂V̂ L̀ Ì�l4645m464gn YD9::<:W LEM b6dhc c4fgg a<WUi9j CA�5h CA�5h�O?@=U�?Z�CA�hc H@89D�8?9S�;@8Z9FB�=8B9=RB:= V̂ X?8W9:\�TBDS V̂L̀ Ì�l46hom464fn YD9::<:W LEM b4cdh6 4�=?�c Y98=<9DDj�Z@:SBS�lb5n�9:S�@:Z@:SBS�lbh5dhn4fgo a<WUi9j CA�5h CA�5h�L?8=U�?Z�_8@;U H@89D�8?9S�;@8Z9FB�=8B9=RB:= V̂ X?8W9: L̂V̂ L̀ Ì�l4645m464gn YD9::<:W LEM bedp6 c\�kB=iBB:�XYhgemhgp45cp a<WUi9j Km5f Km5f�9:S�TCH�g�K:=B8FU9:WB C?:;=8@F=�9�:Bi�<:=B8FU9:WB�9=Km5f�9:S�TBDS�C?@:=j�H?9S�gl;Q9::<:W�=UB�_LOVn V̂ TBDS LA b4pd66 h 789ZZ<F�;@QQ?8=;�=U<;d�K=�U9;�=?�U9QQB:�kBZ?8B�=UBjk@<DS�=UB�R@D=<R?S9D�Z9F<D<=j\�?=UB8i<;B\�B[B8j;@88?@:S<:W�<:=B8;BF=<?:�i<DD�Z9<Dd45pc H@89DY9[<:W CA�p4 CA�p4�Y8?;QBF=�>9DDBj�Z8?RXY�c4�m�pcdf�q�XY�c6d5p�mc6d55 H@89D�8?9S�;@8Z9FB�=8B9=RB:= V̂ X?8W9:\�TBDS V̂L̀ Ì�l46hom464fn C?RQDB=BS LEM bh6df64556 a<WUi9j Ô�ef Ô�efEC?RR@:<=j�̀8<[BH?@:S9k?@= 7U<;�Q8?rBF=�i<DD�<:;=9DD�98?@:S9k?@=�9=�=UB�<:=B8;BF=<?:9=�̂O�ef�9:S�C?RR@:<=j�̀8<[B V̂ N98<RB8 V̂L̀ Ì�l46hom464fn C?RQDB=BS LEM bcdg6 bpp6s�Z@:SBS�q�<:�F?:;=8@F=<?:

4554 a<WUi9j CA�p4 CA�p4ECH�po�H?@:S9k?@=�9:SO9ZB=j�KRQ8?[BRB:=;
CA�p4�F?88<S?8�<;�UB9[<Dj=89[BDBS�kj�Z8B<WU=�[BU<FDB;\F?RR@=B8;\�9:S�D?F9D�8B;<SB:=;d7UB�CA�p4�9:S�TCH�po<:=B8;BF=<?:�<;�F@88B:=Dj=i?mi9j�;=?Q�F?:=8?DDBS�?:�TCHpo�i<=U�SB[BD?QRB:=�?:�=U8BB?Z�=UB�Z?@8�F?8:B8;d�K=�U9;@:<t@B�QB9GmU?@8�=89ZZ<FZD@F=@9=<?:;�S@B�=?�=UB�9Sr9FB:=r@:<?8mU<WU�9:S�U<WU�;FU??DZ9F<D<=<B;d V̂ TBDS V̂L̀ Ì�l46hom464fn B̀;<W: LEM bh4d66 4 NB9[B�?:�=UB�D<;=d�C@88B:=Dj�Q?;=mVKH�i?8G<:W�?:V<:9D�̀B;<W:�q�HATd�LBBS;�F?:;=8@F=<?:�Z@:S<:WZ8?R�?@8�@:SB8;=9:S<:Wd455e 789:;<= >98<?@; _@;=9:W�A@=8<SB8�VDBB=I]Q9:;<?: KL7IHmHIJKALMN�7HMLOK7P_@;=9:W�A@=8<SB8�VDBB=I]Q9:;<?: C̀A7 V̂ V̂ L̀ Ì�l46hom464fn YD9::<:W LEM b4df6 Y98=<9DDj�Z@:SBS�lbhdpn�9:S�@:Z@:SBS�lbhdhn4ccpu� O=@Sj CA�hc\�̂Oec\�CA�p4\Ô�gp\�̂O4g5 HBW<?:�c�78@FG�Y98G<:W�O=@Sjl̂VHn M;;B;;�=UB�ZB9;<k<D<=j�?Z9SS<=<?:9D�=8@FG�Q98G<:W V̂ N98<RB8\X?8W9:\�TBDS LA YD9::<:W

4p4pu 789:;<= Ô�ef I;=B;�Y98G�789:;<=KRQ8?[BRB:=;�q�IDBF=8<F78?DDBj�_@;�_98:
NACMN�7HMLOK7P�7U<;�Q8?rBF=<:FD@SB;�=UB�<:;=9DD9=<?:�?Z�9FU98W<:W�;=9=<?:�9:S�RB=9D;=?89WB�k@<DS<:W�Z?8�9:�BDBF=8<F=8?DDBj�8BFB<[BS�<:�v9:@98j4646\�i<=U�QD9:;�Z?8�9SS<:W9:?=UB8�BDBF=8<F�=8?DDBj�D9=B�<:4646d�7U<;�Q8?rBF=�9;;@RB;�=U9==U<;�k@<DS<:W�i<DD�W?�i<=U<:�=UB7?i:�?i:BS�IDR�H?9S�Q8?QB8=j\i<=U�:?�D9:S�9Ft@<;<=<?:�F?;=;d I;=B;�Y98G V̂ N98<RB8 V̂L̀ Ì�l46hom464fn C?RQDB=BS LEM b4d66 C?Rk<:BS�i<=U�4p4fd�V@:SBS�bhdcXd

wxyz{|}|~ �|����xz|��}�x������������~��x�}���|��}x�~x��x�z�x��~�������x�y�}�x����~��|�x���|��������w�{{w|�}|����~��|���}|

�|�x�~���x{{|���|�|��|~��w���������}�}�x�����}�{{|~��{�������x�����������{x��}�x���x�������}x���|����{}�|�

������������������������������
����������
�����

����
���� ���¡¢



��

���������	
���	������	������	����
�
��	����	����
����������
���
���� ����������	� �� ����  !� ������
�"�#� ������
��������
��	 ���$%�	�� ���&'�()�* ��+	
�)���* ,�-.�������	 /
�
+� ��,01 ����1 /���
�)�(//�2������$��* ��(��"�
��������������$�
�34�56789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?789:�;<�=>=?

@AABC� DEFGHIJ KL�B KL�B�MINOPJ�QRSTUVOROWPX YGO�STUZO[P�HE\\�RI]O�XINOPJERSTUVOROWPX�I\UWF�KL�B�WOITK̂�_�IẀ�K̂�a@bc��dUPOWPEI\�PUTOI\EFWEWF�PGO�GEFGHIJ�IẀRI]EWF�EWPOTXO[PEUWERSTUVOROWPXc ef gITEROT fehibi�j@kB_l@k@am iOXEFW hno pqckk @r�s dTUZO[P�EX�tOEWF�TOlX[USÒ�IP�PGO�RUROWPcdÒOXPTEIW�ERSTUVOROWPX�ITO�tOEWF�TOuvOXPÒ�tJYUHW�UN�wO\\EWFPUWc�YTINNE[�̀IPI�EX�WUP�XGUHEWFI\ITREWF�XINOPJ�[UW[OTWX�IP�PGEX�PEROcqd�KURROWPx�wO\\EWFPUW�OySTOXXÒ�[UW[OTWX�HEPGPGO�YUHWzX�FTUHPG�IẀ�[UW[OTWX�TO\IPÒ�PUtE]OnSÒ�XINOPJc�YGOJ�HIWP�PU�RI]O�Rv\PERÙI\ERSTUVOROWPX�PU�FOP�[EPE{OWX�I[TUXX�KL�B�XINO\Jcv̂TI\dIVEWF KL�Bqq KL�Bqq�̂OXvTNI[EWFx�|OPHOOWQlAa�IẀ�eM�sq qd�KURROWPx�}UTFIW�KUvWPJ�EXFOPPEWF�WUWXPUS�[I\\X�ItUvP�PGOTUÌ�[UẀEPEUW�GOTOc�f\OOP}IWIFOT�UN�}UTFIW�KUvWPJ[UvWPÒ�skk�SUPGU\OX�UW�PGOTUÌc ef }UTFIW d\IWWEWF @r�s @A~@�QlAa�KL�Bqq�QWPOT[GIWFO�MINOPJQRSTUVOROWPX��fvẀÒ�HEPG�p_}cv̂TI\dIVEWF KL��@ KL��@�̂OXvTNI[EWFQRSTUVOROWPX qd�KURROWPx�fUTP�gvSPUW�EXXOOEWF�̀OFTÒIPEUW�UW�BXP�MPTOOPjKL��@mc�fIE\EWF�SIVOROWP�NTUReM�~��PU�Ql@�c KiLY ef wO\̀ packk @�PU�q L\̀�XPIPO�GEFGHIJ�PGIP�EX�I\XU�}IEW�MPTOOPc�YUHWGIX�EWPOTOXP�EW�TOXvTNI[EWF�ERSTUVOROWPXcDEFGHIJ KL��@ KL��@�KUWFOXPEUW�}EPEFIPEUW qd�KURROWPx�MOVOTO�[UWFOXPEUWUW�KL��@�NTUR�eM�~��PU�Ql@�c ef���îKL� wO\̀ �� @�PU�q wO�GIVO�GOIT̀�NTUR�iI[UWUr�fTÒOTE[]r�wO\̀KUvWPJ�KURREXXEUWOTX�IẀ�\U[I\�[EPE{OWX�ItUvPPGO�[UWFOXPEUW�UW�KL��@�OIXP�UN�Ql@�cDEFGHIJ QlAa QlAax�KURROT[O�KEPJ�PUwEFFEWX qd�KURROWPx�QlAa�NTURKURROT[O�KEPJ�PU�wEFFEWX�EXÒPOTEUTIPEWF�uvE[]\J�HEPG�\ITFOrÌWFOTUvX�SUPGU\OXc ef wO\̀r�}UTFIW @�PU�q KUẀEPEUW�UN�PGO�TUÌHIJ�EX�VOTJ�SUUT�IẀ�WOÒXPU�tO�Ì T̀OXXÒcYTIWXEP eM�sq YTIWXEP�MOTVE[Ox��TOO\OJ�PUgUVO\IẀ�PU�bXPOX�dIT] qd�KURROWPx�wO�WOÒ�TOFEUWI\PTIWXEP�[UWWO[PEVEPJ�vS�eM�sqc ef���hf gITEROT �TOO\OJ�EX�TvWWEWF�PTIWXEP�XOTVE[O�NTUR��TOO\OJ�PUgUVO\IẀc�hU�|vXPIWF�S\IWX�NUT�PGEX�[UTTÈUT�IPPGEX�PEROc�MOORX�PU�tO�I�WOÒ�NUT�SIXXPGTUvFGÙ\\ITXcv̂TI\dIVEWF eM�a�n�QlAa eM�a�jQlAam�̂OXvTNI[EWFQRSTUVOROWPX qd�KURROWPx�YGO�YUHW�UNwEFFEWX�VUE[Ò�[UW[OTWX�NUT�eM�aWOÒEWF�PU�tO�TOSIVÒ�IẀTOXPTESÒ�IX�EP�EX�TIPÒ�EW�SUUT[UẀEPEUWc�hUPÒ�PGIP�[GE\̀TOWITO�HI\]EWF�̀UHW�PGO�ÒFO�UNPGO�TUÌ�[TOIPEWF�I�XINOPJ�EXXvOc ef }UTFIW sYTIWXEP eM�~� YTIWXEP�MOTVE[Ox�eM�~�KUTTÈUT qd�KURROWPx�wO�WOÒ�RUTOPTIWXEP�USPEUWXc�eM�~��EX�EWOyPTORO\J�SUUT�[UẀEPEUW�IẀ�EXN\UÙÒ�HEPG�GOIVJ�PTv[]PTINNE[c�QP�RI]OX�PGO�TUÌ�NTURwJUREWF�PU�iOWVOT�vWXINOc KiLY ef���hf wO\̀ iŶ �TOO\OJ�GIX�OySTOXXÒ�EWPOTOXP�PU�Ì �̀PTIWXEPXOTVE[O�I\UWF�eM�~��[UTTÈUT�PU�PGO�IETSUTPc�YHUdIT]lWl̂ÈOX�GIVO�I\TOÌJ�tOOW�tvE\P�I\UWF�PGO[UTTÈUTc�YGEX�EX�ÈOWPENEÒ�EW�PGO�Ql@��bQMcv̂TI\dIVEWF eM�~� eM�~��PGTUvFG�bIPUW qd�KURROWPx�eM�~��PGTUvFGbIPUW�HIX�WUPÒ�PU�GIVO�SUUTSIVOROWP�[UẀEPEUWX�IẀ�I�\I[]UN�I[[OXXEtE\EPJ�USPEUWX�NUTtE]OnSÒ�vXOTXc hf wO\̀ d\IWWEWF eM�~����K̂�Aq�lgOVO\�@ YUHW�EX�XS\EP�tJ�eM�~�c�YTINNE[�HUv\̀�XvSSUTPRv\PERÙI\�IẀ�tE]OnSÒ�ERSTUVOROWPXrOXSO[EI\\J�PU�[UWWO[P��TOIP�wOXPOTW�YTIE\�I[TUXXeM�~�cv̂TI\dIVEWF eM�~��| d\IPPOVE\\O�}IEW�MPTOOP qd�KURROWPx�d\IPPOVE\\OzX�}IEWMPTOOP�EX�[TvRt\EWFc�|vXEWOXXOXITO�WUP�HIWPEWF�PU�tO�PGOTOtO[IvXO�UN�PGO�[UẀEPEUW�UN�PGOXPTOOPc KiLY ef wO\̀ p�ckkgOVO\�q�IP�}IEW�MP��KL�aa KiLY�}IEWPOWIW[O�[TOHX�[URS\OPÒ�PORSUTITJSIP[GEWF�IẀ�ITO�S\IWWEWF�I�RE\\nNE\\�EW�MSTEWF@k@qc�̂q�̀È�[UW[OSPvI\�OWFEWOOTEWF�̀OXEFWX�NUTPGO�EWPOTXO[PEUW�UN�KL�aan}IEW�jeM�~��|vXEWOXXmrHGE[G�RIJ�tO�\OVOTIFÒ�NUT�NvPvTO�NvẀEWFUSSUTPvWEPEOXc

�������������������������������������������������������������������



��

��������	
���
�������	
����
��	����	
���
������	����	���������	�� ���������
� � ���� !"� ��	�����#$� ��	����� ��������	
 ��%&��
�� ���'(�)*�+ �	,
��*���+ -�./�����
 0��,� ��-12 ����2 0����*�)00�3��	���%	�+ � )��#	�����	���������%��
4567�89�:;:< =>�?@?ABCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIHCDEFGHHIH

JKLLMJKLNMJONJM�JKNKPQRSTUV WX�YZ WX�YZ�[U\]̂V�[̂_̀Vabcdef]b]ĝh�\deb�iWj�k�lmWj�Zn
Zo�Webb]ĝp�WX�YZ�Qh�Ug]q̂d]b]rV�̀UgR]de_h�seddQ̀ed\deb�iWj�k�̂e�iWj�Zn�Û�bUgVQĝ]dh]ŝQegh�t]hc]sQUrrV�Wj�uvwWj�nYxy�jeÙ�seg̀Q̂Qegh�Ud]]̂ddQzr]y�W[o�Ug̀�resUr]b]dR]gsV�h]dfQs]�cdefQ̀]dhSeĥ]̀�U�c_zrQs�b]]̂QgR�̂SÛQgsr_̀]̀�]r]ŝ]̀�e\\QsQUrh�TSehSUd]̀�̂S]�hUb]�h]ĝQb]ĝy{qs]hhQf]�hc]]̀QgR�Qh�zQR�\Uŝedy[]]QgR�U�rê�e\�S]Ùleghy |}�~��} iUdQb]dw�m]r̀ orUggQgR u�̂e�Z W�X��Qh�Qg�̂S]�cdes]hh�e\�̀eQgR�U�hU\]̂V�ĥ_̀V�egŜQh�h]ŝQeg�e\�WX�YZy��S]�ĥ_̀V�TQrr�d]sebb]g̀hU\]̂V�Qbcdef]b]ĝh�Ug̀�Qgsr_̀]�seĥy�ĝQsQcÛQgR�̂SÛ�ĥ_̀V�̂e�z]�sebcr]̂]̀�]g̀�e\u�uZy��SQh�Te_r̀�Qgsr_̀]�zQ�]�c]̀�Qbcdef]b]ĝhŜde_RS�̂S]��eTg�e\��_r̂yPQRSTUV WX�YZ WX�YZW�m]ĥ�e\��_r̂�̂e�WX��kjeÙ�[_d\Us]��d]Ûb]ĝ��oYZ�yY�̂e�YknyZ W�X� �}w�|} m]r̀ �X ��y�� uwn j]ced̂h�e\�ceed�deÙTUV�seg̀Q̂Qegh�eg�WX�YZUde_g̀��_r̂y�m]ĥ]dg�h]ŝQeg�Qh�U�bÛsS�Qg�̂S]cUf]b]ĝ�bUgUR]b]ĝ�hVĥ]by��i�e\�k�̂e��V]UdhyPQRSTUV aluk aluk�m]rrQgR̂eg�o]̀�WdehhQgR ode�]ŝ�UssebèÛ]�hU\]c]̀]ĥdQUg�bef]b]ĝ�Usdehhaluk�h�e�aluk�WXY�aĝ]dsSUgR] |} iUdQb]d orUggQgR �n� uw�nPQRSTUV aluk �d_s��oUd�QgR�g]Udm]rrQgR̂eg abcr]b]ĝ�̂d_s��cUd�QgRQbcdef]b]ĝh�d]sebb]g̀]̀�zVd̂_s��cUd�QgR�ĥ_̀Vy W�X� |} iUdQb]d �dU\\Qs�h_cced̂h�\_g̀QgR�̂d_s��cUd�QgR�g]Udm]rrQgR̂egy�â�Te_r̀�Ù �̀Rd]Û�hU\]̂V�z]g]\Q̂h_̀dQgR�Qĝ]dĥÛ]�sreh_d]hyPQRSTUV al�� |[�nZ�{Uĥ�[rUz�Ug̀��QUbeg̀�dQg̀�m� jeÙ�[_d\Us]��d]Ûb]ĝ�m���o���̂e��nyv W�X� |} �edRUg �Yky�� u�̂e�Z oeed�m��seg̀Q̂Qegy��i���̀_]�̂e�ajayPQRSTUV al�� �]]g]hz_dR�{Uĥ�oUd̂�Y jeÙ�[_d\Us]��d]Ûb]ĝ��o�Z�ykê�Zkyk W�X� |} m]r̀ �YkyY� Y�̂e�n iQ�]rV�̂e�z]�eg�}]̀]dUr�oeed�rQĥ�heeg�̀_]�̂e�ajaUg̀�sdUs�QgRy��i�nlkyPQRSTUV al�� �]]g]hz_dR�{Uĥ�oUd̂�u W�X� |} m]r̀ �YkyY� nw�Z iQ�]rV�̂e�z]�eg�}]̀]dUr�oeed�rQĥ�heeg�̀_]�̂e�ajaUg̀�sdUs�QgRy��i�ZlkyPQRSTUV |[�nZ |[�nZ�oUhhQgR�iUg]h�Ug̀[U\]̂V�abcdef]b]ĝhp�d]]r]V�̂e�mQRRQgh oUhhQgR�rUg]h�\deb��d]]r]V�̂emQRRQgh Z[̂_̀V |[��k |[��k�WeddQ̀ed�jUQrdeÙ�[̂_̀VUg̀�[U\]̂V�abcdef]b]ĝh �S]d]�Ud]�h]f]dUr�dUQrdeÙsdehhQgRh�̂SÛ�]qc]dQ]gs]\ÛUrQ̂Q]h�Ug̀�h]dQe_h�Qg�_dQ]h_̀]�̂e�ceed�hQRgUrQ�ÛQeg�Ug̀hU\]̂V�TUdgQgRhy W�X� |} m]r̀ orUggQgR �Y�y�� o]ecr]�seĝQg_]�̂e�R]̂�S_d̂�Û�̂S]�|ojjsdehhQgRhy�ag�beĥ�sUh]hw�QgsQ̀]ĝh�Te_r̀�z]cd]f]ĝUzr]�Q\�hU\]̂V�TUh�zde_RŜ�̂e�\_rrĥUg̀Ud̀ymed�QgR�̂e�RUQg�bed]�srUdQ̂V�eg�der]h�Ug̀d]hceghQzQrQ̂Q]h�\deb�̂S]����h�e\\Qs]�d]RUd̀QgRbUQĝ]gUgs]y�dUghQ̂ {ĥ]h�oUd��Qbcdef]̀�̂dUghQ̂ec]dÛQegh iXW�i��j��[a�p�abcdef]̀d̂UghQ̂�ec]dÛQgR�Qg�{ĥ]h�oUd� {ĥ]h�oUd�|} iUdQb]d[̂_̀V |[��k |[��k�WeddQ̀ed�[U\]̂V[̂_̀V�o{i�j]\d]hS �UgV�sdUhS]h�Ug̀�\ÛUrQ̂Q]h�ÛQĝ]dh]ŝQegh�UregR�̂S]�|[��kseddQ̀edy�P]UfV�\d]QRŜ�seddQ̀edy W�X� |} m]r̀ orUggQgR �uy�� PQRS�̂dU\\Qsw�rêh�e\�Qĝ]dh]ŝQeghw�rêh�e\�̂d_s�hy�S]d]�Qh�U�g]]̀�\ed�hU\]̂V�Qbcdef]b]ĝhy
jeÙ�[_d\Us]��d]Ûb]ĝ��o�Zkyk�

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������ �
��0��,��¡�#	�&���¢�����	������	$������	���
���	��������	$$�
%��	$3�
�
��"��£�¤¥����
����	����¦§̈©ªª§«¬§¬�¬®̄°±²�³́µ¶±·̧�¹µ́�º³»�¼µ½¾¿À±́Á̧¿µ½ÂÃÄ�ÅÆÇÇÈÉÊ



Upper Front Range Project Evaluation: Methods and

Assumptions

Economic Vitality

Criterion Assessment Example Score

Economic vitality - the

project supports economic

development in regional

industries including

agriculture, energy, and

tourism.

Weight = 20

The project facilitates significant

economic development to a large

area or entire region.

New and/or improved access for

commercial vehicles to regional

corridor

3

The project enhances economic

development to spot location or

existing economic area.

New and/or improved access for

commercial retail center

2

The project provides some benefit

to economic activity to a location

or area.

Addition of passing lanes 1

The project has no discernable

benefit to commercial activity.

Improvements for residential

access

0

Corridor improvements along a Colorado Freight Corridor (a surrogate for agriculture and energy industries) or

Scenic Byway (a surrogate for tourism) or route to RMNP = 3

Intersection improvements along a Colorado Freight Corridor or Scenic Byway or route to RMNP = 2

Most other projects = 1

Residential access = 0

Freight Corridors:

● SH 14 (PUF7004)

● I-25 (PUF7006)

● US 34 (PUF7009)

● US 34 (PUF7010)

● SH 52 (PUF7012)

● SH 71 (PUF7015)

● I-76 (PUF7016)

● US 85 (PUF7017)

● US 85 (PUF7018)

● US 287 (PUF7020)

Scenic Byways:

● SH 7 (PUF7002)

● SH 14 (PUF7003)

● SH 14 (PUF7004)

● US 34 (PUF7007)

Route to RMNP:

● SH 7 (PUF7002)

● US 34 (PUF7007)

● US 34 (PUF7008)

● US 36 (PUF7011)



Safety

Criterion Assessment Example Score

Safety – the project

reduces a hazardous

condition (Range of

hazardous conditions from

crash rate performance –

public perception)

Weight = 25

The project will substantially reduce

the crash rate at a documented high

crash segment or location.

The addition of passing lanes where

there is a high frequency of head-on

or side swipe crashes

3

The project reduces the crash rate at

a high crash segment or location.

Development of an access

management plan
2

The project provides some safety

improvement along a segment or at a

spot location.

Surface treatment project
1

The project does not have a direct

effect on safety improvements.

A landscaping or beautification

project 0

Intersection improvements or other project that addresses safety, where LOSS is 3 or 4 = 3

Access Control Plan; Intersection improvements or other project that addresses safety, where LOSS is 1 or 2 = 2

Projects that may have marginal safety improvements (e.g., pedestrian improvements) = 1

Mobility

Criterion Assessment Example Score

The project provides a significant

increase in capacity of person trips or

freight movement along a congested

highway

Widening of a segment of highway

from 2 to 4 lanes 3

Mobility – the project

creates new travel options

and increases

connectivity; system

continuity

The project provides some

improvement in capacity of person

trips or freight movement.

Addition of passing lanes
2

Weight = 20
The project has little benefit to

capacity.

Bridge deck improvements

1

The project has no benefit to capacity

or has a negative impact on capacity.
A landscaping or beautification

project

0

Intersection improvements or other project that would add capacity, 2020 V/C ratio of 0.8 or higher = 3

Intersection improvements or other project that would add capacity, 2020 V/C ratio of 0.6 or higher = 2



Project that would improve mobility, low V/C (less than 0.6) = 1

Project would not address mobility = 0

Transportation System Integrity

Criterion Assessment Example Score

The project will provide substantial

improvement to a key highway asset.

Reconstruction of a segment of

highway or a bridge

3

Transportation system

integrity - the project

improves a condition

related to pavement

drivability life and level of

service; asset management

program.

The project will provide some

improvement to a key highway asset.
Resurfacing project

2

The project provides little

improvement to a highway asset.

Drivability study 1

Weight = 20

The project has a no or a negative

impact to a highway asset.

Addition of an irrigated landscaped

median
0

Reconstruction = 3

Project located on highway section with Low drivability life = 2

Project located on highway section with moderate or high drivability life = 1

Project would not address road condition = 0

Land Use

Criterion Assessment Example Score

Land use – the project is

integrated with existing

and planned land uses.

Weight = 5

The project provides a substantial

benefit to the existing land uses and is

sensitive to the existing context.

Expansion of capacity to

accommodate existing needs of

adjacent land uses.
3

The project provides a benefit for

future and planned land uses and is

integrated with those plans.

Expansion of capacity to anticipate

planned changes in land use. 2

The project would not improve, but

would have no adverse impacts on

existing or planned land uses.

Addition of passing lanes within

right-of-way
1

The project has no relationship to the

existing or planned land uses in the

area; the project could adversely

impact existing land uses.

Projects that would require land

acquisitions and the displacement of

commercial, industrial, or residential

activities

0



Access Control Plans get an automatic 3 since they are focused on better interface with adjacent land uses

The statewide travel demand model is used to help understand where land use growth is anticipated to have

the greatest impact on the transportation network (and associated projects). The land use score of “2” is

applied to projects in areas that are expected to have significant growth (2020 – 2045)

All other projects receive a 1

No projects identified as having adverse impacts

Cost Effectiveness

Criterion Assessment Example Score

Cost effectiveness – the

projects that meets the

most goals for the lowest

cost are the most cost

effective*

The project provides a substantial

cost-benefit to many users of the

system.

Signal timing along a congested

highway 3

The project provides some cost-

benefit to many users of the system.

Intersection improvements at a

congested location 2

*Costs are capital,

operational, and

maintenance cost relative

to other projects

The project provides little benefit to

few users of the system.

Reconstruction of a low volume

highway 1

Weight = 10
The project has no benefit to users of

the system.

Reconstruction of a low volume

highway where improvements have

recently been made
0

Sum of other scores divided by cost – break into three “bins” – bottom 1/3 = 1, middle 1/3 = 2, top 1/3 = 3

Alternate Fuels

Criterion Assessment Example

Alternate fuels – the project supports the development of natural

gas infrastructure and the use of compressed and liquefied natural

gas fuels

Bonus score + 15

Project that includes installation of

alternate fuels infrastructure



Hazard Mitigation

Criterion Assessment Example

Hazard Mitigation - the project addresses potential natural disaster

events

Bonus score + 15

Drainage improvements



















12/4/2024

1

Colorado Multi-Agency Planning
Briefing for Upper Front RangeTPR
December 5, 2024

CENTRAL FEDERAL LANDS HIGHWAY DIVISION
Planning, Programming & Environment

AndrewValdez,PlanningTeam Lead

Arapaho-Roosevelt NF

Project Briefing & Update
Project Purpose: Central Federal Lands (FHWA) is working with CDOT to update federal 
lands access sections of the state’s Transportation Planning Region (TPR) long-range plans.

• Larimer County hosted a multi-agency workshop on November 15th

• In attendance were representatives from: NPS, USFS, CDOT, Larimer County, North Front Range 
MPO,Weld County, Bureau of Reclamation, and Colorado Parks & Wildlife.

• FLMA access project list from 2020 was refreshed, 12 (fiscally unconstrained) projects have been identified and 
will be included in CFL’s write up for the TPR & CDOT.

• Project prioritization remains with the TPR and your process, keeping in mind that recreational access projects 
are inherently different that typical urban, interurban, or suburban routes.

FLMA Coordination
Multi-Agency Workshop: Identify shared needs across federal lands and federal-aid 
transportation systems through multi-agency planning efforts at the federal, state, MPO, and 
local levels.

We are looking for projects that are:
 Beneficial to multiple agencies and supported by

the general public

 Most likely to receive (or have received) state or
local investment

 Projects of mutual interest where planning and
design can be aligned before final programming
decisions are made

 Eligible and competitive for a broad set of state
and federal grant funding opportunities (like FLAP,
or other discretionary sources at the state or
federal levels)

1

2

3



12/4/2024

2

FLAP Funding

80% of FLAP
> 1.5% of Federal Land

20% of FLAP
< 1.5% of Federal Land

Federal Land by State & Funding Allocation
Central Federal Lands States
- California
- Colorado
- Utah
- Nevada
- Arizona
- Wyoming
- New Mexico
- Texas
- Oklahoma
- South Dakota
- North Dakota
- Kansas
- Nebraska
- Hawaii

$30.7M
$15.9M (2025)
$12.1M
$11.9M
$11.2M
$9.5M
$8.2M
$3.2M
$1.2M
$1.2M
$1M
$766K
$329K
$308K

BIL Total20262025202420232022FiscalYear

$1.44 B$309 M$304 M$297 M$292 M$286 MAuthorization

NATIONAL FLMA 
NEEDS INVENTORY 

(FL-TPG)

GOAL: Better cohesion between the federal lands and federal-aid transportation planning processes.

STATE & MPO 
LONG-RANGE PLANS

•

PROCESS OUTCOMES:

Better definition of local FLMAs role at different 
stages of the state and local planning process.

• Provide policy and process recommendations for 
enhanced integration of federal lands access needs 
into the statewide and MPO transportation planning 
processes and identifying supplemental funding.

• Cultivate new partnerships to jointly fund and/or 
deliver projects of mutual interest (either grant 
pursuits or program funds).

FLMA Coordination

PRODUCT OUTCOMES:

CDOT TPR Plan Update Schedule

4

5

6



12/4/2024

3

CDOT Transportation Planning Regions

NOTE
that Upper Front Range TPR & North
Front Range MPO geographies were
combined in the workshop, CFL will
work with TPR & MPO representatives
to tailor deliverables to each.

What’s the ask?
Please validate the list of projects so
CFL can begin work on the final
deliverables.

Carter Lake/Horsetooth
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

County Rd 63 Bridge
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

7

8

9



12/4/2024

4

County Rd 73
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

County Rd 86
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

County Rd 127
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

10

11

12



12/4/2024

5

Dunraven
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

Greyrock
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

Horsetooth
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

13

14

15



12/4/2024

6

Lilly Lake
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

Mary’s Lake
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

Red Feather
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

16

17

18



12/4/2024

7

US-36
Validate:
• Geographic Extent
• Description
• Type of Project

Q&A

Andrew Valdez 
Planning Team Lead 
720-963-3329
andrew.valdez@dot.gov

19

20

21



11/25/2024

1

Colorado Highway 14 
Safety Study
Draft Recommendations November 2024

PROJECT GOAL
To improve safety along Colorado Highway (CO) 14 from Larimer County Road 5 to Weld County Road 43.
A crash data analysis, travel pattern analysis, Road Safety Audit (RSA), virtual audit, field review, and stakeholder
interviews were conducted to inform the recommendations.

N

CR
AS

H
AN

AL
YS

IS

REAR-END
29% of All crashes 
19% of KSI crashes

• Drivers failing to slow down at 
intersections; potential speeding, 
distracted, & unaware of upcoming 
intersections

• Sun glare obstructing visibility
• Sight distance issues at some 

intersections

BROADSIDE
11% of All crashes 
14% of KSI crashes

• Primarily drivers on minor leg failing 
to yield right-of-way

APPROACHTURN

11% of All crashes 
14% of KSI crashes

• Primarily drivers failing to estimate 
distance of approaching vehicles

HEAD-ON
4% of All crashes 

24% of KSI crashes

• 90% occurred at non-intersection
locations

• 71% involved drugs and alcohol
• Most drivers traveled into the 

opposing lane to pass other vehicle(s)
• A few lost control of the vehicle

FIXED OBJECTS
13% of All crashes 
14% of KSI crashes

• 80% occurred at non-intersection
locations

• Many drivers overcorrected before
they lost control and drove off the
road

• A few were avoiding animals

SIDESWIPE 
OPPOSITEDIRECTION

4% of All crashes
10% of KSI crashes

• All occurred at non-intersection
locations

• A few lost control of the vehicle

1

2

3



11/25/2024

2

1ST STAKEHOLDER MEETING (3/7/24)OVERVIEW

Crash locations related to drivers 
passing and utilizing opposite lane 
(Head-on & Sideswipes)

Speeding

TYPES OF ISSUE (Stakeholder Identified)

Significant crash locations
Fatal crashes

Blind Spot (Verified in field observation)

Blind Spot (Not verified in field observation and LiDAR analysis)

CORRIDOR-WIDE RECOMMENDATIONS

CORRIDOR-WIDE RECOMMENDATIONS

CORRIDOR - WIDE SPEED STU DY
The data indicates many speed-related crashes have occurred along the corridor. A corridor-wide speed study is 
recommended to determine appropriate speeds and to help identify the appropriate locations for the self-
enforcing roadway concepts.

• 44% going more than 10mph 
UNDER the speed limit

• 16% going under the speed limit
• 30% going the speed limit
• 7% going over the speed limit
• 3% going more than 10mph OVER 

the speed limit

25 MPH

35 MPH

50 MPH

55 MPH

65 MPH

abowers
2024-11-13 17:05:17

--------------------------------------------
One green dot. 
Post it note: " Consider 55 MPH max 
between I-25 & Ault".

4

5

6



11/25/2024

3

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS

CROSSROAD ADVANCE SI GNS 
Adding the crossroad advance sign would inform drivers on CO 14 about the upcoming intersection and 
raise awareness of vehicles turning off the minor legs.

Attempts to mitigate 
these crash types:

REAR-END BROADSIDE APPROACH TURN

Why a crossroad advance sign improves safety:

A crossroad advance sign improves safety by 
providing crucial advance notice to drivers, 
helping them adjust their speed, increasing 
awareness of cross traffic, and minimizing the 
risk of collisions.

abowers
2024-11-13 16:59:21

--------------------------------------------
Two green dots

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS

RECOMMENDED NO PASSING ZONES
• Crash analysis showed 2 fatalities and 1 severe injury along the passing zone between:

• MM 150.15 - MM 151.3

• Additionally, LiDAR found potential passing sight distance (PSD) issues and stopping sight distance (SSD) issues, where 
passing is currently allowed:

• PSD: MM 154.9 to 155.2 (near CR 39). Consider longer segment of MM 154.0 to MM 156.0 due to many driveways.

Attempts to mitigate 
these crash types: HEAD-ON SIDESWIPE 

OPPOSITE DIRECTION Why a no passing zone improves 
safety:

Prevents dangerous passing 
maneuvers in areas that may have 
limited sight distance or in areas 
where additional caution is 
needed such as near intersections 
and curves

Recommendation

Double Yellow Marking [Prohibited Passing]

Head-On/Sideswipe Crash Location

7

8

9



11/25/2024

4

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS
RECOMMENDED NO PASSING ZONES (continued)

Example Schematic of MM150 – MM151*

EXISTING: Solid and broken yellow marking (passing permitted in one direction) when approaching the intersections between MM 150 and MM 151 and 
single broken yellow (passing permitted) in the middle of the segment.

*Only to show the marking throughout the corridor - not intended to show proportional scale.

RECOMMENDATION: Double solid yellow marking (passing prohibited)

CRASHACTIVITY

1. 1 Sideswipe Same Direction at MM 150.15
2. 1 Head-on at MM 150.45 (Fatal)
3. 1 Sideswipe Opposite Direction at MM 150.99
4. 1 Head-on at MM 151.3 (Fatal)

Head-on/Sideswipe Crash Location

MM 150

MM 150

MM 151

MM 151

1

2 3 4

abowers
2024-11-13 16:58:36

--------------------------------------------
Two green dots

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS

INSTALL DOUBLE RUMBLE STRIPS AND 
PAINTED MEDIAN

Crash analysis showed multiple crashes along the passing prohibited zone between:

• MM 142 – MM 143 (6 crashes)

• MM 147 – MM 148 (4 crashes; 2 KSI)

Attempts to mitigate 
these crash types:

HEAD-ON SIDESWIPE 
OPPOSITE DIRECTION Why rumble strips and a painted median 

improve safety:

1. Helps prevent unintended lane 
departure for distracted or drowsy 
drivers.

2. Reinforces that passing is prohibited.

3. Enhances driver awareness and focus 
and promotes lane discipline.

Head-On/Sideswipe Crash Location

Recommendation

Double Rumble Strips and Painted Median

Home Location (<500 ft from the roadway)*

*Residents potentially would hear noise if vehicles drives on rumble strips.

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS
INSTALL DOUBLE RUMBLE STRIPS AND PAINTED MEDIAN (continued)

Example Schematic of MM142 – MM143*
EXISTING: Double Yellow Marking (passing prohibited) between MM 142 and MM 143 throughout the segment .

*Only to show the marking throughout the corridor - not intended to show proportional scale.

MM 142

±200 ft
1

2

MM 143

3

MM 142

4
5

RECOMMENDATION: Double rumble strips and painted median

MM 143

CRASHACTIVITY

1. 1 Sideswipe Opposite Direction at MM 142.3
2. 1 Sideswipe Opposite Direction at MM 142.8
3. 1 Head-on at MM 143
4. 2 Sideswipe Opposite Direction at MM 143

Head-on/Sideswipe Crash Location

Home Location

abowers
2024-11-13 16:57:42

--------------------------------------------
"If roadway must be widened, I would 
recommend a test section at MP 142-
143 b/c there are no structures". "MP 
147-148 has 2 structures".

10

11

12



11/25/2024

5

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS
POTENTIAL PASSING LANE CANDIDATES
Passing lanes could be considered for no-passing locations where multiple head-on, sideswipe opposite 
direction, and sideswipe same direction crashes happened. Two segments below have at least 3 crashes; 
however, further analysis would be needed to determine if these locations are appropriate for a passing
lane. Attempts to mitigate 

these crash types: HEAD-ON SIDESWIPE 
OPPOSITE DIRECTION

Why a passing lane improves safety:

1. Reduces risky passing maneuvers by 
providing safer opportunities to pass.

2. Minimizes chance of head on collisions 
because driver does not need to pass 
using the opposing travel lane.

Location Volume/Capacity* #Crash Crash Type Direction Injury Level

1. MM 142
to
MM 143

Existing V/C Ratio: 0.5

Future (20-year) V/C 
Ratio: 0.74

Property Damage 
Only (PDO)

EBHead-On1

1 Minor Injury
1 Pain

EBSideswipe Opposite 
Direction

2

Minor InjuryWBHead-On1

Existing Truck %: 11.6% 2 Sideswipe Opposite 
Direction

WB 1 Minor Injury
1 Pain

2. MM 147
to
MM 148

Existing V/C Ratio: 0.47

Future (20-year) V/C 
Ratio: 0.7

Existing Truck %: 11.4%

1 Head-On WB PDO

1 Sideswipe Opposite 
Direction

EB Fatal

2 Sideswipe Opposite 
Direction

WB 1 Severe Injury
1 PDO

*The volume to capacity (V/C) ratio is used to recognize the effect of the lack of passing opportunities in reducing the level of 
service. A road is considered to be at capacity when V/C ratio is 1. Source: CDOT Roadway Design Guide

abowers
2024-11-13 16:55:42

--------------------------------------------
"both directions".

abowers
2024-11-13 16:56:02

--------------------------------------------
Four green dots

NON-INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS

FLAT SPOT MITIGATION
LiDAR analysis found potential flat spot areas that might increase the risk of water ponding on the
roadway, impacting driving conditions. Warning signage would help alert drivers. In the mid to long term, 
consider pavement replacement or patching.

Attempts to mitigate 
these crash types: HEAD-ON SIDESWIPE 

OPPOSITE DIRECTION FIXED OBJECTS

Why a ‘slippery when wet’ sign improves 
safety:

A ‘slippery when wet’ sign improves safety by 
providing crucial advance notice to drivers, 
helping them adjust their speed, increasing 
awareness of potentially hazardous 
conditions, and minimizing the risk of 
collisions with other vehicles or fixed objects.

abowers
2024-11-13 16:54:54

--------------------------------------------
"cross slopes correction when next 
overlay comes through".

INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONS

13

14

15



11/25/2024

6

INTERSECTIONRECOMMENDATIONSOVERVIEW

Recommendations are provided on the following slides for intersections that have a high LOSS, a fatal crash in 2023, and/or 
an issue identified through LiDAR analysis.

Side Street STOP

Signal

LIDAR-Identified Intersection Sight Distance Issue

2023 Fatal Crash Locations

TYPE OF CONTROL ROAD SAFETY ISSUE

High LOSS Crash Locations

CO14 & LCR 5
Control: Side-street Stop

CRASHREPORT

12 Total Crashes

6 Broadside Crashes

• 5 NBT/EBT Crashes

4 Rear-End Crashes

LOSS& Diagnostics

4 Total LOSS

4 Severity LOSS 
Pattern: 
Broadside,
2-Vehicle Crashes, 
On-Road Crashes.

LIDAR ANALYSIS

N/A.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS

N/A.

RECOMMENDATIONS

A traffic signal is planned to be installed soon, which should 
address the existing issues.

abowers
2024-11-13 17:12:10

--------------------------------------------
One green dot on "A traffic signal.....".

CO14 & LCR 3
Control: Side-street Stop

LOSS& Diagnostics

3 Total LOSS

3 Severity LOSS 

Pattern:
On-Road Crashes

CRASHREPORT

5 Total Crashes

3 Broadside Crashes

• NB/SB Vehicles failed to 
yield

1 Rear-End Crash

1 Overturning Crash

LIDAR ANALYSIS

N/A.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS
NB & SB legs slope 
downward from CO 14 
resulting in sight distance 
issues.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Elevate the NB and SB legs to improve sight distance of 
cross traffic.

abowers
2024-11-13 17:11:47

--------------------------------------------
Two green dots on "Elevate the NB and 
SB....."

16

17

18



11/25/2024

7

CO14 &WCR13
Control: Side-street Stop

CRASHREPORT

8 Total Crashes

4 Broadside Crashes

• NB/SB Vehicles failed to 
yield.

LOSS& Diagnostics

4 Total LOSS

4 Severity LOSS 
Pattern: 
Broadside.

LIDAR ANALYSIS

N/A.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS
Elevation change EB
causes sight distance
issues for vehicles on
minor leg.

RECOMMENDATIONS
• Install Intersection Conflict Warning System to alert 

drivers that vehicle(s) is approaching from EB direction
• Conduct signal warrant analysis.

abowers
2024-11-13 17:11:20

--------------------------------------------
Post it note: "EB right turn lanes at 13, 
15 & 23".

CO14 & CO257
Control: Signal

CRASHREPORT

14 Total Crashes

5 Approach Turn Crashes

• 5 NBL/SBT Crashes; Drivers 
did not yield ROW

5 Rear-End Crashes

LOSS& Diagnostics

3 Total LOSS

2 Severity LOSS 

Pattern:
Rear End, 
Approach Turn.

LIDAR ANALYSIS
Intersection sight distance 
issue of the opposing left 
turns on CO 14 in event of 
two vehicles turning left in 
opposite directions.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS

Sun glare might be 
contributing to rear-end 
accidents.

RECOMMENDATIONS
• Install advance signal ahead warning beacon
• Restripe to create a positive offset for left turns on CO 14
• Review appropriate left-turn phasing for NBL.

abowers
2024-11-13 17:10:17

--------------------------------------------
Green dots on "potential re-stripe..." and 
"review ROW of NB leg....".

CO14 &WCR29
Control: Side-street Stop

CRASHREPORT

10 Total Crashes

4 Rear-End Crashes

• 3 EBT vehicles failed to slow 
down

2 Domestic Animal Crashes.

LOSS& Diagnostics

2 Total LOSS

3Severity LOSS 
Pattern:
Injury,
On-Road Crashes.

N/A.

LIDAR ANALYSIS FIELD OBSERVATIONS
• Sight distance issue from WB 

direction for vehicles on minor 
leg.

• Industrial land uses on northwest 
and southwest corners with 
potentially heavy truck volumes.

RECOMMENDATIONS
• Install Intersection Conflict Warning System to alert drivers that 

vehicle(s) is approaching from WB direction
• Review truck volumes for potential auxiliary lanes on CO 14
• Conduct signal warrant analysis

19

20

21



11/25/2024

8

CO14 &WCR31
Control: Side-street Stop

LOSS& Diagnostics

4 Total LOSS

4 Severity LOSS 

Pattern:
Injury,

On Road Crashes.

CRASHREPORT

22 Total Crashes

9 Rear-End Crashes

7 Broadside Crashes

• 6 NBT vehicles failed to yield 
ROW

1 Pedestrian Crash

LIDAR ANALYSIS

N/A.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS
• Sight distance issue 

due to vegetation for 
vehicles on minor leg.

• Lack of WB auxiliary 
turn lane.

RECOMMENDATIONS
• Improve SB sight distance – clear vegetation

• Install auxiliary left-turn lane on CO 14

• Conduct signal warrant analysis.

abowers
2024-11-13 17:07:54

--------------------------------------------
Green dots on "Install conflict warning 
system.....", "review truck volumes.....", 
and "conduct signal warrant analysis". 
Post it note: 
" 29 is paved and is the detour in the 85 
TIM (?). Strong NB movement".

abowers
2024-11-13 17:08:59

--------------------------------------------
Green dots on "Install auxiliary left-turn 
lane..." and "conduct signal warrant 
analysis". Post it note: 
"31 to the south goes all the way to 
Greeley and is signalized at 392".

CO14 &WCR33
Control: Side-street Stop

LOSS& Diagnostics

4 Total LOSS

4 Severity LOSS 

Pattern:
No Pattern 
Identified.

CRASHREPORT

17 Total Crashes

10 Broadside Crashes

• 8 NBT vehicles failed to slow 
down

6 Rear-End Crashes

LIDAR ANALYSIS
• Existing intersection sight 

distance issue due to 
vegetation west of 
intersection

• Sight distance issue in event 
of two vehicles turning left 
in opposite directions.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS
• Sight distance issues 

of NBR and SBL due 
to vegetation

• Sight distance issues 
of WBL.

RECOMMENDATIONS
• Remove vegetation west of the intersection
• Potential re-stripe to improve left-turn offset on CO 14
• Review ROW of NB leg to potentially install left-turn auxiliary 

lane.

stCO14 & 1 AVE
Control: Signal

CRASHREPORT

2 Total Crashes

1 Overtaking Turn Crash

• A driver made EBR movement 
at the same time with another 
EBR vehicle utilizing the 
shoulder.

LOSS& Diagnostics

2 Total LOSS

2 Severity LOSS 

Pattern:
No Pattern 
Identified.

LIDAR ANALYSIS
Existing Intersection Sight 
Distance (issue in at least one 
movement), SBR due to
building east of intersection.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS

The intersection is near 
a park and school.

RECOMMENDATIONS

• Install edge line markings on the shoulder.
• Limit on-street parking near intersection.
• Install curb bulb outs at all four corners of intersection to 

reduce crossing distance and slow turning vehicles.
• See Pedestrian Safety Recommendations slide

abowers
2024-11-13 17:04:20

--------------------------------------------
Green dots on "Install edge line...." and 
"Install curb bulb outs.....".

22

23

24



11/25/2024

9

CO14 & US85
Control: Signal

CRASHREPORT

23 Total Crashes

10 Rear-End Crashes

• 4 EBT, 3WBT, 3NBT

1 Pedestrian Crash.

LIDAR ANALYSIS
Existing intersection 
sight distance issues 
due to buildings, 
signals/signage: NBR 
and SBR.

LOSS& Diagnostics

3 Total LOSS

2 Severity LOSS 

Pattern:
Wet Road Crashes, 
Snow/Sleet/Hail.

FIELD OBSERVATIONS
• Commercial sign clutter at intersection

• Unclear / lack of striping at the intersection

• Driveway access close to the intersection

• Parking zones not delineated

RECOMMENDATIONS

• Restripe the west leg of the intersection and crosswalk to 
delineate traffic movements and pedestrian crossing

• Install no parking signs and pavement markings to prohibit 
parking close to the intersection

• Implement ADA ramps east of the railroad tracks.
• Limit access in vicinity of intersection
• Consolidate access northeast of railroad
• Potential curb extension on CO 14
• Railroad quiet zone analysis

abowers
2024-11-13 17:03:06

--------------------------------------------
Green dots on "restripe the west leg...", 
Install no parking signs...", Limit access 
in vicinity....", and "railroad quiet zone 
analysis". Post it note: " PD mentioned 
LQ store access is issue".

CO14 &WCR43
Control: Side-street Stop

CRASHREPORT

6 Total Crashes

3 Overtaking Turn Crashes

• 2 EBT/EBR drivers failed to slow 

down when preceding vehicles 

were turning right

3 Rear-End Crash

LOSS& Diagnostics

3 Total LOSS

2 Severity LOSS 

Pattern:
No Pattern 
Identified.

N/A.

LIDAR ANALYSIS FIELD OBSERVATIONS
• Sight distance issues to/from NB leg

• Potential sight distance issues with a 
silo on the west side of the road
and vegetation on the east side

RECOMMENDATIONS

Remove vegetation near on the east side of intersection.

abowers
2024-11-13 17:03:35

--------------------------------------------
Post it note: "white fence may be sight 
distance issue".

PEDESTRIAN SAFETYRECOMMENDATIONS

25

26

27



11/25/2024

10

PEDESTRIAN SAFETYRECOMMENDATIONS

Existing Conditions Recommendations look 
at the following 
intersections on the 
next slide to increase 
safety for walking to 
school and encourage 
more people to walk:

• Alpine Avenue

• Graefe Avenue

• 1st Avenue

• 2nd Avenue

• US 85

PEDESTRIAN SAFETYRECOMMENDATIONS

• Alpine Avenue and Graefe Avenue

• Consider Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFBs)

• These intersections do not meet CDOT road design guides for RRFB but are 
near schools and are a less expensive measure than installing a signal.

• Consider implementing a pedestrian refuge island

• Consider conducting MUTCD Warrant #5, School Crossing to determine if 
a signal is warranted at one of the intersections

• Warrant is met if at least 20 school children cross during the busiest hour

• Consider bulb outs and sidewalk connections

• 1st Avenue and 2nd Avenue

• Consider bulb outs to reduce crossing distance and slow turning vehicles

• RRFBs increase driver awareness at uncontrolled
marked crosswalks and can increase the rate that
drivers yield to pedestrians up to 98%*.

• A pedestrian refuge island makes crossings easier 
(by shortening the distance pedestrians need to 
cross) and slows down traffic.

*FHWA-SA-21-053

Existing Conditions

abowers
2024-11-13 17:14:25

--------------------------------------------
Alpine Avenue & Graefe Avenue: Green 
dot on "consider RRFB", and "consider 
conducting MUTCD....". Post it notes: 
"no road markings make people go fast". 
Post it note: "Crossing guard @ Graefe 
but still ignore".

abowers
2024-11-13 17:15:29

--------------------------------------------
1st Avenue and 2nd Avenue: 
One green dot on " Consider bulb 
outs...". Post it note: 
"Crosswalk sign got knocked over @2nd 
& not replaced".

PEDESTRIAN SAFETYRECOMMENDATIONS

• General

• Consider sidewalk improvements and bike lanes as development 
occurs.

• Consider reducing lane widths to 11’ to encourage slower speeds.

*FHWA-SA-21-053

Existing Conditions

28

29

30



CDOT Region 4 Inactive Projects Report - UFR - November 25, 2024
Project Local Agency Sponsor Number Descripton Budget Expend Encumbered Balance FHWA End Date Actvity Status
23899 Larimer County SHO C060-090 CR 38E & CR 73C $258,300.00 $0.00 $258,300.00 $0.00 3/31/2025 1-WARNING, Greater Than A Year Since Actvity
23878 Town of Keenesburg SHO M700-002 SH 52 & CR 59 Sign Installaton $115,500.00 $27,226.78 $88,273.22 $0.00 9/30/2024 1-WARNING, Greater Than A Year Since Actvity
23027 Town of Estes Park SAR M405-023 Graves Ave Sidewalks and Brodie Spur $625,000.00 $0.00 $625,000.00 $0.00 8/31/2024 2-ALERT, Greater Than 9 Months Since Actvity
23882 Town of Kersey SHO M702-002 Hill St & 1st St Inter. Imprv. $300,000.00 $14,869.75 $285,130.25 $0.00 4/30/2025 3-Cauton, Greater Than 6 Months Since Actvity
23040 Town of Estes Park AQC M405-024 US36/Community Drive Intersecton Improv $2,313,498.00 $583,461.80 $1,730,036.20 $0.00 10/31/2025 4-Good, Actvity in the last 6 Months
25389 Larimer County MTF C060-096 Owl Canyon (LCR70) Shoulder Widening $398,830.00 $204,443.89 $160,318.56 $34,067.55 No Federal Funds 4-Good, Actvity in the last 6 Months
23950 Town of Estes Park MTF M405-026 Fall River Trail- Estes Park $448,226.00 $180,338.47 $267,887.53 $0.00 No Federal Funds 4-Good, Actvity in the last 6 Months
23900 Larimer County SHO C060-091 US 34 & Glade Rd $612,000.00 $92,011.27 $519,988.73 $0.00 6/30/2025 4-Good, Actvity in the last 6 Months
23637 Town of Estes Park TAP M405-025 Fall River Trail 2020 $1,193,750.00 $332,143.45 $861,606.55 $0.00 10/31/2025 4-Good, Actvity in the last 6 Months

Bold indicates FHWA End Date expiring within 6 months 
Red indicates expired FHWA End Date
Highlight indicates fast approaching FHWA End Date
Questions about this report, please contact your Local Agency Representative.


	09-05-24 UFR TPR Meeting Minutes - Final.pdf
	Attendance:

	7. FY24 Weld County Application SH 52- WCR 59.pdf
	CMAQ Project Submittal Form

	8. Resolution MMOF Match Rate Reduction.pdf
	Match rate reduction request - Weld County
	MMOF-GIS maps
	Binder2
	Binder1
	65+pop
	disability
	household income
	poverty


	fad


	CDOT Inactive Projects Report UFR 11.25.2024.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	8. Resolution MMOF Match Rate Reduction - Platteville.pdf
	Match rate reduction request - Weld County
	MMOF-GIS maps
	Binder2
	Binder1
	65+pop
	disability
	household income
	poverty


	fad





